
 

 
 

 

CABINET 
 

4.00 pm WEDNESDAY, 23RD OCTOBER, 2019 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the  
Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring information should 

contact the department on (01685 725284) or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


 

OPEN SESSION 

Portfolio 

3. Delegations Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013   

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

5 - 10 

4. Valley Life Dementia Wellbeing Centre - Update   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

11 - 16 

5. Extension of 20 mph Zone in Aberfan – Proposed 
Permanent Traffic Regulation Order  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer 
Neighbourhood Services 
 

17 - 24 

6. Petition High Street Trelewis   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer 
Neighbourhood Services 
 

25 - 28 

Strategic 

7. Corporate Sustainability Programme - Budget 
Reduction Proposals  

 

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

29 - 300 

Information Reports 

8. Youth Support Services in Merthyr Tydfil   

 To receive report of the Chief Officer Education 
 

301 - 308 

9. Future Funding for Gypsy Roma and Traveller 
Learners and Pupils for whom English is an 
Additional Language (EAL)  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Education 
 

309 - 316 

10. Period Dignity   

 To receive report of the Chief Officer Education 
 

317 - 322 



CLOSED SESSION 

Exempt 

In order for the following to be considered in private, it is suggested that the 
public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph/s 12,14,16 under 
Part 4 of Schedule 12A Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 
 

11. Debt Write Off Report   

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

323 - 340 

12. Valleys Regional Park Discovery Gateways 
Capital Grant 2019 – 2021 – Cyfarthfa  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Community 
Regeneration 
 

341 - 344 

13. Aberfan Canoe Club, Letting at Taff Bargoed Park, 
Merthyr Tydfil  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer 
Neighbourhood Services 
 

345 - 362 

RE-OPENED SESSION 

14. Any Other Business Deemed Urgent by the Chair   

 

  
COMPOSITION: Councillors     K O'Neill (Chair) 

                       L Mytton (Vice-Chair)  
  
 Councillors     A Barry, C Davies, D Hughes and 

G Thomas 
 

 together with appropriate officers 
  

 
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Delegations - the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 (the Act) brought into force the licensing regime 

which is run and administered by the local authority and governs scrap metal dealing 
throughout the County Borough. The Licensing Department and now the Trading 
Standards Department have administered and enforced the legislation since it came 
into force in 2013.  

 
1.2 Following an oversight by the Home Office when the Act was introduced, the 

legislation was made an Executive Function (Cabinet) and not a function of Full 
Council. The authority has therefore been prevented from using its usual licensing 
arrangements where Full Council has delegated powers to the Licensing Committee 
and Licensing Sub Committees for hearing and determining applications, reviews 
and policy considerations which is the case with other licensing functions namely 
taxis, liquor, gambling etc.  

 
1.3 To resolve this issue in 2013 Cabinet resolved to delegate certain functions under 

the Act to specified officer posts. However following Council re-structuring and 
reorganisation posts to which powers have been delegated have changed and 
personnel have retired and left the organisation. Therefore to ensure continued good 
governance Cabinet is requested to re-delegate functions to take into account the 
newly created posts. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 The issuing of a licence together with any variation or renewal of licences where 

there are no questions arising as to the suitability of an application made under the 

Date Written 25th September 2019 

Report Author Simon Jones 

Service Area Legal/Licensing 

Committee Division Operational 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 23rd October 2019 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Scrap Metal Dealer Act 2013 be delegated to the authority’s Trading Standards and 
Licensing Officers. 

 
2.2 Delegated power be given to the Head of Protection and Safety supported by a 

member of the authority’s legal team to hear representations from applicants/licence 
holders where the Local Authority are considering refusal, revocation or variation of a 
licence.  

 
2.3 The Head of Protection and Safety be given delegated power to grant, refuse, 

revoke, suspend and determine matters relating to any application heard under 2.2 
above to include the imposition of conditions 

 
2.4 The Head of Protection and Safety be given the delegated authority to authorise the 

following posts - Trading Standards Officers; Environmental Health Officers; Senior 
Fair Trading Officers; Fair Trading Officers to use the appropriate and relevant 
powers within the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013. 

 
2.5 The Head of Protection and Safety have the delegated authority to review and 

amend fees, where necessary, on an annual basis. 
 
2.6 The Monitoring Officer amends the Constitution of Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 

Council accordingly. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Metal theft has traditionally had a significant impact on communities, businesses and 

councils themselves.  
 

3.2 The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 (the Act) replaced the previous registration 
system for scrap metal dealers created by the 1964 Scrap Metal Dealers Act. In its 
place it created a new licensing regime. Every scrap metal dealer is now required to 
have a licence, and operating without one is a criminal offence. Under the new 
legislation the definition of scrap metal dealers was extended to include motor 
salvage operators.  

 
3.3 The Act now allows councils to refuse to grant a licence where the applicant is 

judged not to be a suitable person to operate as a scrap metal dealer. This ability to 
regulate who is, and who is not, a scrap metal dealer was designed to improve the 
operating standards of those dealers who did not operate to the same standards as 
the majority of reputable dealers. 

 
3.4 In order for anyone to carry on in business as a scrap metal dealer they have to have 

a licence. These licences last for three years. If convicted of trading without a licence 
the offender can be fined.  

 
3.5 There are two types of licence specified in the Act:  

 

 Site licence 
 All the sites where a licensee carries on business as a scrap metal dealer have to be 

identified, and a site manager has to be named for each site. This licence allows the 

Page 6



licensee to transport scrap metal to and from those sites from any local authority 
area. 

 

 Collector’s Licence 
 This allows the licensee to operate as a collector in the area of the issuing local 

authority. It does not allow the collector to operate in any other local authority area, 
so a separate licence has to be obtained from each council the collector wishes to 
operate in. The licence also does not authorise the licensee to operate a site. To do 
so they will need a site licence from the local authority.  

 
3.6 The Act also made it an offence to buy scrap metal for cash and gave Local Authority 

officers and police officers the right to enter and inspect scrap metal premises. 
 
3.7 Dealers under the legislation are divided into two categories based on the two 

different types of licence: those operating from fixed sites; and those who are mobile 
collectors.  
 

3.8 Scrap metal itself includes any discarded metal or metallic material or products which 
are made of or contain metal and is regarded as having reached the end of its useful 
life. This includes platinum and a range of other rare metals now being used in 
catalytic converters but does not include gold or silver. Jewellers or businesses 
trading in second hand gold and silver jewellery or products are not therefore caught 
by this definition.  

 
3.9 Any application must be accompanied by a fee. The fee is set by the local authority 

having had regard to guidance issued by the Home Office in conjunction with the 
Treasury. Having regard to the guidance issued the fees this authority charge are:- 
 

 Site Licence Collectors Licence 

New licence £327.00 £226.00 

Variation of a licence        £72.00 £68.00 

Renewal of a licence      £288.00 £210.00 

 
3.10 The fees are reviewed every year to ensure they are calculated in accordance with 

guidance. It is proposed that the Head of Protection and Safety be given delegated 
authority to review the fees annually and amend, if necessary, in accordance with the 
guidance.  

 
3.11 Section 3 of the Act states that a council must not issue a licence unless it is satisfied 

the applicant is a suitable person to carry on business as a scrap metal dealer – the 
‘suitability test’.  

 
3.12 In assessing an applicant’s suitability the council can consider any information it 

considers relevant to include an applicant’s previous relevant convictions via DBS 
check, whether they have been the subject of any relevant enforcement action or 
have been refused a licence previously.  

 
3.13 Once the local authority has received the DBS certificate it compares the results of 

the certificate with the relevant offences prescribed by the Home Office. In 
determining suitability, the Local Authority have a discretion and after receiving 
further information from an applicant or other bodies, it may decide to grant a licence, 
or grant the licence with conditions. 

Page 7



 
3.14 Where the council proposes to refuse or reject an application (or revoke it or vary it) 

the applicant is notified of this and given the reasons for it. The applicant is then 
given the opportunity to make representations against this initial assessment. 
 

3.15 Where the applicant makes representations (to include oral representations) the 
council must provide them with the opportunity to appear before a person appointed 
by the council for this purpose. It proposed that the appointed person be the Head of 
Safety and Protection supported by a member of the legal department. 

 
3.16 Appeals against a decision by the council to refuse an application, to impose a 

condition on the licence or to revoke or vary the licence are to the magistrates’ court.  
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications linked to this report. 
 
 

5.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
2 of 4 0 of 4 2 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
4 of 10 0 of 10 6 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are that the licensing regime will help keep all people safe 
from unlicensed and unsuitable scrap metal dealers. 
 
The main negative impacts are   NONE 
 

 

ELLIS COOPER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND CORPORATE SERVICES 

Page 8



 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 
 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Valley Life Dementia Wellbeing Centre - Update 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report will update members on the developments with regard to the Valley Life 

Dementia Wellbeing Centre.  This is part of the on-going strategic developments for 
Services for people with dementia in Merthyr Tydfil and across Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION that 
 
2.1 The contents of the report be noted and next steps be supported. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 In September 2019 Cabinet were provided with information in respect of the 

proposed development of a Health & Wellbeing Hub that would be built on the Local 
Authority owned land adjacent to Keir Hardie Health Park. 

 
3.2 Valley Life is a joint health & social care initiative across the Cwm Taf Morgannwg 

Region to enhance the services provided to people with Dementia. 
 
3.3 The agreed actions were that a more detailed business case be developed and 

preparatory site surveys be undertaken. 
 
3.4 The proposal was to be funded through the regional Integrated Care Fund Capital 

allocation and provisional capital had been allocated. 
 

Date Written September 2019 

Report Author Angela Edevane 

Service Area Adult Social Care 

Committee Division Portfolio 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 23rd October 2019 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 
 

4.0 DEVELOPMENTS SINCE LAST REPORT 
 
4.1 Since the report to Cabinet in September 2018 there have been a number of key 

developments. 
 
4.2 A significant development was that the initial land surveys identified that the 

topography of the identified site was not suitable to support both the build of the 
Wellbeing Hub in phase 1 and proposed extra care accommodation that was to be 
developed as part of phase 2. 

 
4.3 Given that the site would not support the proposal of both buildings, officers from 

CTUHB and MTCBC met to re-consider whether a revised building configuration 
could be implemented that supported the principles of: 

 Prevention, risk reduction and health promotion; 

 Earlier recognition, identification, assessment and diagnosis; 

 Living as well and independently for as long as possible with a mental health 
condition; 

 Support for carers; 

 Increased and integrated support in the community; and 

 More specialist care and support. 
 

4.4 The discussion concluded that the build of a Wellbeing Hub without the associated 
extra care accommodation was an expensive build option and would not deliver the 
intended outcomes.  

 
4.5 The revised option considered whether the services that would have been positioned 

in the Wellbeing Hub could be integrated into the existing accommodation available 
in the Health Park.  

 
4.6 It was identified that a viable option to support the elements of the Wellbeing Hub as 

there was potential to enhance the available space allocated to the existing joint day 
service provision through building an extension into the court yard. 

 
4.7 This option has been explored further and architects have been commissioned to 

provide a more detailed proposal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



4.8  Proposed Build Area Day Service 
 

 
 
 

5.0 CURRENT POSITION 
 
5.1 The extension of the day service area has been costed and funding sourced to 

complete the work has been provisionally agreed by Welsh Government through the 
Integrated Care Fund Capital allocation.  Written confirmation of the agreement of 
the £1.6 million allocation was only received by partners in September which has 
delayed the build.  However this is now progressing. 

 
5.2 Dementia Care Matters have been commissioned to support the internal re-

configuration of the area to ensure that it provides the optimum environment to 
support people with Dementia.  We have also been successful in obtaining ICF 
funding for a culture change project within the service.  This will ensure that not only 
will the service provide a bespoke build environment but this physical change will be 
supported by a truly person centred specialist approach to Dementia care.  

 
5.3 In addition to this funding has been sourced through the ICF Dementia allocation 

aligned to the Dementia Action Plan to commission Dementia Care Matters to 
support the culture change within the Joint Health & Social Care Day service and this 
work has already commenced. 

 
5.4 Initial discussions have taken place with Housing Colleagues and Wales & West who 

are agreed RSLs within the zone to progress the build of an extra care facility on the 
site.  The existing site surveys have been utilised to draft indicative outline plans 
which identify that the site would be suitable for the provision of a 60 unit extra care 
facility. 

Page 13



 
5.5 Further work is required to identify the exact build costs and funding and this is in 

progress. 
 
5.6 The proposed build on the KHHP site is likely to be high cost and beyond the ICF 

funding allocation and therefore approaches have been made to non-profit housing 
associations to form an alliance in developing the facility 

 
5.7 The area of the proposed build is highlighted in pink as follows.  Unfortunately, the 

land is not suitable to develop the concept of a dementia village which requires a 
large flat area of land with increased access. 

 
 Pink area highlights land examined as part of initial plans with the left hand portion 
as a level area 
 

 
 

5.8  We would be examining the possibility of additional services within the extra care 
facility to manage the rising pressure of Dementia within the Merthyr Tydfil region 
(Extra Care Plus).  Such a facility would assist the current pressures on Ty Cwm 
(MTCBC facility) near KHHP which is a 60 bed unit for a variety of packages of care.  

 

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 Whilst the detailed costs are still being worked through the indicative cost of the 

adaptation of the day service accommodation is in the region of £1.6 Million which 
has been provisionally agreed via the Integrated Care Fund. 

 
6.2 The development of the extra care facility will be in the region of £8-10 million which 

would be jointly funded by MTCBC & Registered Social Landlord. 
 

Page 14



7.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

7.1 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
1 of 4 0 of 4 3 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
2 of 10 0 of 10 8 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are the improved service delivery for individuals with 
Dementia.  This will improve our preventative offer to people in the community providing 
enhanced services in line with the Valley Life initiative.  
 
At this stage we have not identified any negative impacts of the proposal.  
 

 
 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
                            CABINET MEMBER FOR 

SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Previous Cabinet report 
 

September 2018 Intranet 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Extension of 20 mph zone in Aberfan – Proposed 
Permanent Traffic Regulation Order 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 In September 2018 an information gathering session was held in Aberfan 

Community Centre to obtain views from residents on how road safety could be 
improved in the area. As a result Ward Councillors and residents requested a 
reduction in the current 30 mph speed limit to 20 mph along Aberfan Road and 
Aberfan Crescent.  

 
1.2 A 20mph zone already exists in Aberfan and it is proposed to extend this to 

incorporate Aberfan Road, Aberfan Crescent including the various side roads. 
  
1.3 The new 20 mph zone would therefore include the roads between Ynysowen 

Community Primary School and Ysgol Rhyd Y Grug providing a lower speed limit to 
benefit road safety in the area. 

 
1.4 A plan showing these proposals is available via the Background Paper link for 

information purposes. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 a) Public Notice be given of the County Borough Council’s intention to make a  
  permanent Traffic Regulation Order under the Road Traffic Regulation Act  
  1984, the effect of which is detailed in the schedule at Appendix A; 
 

Date Written 1st October 2019 

Report Author Martin Stark  

Service Area Engineering  

Committee Division Portfolio  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 23rd October 2019 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 b) That in the event of no objections being received, the said permanent Order 
  be made; 
 
 c) If objections are received a report is presented to the appropriate Committee 
  for consideration as soon as practicable. 
 

 
3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 In September 2018 an information gathering session was held in Aberfan 

Community Centre to obtain views from residents on how road safety could be 
improved in the area. As a result Ward Councillors and residents requested a 
reduction in the current 30 mph speed limit to 20 mph along Aberfan Road and 
Aberfan Crescent.  

 
3.2 A 20mph zone already exists in Aberfan and it is proposed to extend this to 

incorporate Aberfan Road, Aberfan Crescent including the various side roads. 
  
3.3 The new 20 mph zone would therefore include the roads between Ynysowen 

Community Primary School and Ysgol Rhyd Y Grug providing a lower speed limit to 
benefit road safety in the area. 

 
3.4 A plan showing these proposals is available via the Background Paper link for 

information purposes. 
 
3.5 The new 20 mph zone would require introduction of a Traffic Regulation Order with 

associated additional signing. 
 
3.6 As part of Statutory Traffic Regulation Order procedure, consultation has been 

carried out with the emergency services and other representative users groups. No 
objections were received. The next stage of the Traffic Order process would be to 
give Public Notice of the Council’s intention to make the permanent Order including 
an objection period giving the opportunity for objections to be received from the 
general public.  If no objections are received, the Order can be made. If objections 
are received a report would be presented to the appropriate Committee for 
consideration as soon as practicable. 

    
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
4.1 There are administrative costs relating to the publishing of Traffic Regulation Order 

notices and traffic signs/roadmarkings which is to be met from Active Travel funding 
and the Traffic Management budget. Costs are estimated at £8,000. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



5.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  

4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 

3 of 10 0 of 10 7 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts against: 
 

 The Well-being objectives are that the proposals will provide better health and well-
being to children, young people and older people. Lowering the speed limit will assist in 
developing the environment and safer communities and supporting people, will help 
protect, enhance and promote the environment, help people enjoy good physical health, 
promote healthy behaviours, increased levels of physical activity and will support people 
living independently where they feel safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. 

 
 The Sustainable Development Principles are that the proposals will also provide long 

term benefits and deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. Representations from 
residents were received at the information gathering session and from Ward Councillors 
to lower speed in the area. Site visits and liaison with Ward Councillors was carried out to 
gather information on traffic issues. The Engineering Department has collaborated with 
other Council Departments and organisations on the proposals. 
 

 The Protected Characteristics and Welsh Language are that the proposals have been 
considered by the Engineering Department to provide a positive impact on improving 
road safety in the area for road users. The improvements will provide better health and 
well-being to children, young people and older people. The proposals will incorporate the 
Welsh language in Public Notices. 

 
No negative impacts have been identified against the Well-being Objectives, the 
Sustainable Development Principles, Protected Characteristics and Welsh Language 
and Biodiversity. 
 

 

Page 19



 
JUDITH JONES  
CHIEF OFFICER NEIGHBOURHOOD 
SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES  
CABINET MEMBER FOR 

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES, 
PLANNING AND COUNTRYSIDE 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

File ref. H10.0 
 
 

Ongoing Traffic Management Section, 
Engineering Department, Unit 5 
Pentrebach 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

 
 
 

Page 20



 
 
Appendix A 
 
SCHEDULE OF MEASUREMENTS AND VARIATION OF ORDERS 
 
SCHEDULE 1 
 
20 MILES PER HOUR SPEED LIMIT  
 
 
1. B4285 Aberfan Road from a point 60 metres north of its junction with Ynysowen 

Fach, southwards along Aberfan Road and Aberfan Crescent to a point 140 metres 
south of its junction with the road leading to Ysgol Rhyd Y Grug school including the 
circulatory carriageway of Aberfan Road roundabout. 

 
2. B4285 Golwg yr Afon from the eastern side of the gyratory carriageway at the 

junction with B4285 Aberfan Road, Aberfan for a distance of 412 metres in a general 
easterly then southerly direction. 

 
3. Nixonville, Aberfan from a point 6 metres west of the gyratory carriageway at the 

junction with the roundabout at the south end of Nixonville, in a north westerly 
direction to its cul-de-sac end, a distance of 558 metres. 

 
4. The link road between Nixonville, Aberfan and B4285 Golwg yr Afon, from its 

junction with Nixonville, Aberfan northwards to a point 7 metres west of B4285 
Golwg yr Afon. 

 
5. The lane to the rear of no.s 23 to 35 Pantglas Road. 
 
6. The lane to the side of no. 30 Pantglas Road. 
 
7. Pantglas Road. 
 
8. The lane to the side of no. 1 Pantglas Road and rear of no.s 5 to 10 Pantglas Road. 
 
9. Hillside Close, Moy Road and Coronation Place. 
 
10. The lane to the rear of no.s 53 to 68 Aberfan Road. 
 
11. The lane between no.s 26/27 Moy Road. 
 
12. The lane to the rear of no.s 38 to 52 Aberfan Road. 
 
13. The lane to the side of no. 38 Aberfan Road and no. 50 Moy Road. 
 
14. The lane to the rear of no.s 1 to 17 Coronation Place. 
 
15. Angus Street, Cottrell Street and Wingfield Street. 
 

Page 21



16. The lane to the rear of no.s 1 and 73 Aberfan Road. 
 
17. The lane to the rear of no.s 1 to 10 Barrington Street. 
 
18. Barrington Street, Mervyn Street and Mackintosh Street. 
 
19. The lane to the rear of no.s 74 to 81 Aberfan Road. 
 
20. The lane to the rear of no.s 11 to 20 Barrington Street. 
 
21. The lane to the side of no.21 Mackintosh Street and 20 Mervyn Street. 
 
22. The lane to the rear of no.s 12 to 21 Mackintosh Street. 
 
23. The lane to the side of no. 22 Winfield Street and no. 1 Mackintosh Street. 
 
24. The lane to the rear of no.s 1 to 11 Mackintosh Street. 
 
25. The lane to the rear of no.s 1 to 11 Wingfield Street. 
 
26. The lane to the rear of no.s 1a and 4a Cottrell Street. 
 
27. The lane between the sides of no.s 24/25 Cottrell Street. 
 
28. Bridge Street. 
 
29. The road leading to Ysgol Rhyd Y Grug School from Aberfan Crescent. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SCHEDULE 2  
 
Variation of Orders 
 
Vary the “Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Various Roads Aberfan, Merthyr Tydfil 
(Prohibition of Waiting At Any Time) (Clearway) (20 Mph Speed Limit) (Prohibition Of Right  
Turn) (Variation) (Revocation) Order 2015” by the deletion of schedule 3. 

Page 22



Key:

Existing 20mph zone

Proposed  20mph zone

P

a
t
h

A

L

L

T

Weir

Ysgol Gynradd Gymunedol Ynysowen /

T

a

f

f

 

T

r

a

i

l

 

(

C

y

c

l

e

 

T

r

a

c

k

)

T

a

f

f

 

T

r

a

i

l

 

(

C

y

c

l

e

 

T

r

a

c

k

)

Park

Shelter

1

Sub

Sta

El

1
1

Coventry

S

u

r
g

e

r
y

8

M

O

Y

 
R

O

A

D

1

2

Cemetery

2

7

T
H

E
 
G

R
O

V
E

Windsor

Issues

Posts

S Gantry

FB

Y

N

Y

S

O

W

E

N

 
F

A

C

H

Villa

S

T

R

Y

D

 

B

A

R

R

I

N

G

T

O

N

S

T

R

Y

D

 
M

E

R

F

Y

N

S
T

R
Y

D
 
C

O
T

T
R

E
L
L

1

0

TCB

Fairways

1

5

1

6

1
a

3

5

1
0

1

1

1

7

B

r
o

o

k

f
i
e

l
d

4

9

6

4

5

3

5

8

SP

1

1

157.0m

1

3

5

C

h

u

r

c

h

1

4

9

1

3

Aberfan

6

1

2

5

4

1

H

o

u

s

e

1
1

7

3

7

Issues

9

2

3

3

2

5
2

Weir

LB

1

2

1

2

P
a
t
h
 
(
u
m

)

2

9

D

r
a

i
n

5

3

3

0

2

9

T

r
a

c

k

8

1

MP

2

2

3
7

B

A

R

R

I

N

G

T

O

N

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

1

T

r

a

c

k

(dis)

6

5

C

h

u

r

c

h

1

133.5m

2

1

Weir

T
R

E
H

A
R

N
E

 S
T

1

2

M

E

R

V

Y

N

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

P

A

N

T

G

L

A

S

 
R

O

A

D

1
6

Club

Level

Ael-y-Bryn

1

3

3

6

5

P

a

t

h

 

(

u

m

)

1
7

T
r
a
c
k

5

5

3

6

Garden of Remembrance

D
r
a
i
n

6

2

3

2

S

M

1

C
O

T
T

R
E

L
L
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

1

1

1

2
3

1
1

6

1

2

B

r

y

n

t

e

g

 

T

e

r

r

a

c

e

C

A

R

D

I

F

F

 

R

O

A

D

8

1

0

V

i

l

l

a

s

5

S

c

h

o

o

l
 

H

o

u

s

e

9

4

3

(dis)

1

2

1

2

2

a

P

a

t
h

 
(

u

m

)

11

G

L
Y

N

D

W

R

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

Y

N

Y

S

Y

G

O

R

E

D

 
R

O

A

D

1
6

1

R

I
V

E

R

S

I
D

E

 
C

L

O

S

E

Cott

6
8

Public

S

T

R

Y

D

 

S

A

R

A

H

 

/

 

S

A

R

A

H

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

S

T

R

Y

D

 
Y

 
B

O

N

T

 
/
 
B

R

I
D

G

E

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

D

r

a

i

n

S

T

R

Y

D

 

F

I

C

T

O

R

I

A

 

/

 

V

I

C

T

O

R

I

A

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

R

i

v

e

r

 

T

a

f

f

Pantglas

A

R

G

O

E

D

 
T

E

R

R

A

C

E

Pond

Community

1

PH

/

 

A

f

o

n

 

T

a

f

1

2

M
AC

KIN
TO

SH
 S

TR
EET / 

STR
YD

 M
AC

KIN
TO

SH

Post

FS

A

 

4

7

0

T

r

a

c

k

D

r

a

i
n

D

r
a
i
n

D

r

a

i
n

T

r

a

c

k

Pond

Issues

D

r
a

i
n

D
r
a
i
n

D

r

a

i

n

Issues

Issues

D

r
a

i
n

D

r

a

i

n

D

r

a

i

n

Issues

D

r

a

i
n

D

r
a

i
n

E
T

L

Issues

D

r

a

i

n

Issues

20.50

Dan-y-Deri

T

e

r

a

s

 

N

o

e

l
 

/

 

N

o

e

l
 

T

e

r

r

a

c

e

Area

Sports Court

Play

Issues

Sluice

Surgery

Mount View

Ynysowen Community Primary School

T

a

f

f

 

T

r

a

i

l

 

(

C

y

c

l

e

 

T

r

a

c

k

)

Car

P

l

a

y

 

A

r

e

a

Posts

Shelter

Shelter

El

Shelter

Ford

Yard

Sta

1

Sub

TCB

Gardens

157.0m

Surgery

M

A

E

S

 

Y

 

C

O

R

O

N

I

H

E

O

L

 
M

O

Y

246.0m

2

6

C

O

R

O

N

A

T

I

O

N

 

P

L

A

C

E

A

 

4

0

5

4

3

5

1

5

8

H

E

O

L

 
Y

N

Y

S

Y

G

O

R

E

D

FB

1

L

a

y

-

b

y

S

T

R

Y

D

 

A

N

G

U

S

C

L

O

S

 
G

L

A

N

Y

R

A

F

O

N

STRYD W
IN

GFIE
LD

C

L

O

S

 
Y

R

H

E

O

L

 
A

B

E

R

V

A

N

H

E

O

L

 
P

A

N

T

-
G

L

A

S

Y
 
G

E
L
L
I

8

P
O

7

1

4

7

0

6

7

D

r

a

i

n

2

5

4

0

1
7

Bank

1

1

A

N

G

U

S

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

8

1

9

4

4

2

3

W

i
n

d

s

o

r

 

P

l
a

c

e

2

4

5
9

2

0

6

8

2

156.1m

2

5

P

a

t

h

 

(

u

m

)

E

l
 
S

u

b

 
S

t
a

D

r

a

i

n

22

11

Gov

D

r
a

i
n

1

8

5

1

4

8

W
IN

GFIE
LD S

TREET

1

7

Vicarage

1

1

0

3

4

8

2

Hall

1

3
8

3

3

5

0

1

9

Level

137.2
m

13

4

5

4

7

8

5

2

4

1

0

7
0

2

5

9

D

a

n

y

d

e

r
i
 
T

e

r
r
a

c

e

2

F

r

o

n

h

e

u

l

o

g

H

I
L

L

S

I
D

E

 
C

L

O

S

E

Gas

2

4

1

3

9

1

12

1

1
2

Shelter

6

1

2

2

5

2
1

3

2

PH

M
aes-y

-B
ry

n

3

3

1
0

(dis)

O

ld
 
D

a
n
y
d
e
r
i

Issues

D

r
a

i
n

Collects

3

2

P

a

t
h

 
(
u

m

)

158.8m

D

r
a

i
n

D

r

a

i

n

Hafod-tanglwys-isaf

T

r

a

c

k

7

2

5

1

7
7

5

4

1

9

2

3

5

3

7

a

150.6m

1

3

4

1

1

1

4

1

2

4

6

6

5

0

1

3

1

.
1

m

3

0

21

6

1
6

8

4

128.9m

R
O

A
D

A
B

E
R

F
A

N

7

4

Level

Shaft

(dis)

1
0

133.5m

1

0

4
5

Centre

D

r

a

i

n

B

4

2

8

5

Recycling Facility

FB

Path

Builders

D

r

a

i

n

C

a
p
e
l

1

8

1

O

R

C

H

A

R

D

 

C

L

O

S

E

R

A

I

L

W

A

Y

 

C

L

O

S

E

2

3

1

2

1

9

7

1

 
t
o

 
6

/ The Baptist Church

Recreation

Ground

Play Area

1

5

7

.

9

m

b

Ruin

Hall

Shelter

Collects

Allotment

Sports Pavilion

1

8

St Benedict's

RC Church

Presbytery

127.7m

Aberfan

Eglwys y Bedyddwyr

Merthyr Vale

126.2m

3

9

House

Pennant

Bungalow

Old Oak

Hafan

Lluestai

2

1

P

a

r

k

 

V

i

e

w

2

1

5

1

a

2

1

1

6

1

1

6

1

1

4

1

5

2

2

1

3

1

8

a

War

3

6

1

9

3

0

2

5

1

3

1

1

6

1

6

1

1

7

6

8

1

5

7

5

2

4

7

4

1

3

2

2

5

1

9

5

1

1

8

1

2

7

1

0

9

1

1

1

3

1

0

5

1

0

4

A

 

4

7

0

D

r

a

i

n

B

R

Y

N

T

A

F

LB

Garage

H

o

u

s

e

S

p

r

i

n

g

f

i

e

l

d

T

e

r

r

a

c

e

G

r

i

f

f

i

t

h

1

5

7

.

9

m

G

l

y

d

L

l

e

t

t

y

W

A

L

T

E

R

'

S

 

T

E

R

R

A

C

E

Memorial

Y

n

y

s

o

w

e

n

 

N

u

r

s

e

r

y

 

S

c

h

o

o

l

C

l

u

b

Windsor Place

B

e

l

l

e

v

u

e

 

T

e

r

r

a

c

e

House

Lena

Club

MP 20.25

N

I

X

O

N

V

I

L

L

E

Villas

B

r

i

d

g

e

P

e

r

t

h

i

g

l

e

i

s

i

o

n

A

B

E

R

F

A

N

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

Belle Vue

C

a

r

t

r

e

f

l
e

D

r
a

i
n

D

r

a

i

n

D

r

a

i

n

D

r
a

i
n

E

T

L

Issues

Perthygleision

D

r

a

i

n

D
r
a
i
n

8

7

8

1

7

6

7

0

FB

D

r

a

i

n

S

T

R

Y

D

 

A

L

B

E

R

T

A

 

/

 

A

L

B

E

R

T

A

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

2

2

9

8

9

2

Aberfan Park

Gardens

3

8

Play Area

Fern Bank

Ford

O

a

k

v

i
l
l
e

Oak Villa

Rhos

P

a

t

h

 

(

u

m

)

Merthyr Vale

Issues

Ford

Ford

Pen

Rev. Amendment Date Drawn Ck'd

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWING NO.:

REV.:

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN: CHECKED: APPROVED:

@ A1

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT TITLE:

MERTHYR TYDFIL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

ENGINEERING DIVISION

UNIT 20

MERTHYR TYDFIL INDUSTRIAL PARK

PENTREBACH

MERTHYR TYDFIL

CF48 4DR

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey

100025302 "You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute

or sell any of this data to third parties in any form."

© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2016 Arolwg Ordnans

100025302 "Ni chaniateir i chwi gopio, tan-drwyddedu, dosbarthu

neu werthu y data yma i unrhyw drydydd barti mewn unrhyw ffurf"

Purpose of Issue

S2 - Suitable for Information

P01May 2019

1:2,000MSMSLD

MT0062-MER-01-XX-DR-Z-0001

Proposed Traffic Regulation Orders

MT-000062

Traffic Regulation Order

E

N

S

W

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

PETITION HIGH STREET TRELEWIS 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 A petition was received from residents of High Street Trelewis in relation to an 

appeal against a decision not to grant parking permits to residents of no’s 1 to 20 
High Street. Receipt of the petition was confirmed by Full Council on the 19th June 
2019.  

 
1.2 This report sets out the findings of the Council. 
 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 The findings be approved. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 A petition was received by the Engineering Department and was confirmed by Full 

Council on the 19th June 2019 from residents of High Street Trelewis requesting 
that:- 

 
“We the undersigned are the residents of High Street Trelewis and are writing to you 
to appeal against the decision not to grant parking permits to residents of High Street 
(numbers 1 to 20). The problem of parking is problematic especially after 5pm in the 
evenings and on weekends. Residents have more than one vehicle per house and 
also residents from Railway Street park their cars and work vans without moving for 

Date Written 4th October 2019 

Report Author Martin Stark 

Service Area Engineering 

Committee Division Portfolio 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 23rd October 2019 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



days. When this happens the residents are unable to park anywhere near our 
houses. We are asking for parking permits.” 

 
 

4.0 FINDINGS 
 
4.1. The Council has a Parking Permit Policy for dealing with requests for residents’ 

parking schemes. 
 
4.2 The policy indicates that should the available on-street parking be 85% occupied 

over the average of four survey visits then it would be considered that the street was 
eligible for a scheme to be introduced.  

 
4.3 Traffic surveys were recently carried out and the average parking occupancy was 

found to be 74%. The average occupancy is less than the 85 % requirement and 
therefore the street is not eligible for a scheme to be introduced. 

 
 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
 

6.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are the sustainable development principles identified which 

Page 26



demonstrate that the five ways of working will be used in investigating the issues 
reported, examples include carrying out parking surveys and investigating issues. 
 
No negative impacts have been identified against the Well-being Objectives, the 
Sustainable Development Principles, Protected Characteristics and Welsh Language 
and Biodiversity. 
 

 

 
JUDITH JONES  
CHIEF OFFICER NEIGHBOURHOOD 
SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES  
CABINET MEMBER FOR 

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES, 
PLANNING & COUNTRYSIDE 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

File ref. H10.0 
 
 

Ongoing Traffic Management Section, 
Engineering Department, Unit 5 

Pentrebach 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 
 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Corporate Sustainability Programme – Budget 
Reduction Proposals 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 2019/20 to 2022/23 approved by Council 

on 20th March 2019 indicated a projected budget deficit of £8.175 million for 2020/21 
and a cumulative £15 million for the period 2020/21 to 2022/23. 

  
1.2 It is anticipated that the Provisional Local Government Settlement for 2020/21 will be 

published late November 2019. 
 
1.3 It is advisable that prior to Christmas 2019 the Council is able to demonstrate how 

the projected £8.175 million budget deficit for 2020/21 is to be addressed whilst also 
providing indications of its future plans. 

 
1.4 In addressing the projected budget deficits Member workshops were held on 25th 

July 2019 and 12th September 2019 to enable the Council’s Senior Leadership Team 
to share with elected Members proposals for budget reductions. 

 
1.5 The budget reduction proposals were presented to the Joint Scrutiny and Audit 

Committee of 30th September 2019. A number of business cases were considered in 
closed session at Council of 17th October 2019. 

 
1.6 In supporting corporate sustainability, the Council’s Senior Leadership Team 

developed a budget reduction methodology based on prioritisation of services. This 

Date Written 14th October 2019 

Report Author Steve Jones / Andrew Mogford 

Service Area Council-wide 

Committee Division Strategic 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 23rd October 2019 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



reflected the statutory or discretionary nature of Council services in arriving at 
defined budget reduction requirements for each Council Directorate. 

 
1.7 Potential budget savings resulting from the proposals within this report total 

£2,014,155 for 2020/21. 
 
1.8 The numbering of the recommendations listed below mirrors the numbering in the 

appended Directorate schedules. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget assumptions and implementation of 

operational budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the Directorate schedules 
appended to this report, be recommended to Council for noting. 

 
2.2 The freezing of the Planning Team Leader post for three years be recommended to 

Council for approval. 
 
2.3 Highways increased charges options as follows:  
 
2.3.1 The increase in charges for skips permits from £26 to £35 be recommended to 

Council for approval. 
 
2.3.2 The increase in charges for scaffolding permits from £26 to £35 be recommended to 

Council for approval. 
 
2.3.3 The increase in charges for building materials from £27 to £35 be recommended to 

Council for approval. 
 
2.3.4 The increase in charges for drop kerb applications from £80 to £110 be 

recommended to Council for approval. 
 
2.4 The increase in bulky waste collection fees from £18 to £25 be recommended to 

Council for approval. 
 
2.5 The increased fee for Trade Waste Transfer Notes from £20 to £40 be 

recommended to Council for approval. 
 
2.6 The closure of the Council’s Household Waste Recycling Centres on Boxing Day be 

recommended to Council for approval. 
 
2.7 The non-acceptance of paint at the Council’s Household Waste Recycling Centres 

be recommended to Council for approval. 
 
2.8 The removal of the residual waste collection discount to schools be recommended to 

Council for approval. 
 
2.9 The closure of the Household Waste Recycling Centre one day a week and 

reduction of daily opening hours by three hours in the summer months be 
recommended to Council for approval.  

Page 30



 
2.10 The discontinuation of the hire of the weed cutter for Taf Bargoed lake be 

recommended to Council for approval. 
 
2.11 The undertaking of a service user consultation exercise in respect of the transfer of 

building costs to football and rugby teams with the outcomes brought back to Full 
Council for decision, be recommended to Council for approval. 

 
2.12 The undertaking of a public consultation exercise in respect of the switching off of a 

third of streetlights, the non-replacement of columns damaged in road traffic 
collisions and extension of structural testing of columns to every twelve years with 
the outcomes brought back to Full Council for decision, be recommended to Council 
for approval. 

 
2.13 The reduction of security at Cyfarthfa Park by twelve hours per day (Monday to 

Friday) be recommended to Council for approval. 
 
2.14 The removal of the allocation of Revenue Support Grant monies from subsidised 

transport and rationalisation of currently subsidised routes be recommended to 
Council for approval. 

 
2.15 Consultation for the removal of the school bus service between Pentwyn, Quakers 

Yard and Edwardsville School, following the assessment of a safe walking route to 
school, be recommended to Council for approval and a report brought back to 
Council with further recommendations. 

 
2.16 The reduction in support costs to the Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre Business 

Improvement District be recommended to Council for approval. 
 
2.17 The discontinuation of the Help for Pensioners Scheme, offering council tax payment 

assistance to pensioners, be recommended to Council for approval. 
 
2.18 Parking tariff options as follows: 
 
2.18.1 The increase in car parking tariffs (from 70p to £1 for 1hour; from £1.50 to £2 on the 

3 hour tariff; from £3.50 to £4 on the all-day tariff; all of these relate to Monday to 
Friday i.e. no increases to Saturday or Sunday parking tariffs), be recommended to 
Council for approval; 

 
2.18.2 The annual increase of £10 to Annual Permits (zero increases to resident or 

academic permits), be recommended to Council for approval; 
 
2.18.3 The undertaking of the necessary steps to make the order be recommended to 

Council for approval. 
 
2.19 The introduction of a parking tariff for MTCBC staff that want to park at MTCBC 

buildings (namely: Unit 5 Pentrebach; Unit 20 Depot; Integrated Childrens Unit), be 
recommended to Council for approval. 

 

Page 31



2.20 The reduction to the Strategic Education Projects budget be recommended to 
Council for approval. 

 
2.21 The reduction within the Behavioural Support Team resulting from the cessation of a 

fixed term post in August 2020 be recommended to Council for approval. 
 
2.22 Youth Service options as follows: 
 
2.22.1 The utilisation of new grant monies to finance the Youth and Community Officer post 

be recommended to Council for noting. 
 
2.22.2 The removal of the vacant Senior Youth Worker post within the north cluster be 

recommended to Council for approval. 
 
2.22.3 The reduction in the Participation budget, not impacting upon front line service 

delivery, be recommended to Council for approval. 
 
2.23 The renegotiation of the Service Level Agreement with Greenfield School and Cwm 

Taf Morgannwg University Health Board in respect of the school nurse be 
recommended to Council for approval. 

  
2.24 The change of nature of the Youth Orchestra from a Council service to one with 

charitable status be recommended to Council for approval. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 2019/20 to 2022/23 approved by Council 

on 20th March 2019 indicated a projected budget deficit of £8.175 million for 2020/21 
and a cumulative £15 million for the period 2020/21 to 2022/23. 

  
3.2 The main funding assumptions underpinning the MTFP are a Revenue Settlement of 

-1% per annum for the period 2020/21 to 2022/23, a Council Tax increase of 5.99% 
per annum and Central Government funded additional Teachers Pensions costs of 
£1.3 million from 2020/21. 

 
3.3 A MTFP is a rolling programme, continually evolving as further information and 

changing circumstances become known. The Provisional Local Government 
Settlement for 2020/21 is anticipated to be announced late November 2019. The 
Council is required to set its Budget for 2020/21, including the Council Tax increase, 
by 11th March 2020. 

 
3.4 It is advisable that prior to Christmas 2019 the Council is able to demonstrate how 

the projected £8.175 million budget deficit for 2020/21 is to be addressed whilst also 
providing indications of its future plans in supporting the principles of financial 
sustainability.      

  
 
 
 

Page 32



4.0 CORPORATE SUSTAINABILITY 

 
4.1    In addressing the challenges of meeting the projected budget deficits and ensuring 

the financial sustainability of the Council, the Council’s Senior Leadership Team 
(SLT) identified a number of work streams encompassing the financial challenge, the 
prevention agenda, governance, organisational culture and corporate sustainability. 
These work streams were shared with all elected members in a Members Workshop 
on 25th July 2019.       

 
4.2 In focusing on the immediate challenge of addressing the projected budget deficits 

indicated within the MTFP, priority was given to the Corporate Sustainability work 
stream in delivering the required budget reductions for 2020/21 and beyond. 

 
4.3      In developing a methodology to prioritise Council services, in demonstrating financial 

sustainability, all services were categorised based on the following criteria: 
 

1. Statutory Optimised 
2. Statutory Choice 
3. Discretionary Critical 
4. Discretionary 
5. Least Priority 

 
4.4 Based on the categorisation of services a financial modelling exercise was 

undertaken in providing SLT with a number of budget reduction scenarios for 
consideration. An indicative individual ‘bottom line’ budget reduction target was then 
agreed by SLT for each directorate. 

 
4.5 Each appropriate service area has identified a number of proposals in determining 

budget reduction requirements. These proposals were shared with elected Members 
in the Members Workshop of 12th September 2019 and presented to the Joint 
Scrutiny and Audit Committee of 30th September 2019. A number of business cases 
relating to these proposals were considered in closed session at Council of 17th 
October 2019. The remaining proposals, with Business Cases where appropriate, 
are detailed in the following appendices: 

 
o  Appendix 1 – Neighbourhood Services 
o Appendix 2 – Community Regeneration 
o Appendix 3 – Central Services 
o Appendix 4 – Social Services 
o Appendix 5 – Education    

    

5.0    FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
5.1 Potential budget savings incorporated in this report are detailed in Appendices 1 to 5 

and summarised in Table 1. Total proposed savings equate to £2,014,155 for 
2020/21. 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



Table 1 – Potential Budget Savings 
 

Description 2020/21 
£ 

2021/22 
£ 

2022/23 
£ 

2023/24 
£ 

 
Neighbourhood Services 
Community Regeneration 
Central Services 
Social Services 
Education 
 

 
449,122 
215,688 
444,306 
566,880 
338,159 

 
456,896 
216,993 
392,689 
554,890 
345,838 

 
460,350 
218,322 
398,157 
485,500 
346,893 

 
422,984 
219,679 
398,508 
484,250 
347,497 

Total 2,014,155 1,967,306 1,909,222 1,872,918 

 
5.2 It should be noted that the proposals set out in this report form part of the 

programme of change that MTCBC has developed and is implementing in order to 
address long term sustainability.  Further financial savings proposals will be brought 
to Cabinet and full Council meetings in due course.   
 

6.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are that the proposals are critical in ensuring the financial 
sustainability of the Council, thus enabling the continued delivery of essential Council 
services. 
 
A separate Integrated Impact Assessment has been completed for each individual 
Business Case. 

 
 

Page 34



 
ELLIS COOPER 
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR KEVIN O’NEILL 
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Neighbourhood Services Budget Reduction Proposals 2020/21

Ref. Business Case 
No. Proposal

Saving
2020/21

£

Saving
2021/22

£

Saving
2022/23

£

Saving
2023/24

£

FTE 
Loss Effect/Risk Mitigation

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

NS001 n/a Building Control: % of SAB application income to be paid 
to Building Control for providing admin support.

3,300 3,300 3,300 3,300 0 None

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

NS009 n/a Fleet : Reduction of tyre budget 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 0 Current budget is £14k, average spend over 
last 2 years was £8.5k

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

NS018 n/a Grounds Maintenance, Parks & Cemeteries
Remove Taff bargoed van*

3,400 3,500 3,600 3,600 0

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

NS023 n/a Corporate Property & Estates 
Increase income from garage & garden tenancies = £16k
Reduce car allowance budget = £1k
Reduce phones & postage = £1k
Reduce Legal budget = £5k
Increase fees & charges = £0.6k

23,600 23,600 23,600 23,600 0 Garage and Garden tenancies approved by
Cabinet 11/9/19

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

NS024 n/a Office accomodation
Remove vacant cleaner post (unit 5)

5,181 5,181 5,181 5,181 0

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

NS025 n/a Office accomodation
Reduce repairs & maintenance budget (Civic & Unit 5)

5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 0

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

NS026 n/a Office accomodation
Reduce electricity budget (Civic & Unit 5)

5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 0

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

NS027 n/a Office accomodation
Remove vending machines budget

6,550 6,550 6,550 6,550 0

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

NS028 n/a Office accomodation
New water cooler contracts

1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 0 Contract reduced from £2660 to £712.
Requirement will be reviewed at end of
contract.

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

NS029 n/a Office accomodation
Business rates saving on non-occupation of mezzanine - unit 
5

2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 0

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

NS010 n/a Engineering: 
Reduction in Bridge maintenance, Land drainage and Land 
rec budgets ~£23,600
Reduction in Traffic management  budget ~£3200 
Income from SAB applications ~£5000

31,800 31,800 31,800 31,800 0 Reduction to these maintenance budgets 
will result in less reactive maintenance 
being carried out, and work will be 
prioritised.
Potential to increase Traffic Management 
fees & charges (for temporary road closures, 
parking permits, road markings) to offset the 
£3200 reduction in Traffic Management 
budget.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

P
age 37



2.2 The freezing of the Planning Team Leader post for 
three years be recommended to Council for 
approval.

NS002 n/a Planning: Freeze Team Leader post (Grade 9) for 3 years 59,810 59,560 58,970 0 1 The current post holder is seconded from 
VoG Council and will return there in 
December following adoption of the LDP. It 
is proposed that the TL post be frozen for 3 
years, until the LDP review is again required 
and that level of resource is required. 
(Proposed saving allows for one of the 
existing officer posts to be made a principal 
officer).

2.3.1 The increase in charges for skips permits from £26 
to £35 be recommended to Council for approval.

2.3.2 The increase in charges for scaffolding permits 
from £26 to £35 be recommended to Council for 
approval.

2.3.3 The increase in charges for building materials from 
£27 to £35 be recommended to Council for 
approval.

2.3.4 The increase in charges for drop kerb applications 
from £80 to £110 be recommended to Council for 
approval.

2.4 The increase in bulky waste collection fees from
£18 to £25 be recommended to Council for
approval.

NS003 Neigh
BC 1

Waste: 
 Increase bulky waste collection fees from £18 to £25 
(assuming 5%drop off)= £14k

14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 0 Could increase fly tipping. Unlikely but could 
result in a reduction of tonnage collected 
which would reduce the goods for the re-use 
shop.

2.5 The increased fee for Trade Waste Transfer Notes
from £20 to £40 be recommended to Council for
approval.

NS004 Neigh
BC 2

Waste: 
Increase fee for trade Waste Transfer Notes from £20 to £40 
= £10k

9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 0 This could reduce the number of Trade 
customers which would have an adverse 
affect on our recycling target, however when 
the £20 fee was introduced no customers 
were lost.

2.6 The closure of the Council’s Household Waste 
Recycling Centres on Boxing Day be 
recommended to Council for approval.

NS005 Neigh
BC 3

Waste: 
Close HWRC's on boxing day £2k,

2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 None. we are one of the only Council's who 
open on Boxing day.

2.7 The non-acceptance of paint at the Council’s 
Household Waste Recycling Centres be 
recommended to Council for approval.

NS006 Neigh
BC 4

Waste: 
Stop accepting paint at HWRC's  = £39k

38,500 38,500 38,500 38,500 0 Residents may dispose of paint in their 
black bin. Negligible effect on our recycling 
target.

2.8 The removal of the residual waste collection 
discount to schools be recommended to Council for 
approval.

NS007 Neigh
BC 5

Waste: 
Remove residual waste collection discount to schools = £53k

53,160 53,160 53,160 53,160 0 Loss of income if schools use private 
contractor.

2.9 The closure of the Household Waste Recycling 
Centre one day a week and reduction of daily 
opening hours by three hours in the summer 
months be recommended to Council for approval.

NS008 Neigh
BC 6

Close HWRC's one day a week (on alternative days) and 
reduce opening times by 3hrs a day in summer (additional 
opeative at Aberfan at weekends) = £46k

46,000 46,000 47,000 47,000 0 Current hours 9-8pm. Could impact 
negatively on our recycling target but 
unlikely.

2.10 The discontinuation of the hire of the weed cutter 
for Taf Bargoed lake be recommended to Council 
for approval.

NS015 Neigh
BC 12

Grounds Maintenance, Parks & Cemeteries
Stop hiring weed cutter on Taff bargoed lake

8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 0 See Business Case

2.11 The undertaking of a service user consultation 
exercise in respect of the transfer of building costs 
to football and rugby teams with the outcomes 
brought back to Full Council for decision, be 
recommended to Council for approval.

NS016 Neigh
BC 13

Grounds Maintenance, Parks & Cemeteries
Transfer building costs to football and rugby teams, including 
Caeracca which is currently used as a mess room.

41,368 41,368 41,368 41,368 0 See Business Case

2.12 The undertaking of a public consultation exercise in 
respect of the switching off of a third of streetlights, 
the non-replacement of columns damaged in road 
traffic collisions and extension of structural testing 
of columns to every twelve years with the outcomes 
brought back to Full Council for decision, be 
recommended to Council for approval.

NS021 Neigh
BC 16

Street Lighting: 
Switching off a third of street lights £33k - net of £15,800 for 
software and scoping works in year 1 and £13,000 additional 
software in years 2 and 3
Non - replacement of columns damaged in RTC's £20k
Extension of structural testing of columns to every 12 years 
£2,800

40,000 46,100 47,130 66,723 0 See Business Case

2.13 The reduction of security at Cyfarthfa Park by 
twelve hours per day (Monday to Friday) be 
recommended to Council for approval.

NS022 Neigh
BC 17

Grounds Maintenance, Parks & Cemeteries
Reduce security at Cyfarthfa park

36,584 38,408 40,322 42,333 0 See Business Case

Total 449,122 456,896 460,350 422,984 1

8,369 8,369 0 Increase in permit fees may result in 
unlicenced activity and a reduction in 
income, will require enforcement.

NS011 Neigh
BC 8

Highways:
Increase charges for skips permits from £26 to £35 / scaffold 
permits from £26 to £35, building materials from £27 to £35 
and drop kerb applications from £80 to £110.

8,369 8,369

P
age 38



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 8 (2.3.1  2.3.2  2.3.3  2.3.4) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title 
Highways: Increase charges for skip / scaffold permits and 
dropped kerb; (Ref:NS011) 

Date (Insert Version Date) 16th October 2019 (version 2) 

Lead Officer(s) Darren Chaffe 

Project Support Matthew Griffiths 

Service Area Highways 

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

 

The Highways Department has a responsibility for carrying out Highways asset management, 

highways client, highways operations, street lighting, N.R.S.W.A. (Utilities), Emergency Out of 

Hours, winter maintenance operations and issuing skip, scaffolding and drop kerb applications. 

 

 Proposal – Increase permit charges for Skips, Scaffolding, Building Materials and Drop 

Kerb Applications; 

 Skips from £26 to £35 

 Scaffolding from £26 to £35 

 Building Materials from £27 to £35 

 Drop Kerb Applications from £80 to £110 

 Extra income generated £8,369 assuming no drop off in requests 

 

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

Please see image below for current staffing structure. 

Page 39



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 8 (2.3.1  2.3.2  2.3.3  2.3.4) 

 

 

 

 

Legend 

Gully Machine - Caerphilly CBC   

Construction Gang working for RCTCBC  

2 man Land Drainage Gang paid for by Engineering  

Highways Construction Team Capital Monies  

Highways working within Merthyr  

Highways staff to be removed (Vacant post & 

Agency) 

 

 

Change Proposal 

Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

This business case proposes the increase of charges for skip / scaffold permits and dropped kerb 

applications.  

Long Term – this proposal considers the long term sustainability of MTCBC. 

Preventative – Prioritising services across the Authority will allow the Council to focus on its 

preventative agenda. 

Integration – Departments across the authority will need to prioritise services and work together in 

order to meet customer demand.  

Page 40



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 8 (2.3.1  2.3.2  2.3.3  2.3.4) 

 

 

Involvement – Working with other departments across Neighbourhood Services will be key in 

delivering emergency out of hours and winter operations. 

Collaboration – MTCBC will continue to informally collaborate with other authorities, which may 

involve finding more innovative approaches and reporting methods. 

The advantages and disadvantages of the proposal are set out below. 

Advantages 

The advantages of this proposal are to provide MTCBC with financial sustainability and raising 

income for the Authority. 

Disadvantages 

Permits may not be applied for resulting in unauthorised works and may require more 

enforcement work. 

 

 

 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
No positive or negative impacts have been identified.  

 

Page 41



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 8 (2.3.1  2.3.2  2.3.3  2.3.4) 

 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

The timescales for this business case is to implement by April 2020. 

Key milestones include: 

- Joint overview scrutiny and audit committee 

- Council decision 

- Consultation 

- Implementation 

 
 
Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

 

Description 

 Increase Skips, Scaffolding, Building Materials & Drop Kerb Applications Permit Charges 

for  

 Skips from £26 to £35 

 Scaffolding from £26 to £35 

 Building Materials from £27 to £35 

 Drop Kerb Applications from £80 to £110 

Benefits of this option 

- Increased income 

- MTCBC financial sustainability 

 

Consequences of this option 

- Capacity to police and monitor areas if permits are not applied for 

 

Risks 

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Works carried out without a 

permit 

Treat – involvement with other 

areas to help with reporting 

works being undertaken 

3 3 9 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Political approval Treat – engage with elected 

members 

5 4 20 

Page 42



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 8 (2.3.1  2.3.2  2.3.3  2.3.4) 

 

 

 

Potential total saving 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings £8,369 £8,369 £8,369 £8,369 

 

Rationale (Accept, Reject, Shortlist) 

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

The increase of charges for skip / scaffold permits and dropped kerb applications.  

Page 43



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 8 (2.3.1  2.3.2  2.3.3  2.3.4) 

 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 16/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 44

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 8 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Highways 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Darren Chaffe 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Darren Chaffe 

Service: 
 

Highways 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

16th October 2019 (Version 2) 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
The business case proposes the increase of charges for skip / scaffold permits and dropped kerb applications. 

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 45



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 8 

 

 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 

Well-being Objectives? Please 
place an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

  X This will not have a positive or 
negative impact on the Best Start to 

Life objective. 

N/A 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

  X This will not have a positive or 
negative impact on the Working Life 

objective. 

N/A 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

  X This will not have a positive or 
negative impact on the environmental 

wellbeing objective. 

N/A 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

  X This will not have a positive or 
negative impact on the Living Well 

objective. 

N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

P
age 46



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 8 

 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

 
  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 

This proposal considers the long term sustainability of MTCBC. None 

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 

Prioritising services across the Authority will allow the Council 
to focus on its preventative agenda. 

None 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

Departments across the authority will need to prioritise 
services and work together in order to meet customer demand. 

None 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

MTCBC will continue to informally collaborate with other 
authorities, which may involve finding more innovative 

approaches and reporting methods. 

None 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

Working with other departments across Neighbourhood 
Services will be key in delivering emergency out of hours and 

winter operations. 

None 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

P
age 47



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 8 

 

 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to positive 

impacts and/or mitigate any 
negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  X This proposal does not have an impact 
on this Protected Characteristic. 

N/A 

Disability 
 

  X As above N/A 

Gender Reassignment 
 

  X As above N/A 

Marriage and Civil Partnership 
 

  X As above N/A 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  X As above N/A 

Race 
 

  X As above N/A 

Religion or Belief 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sex (Gender) 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sexual Orientation 
 

  X As above N/A 

Welsh Language 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

  

P
age 48



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 8 

 

 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  X This proposal does not have an 
impact on maintaining and enhancing 
biodiversity and ecosystem resilience. 

N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
Outline Business Case 

 Page 49



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 8 

 

 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
No positive or negative impacts have been identified.  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 50



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 8 

 

 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to do? Estimated 

completion date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposal to elected 

member workshops 

September 2019 JJ 4 weeks In progress 

Present proposals to 

Cabinet/Council 

September 2019 JJ 8 weeks In progress 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council approval 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Judith Jones 
 

Job Title: Chief Officer Neighbourhood Services 
 

Approval date: 20/09/2019 

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 1 (2.4) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title Increase Bulky Item charges  

Date (Insert Version Date) 02/09/2019 

Lead Officer(s) Paul Davies  

Project Manager Paul Davies  

Service Area Waste Management  

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
 

Bulky Item Service 

The service provides a bulky furniture collection service to residents finding it difficult to take 

larger items to the HWRC, this could be because of transport or size issues. 

 

This is not a statutory function but contributes to the overall target set by Welsh Government and 

also the SOAP. 

 

The bulky item service is the main collection service which will provide material for the re-use 

shop. 

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

 

The service is carried out by 2 members of staff with 1 vehicle (no change)   

 

 

Change Proposal 

Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

To increase the price of the service from £18 to £25, we are presuming that this will cause a 5% 

reduction in requests and this is reflected in the saving. 

Advantage – increase income  

Disadvantage – reduction in stock for the re-use shop (if the 5% drop materialises) 

                          Increase in fly-tipping      

Page 53



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 1 (2.4) 

 

 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
There are no positive or negative impacts identified for this proposal. 
 

 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

The timescales for this business case is to implement by April 2020. 

Key milestones include: 

- Joint overview scrutiny and audit committee 

- Council decision 

- Consultation 

- Implementation  

 

  

Page 54



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 1 (2.4) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

Option 1 – 

Option 1 description 

Increase charges for bulky Items collections   

Benefits (advantages) of this option 

Increase income  

Consequences (disadvantages) of this option 

 Limited stock for re-use shop 

Risks –  

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

No stock for the reuse shop  Tolerate 2 2 4 

Reduction in targeted tonnage  Tolerate 3 3 9 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Political approval Treat – engage with elected 

members 

5 4 20 

 

Potential total saving 

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings £14,000 £14,000 £14,000 £14,000 

 

 

Rationale  

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

Increase charges for bulky Items collections   

 

  

Page 55



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 1 (2.4) 

 

 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 16/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

Page 56

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 1 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Increase Bulky Items Charges 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Paul Davies 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Paul Davies 

Service: 
 

Waste 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

4th September 2019 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
To increase the price of the service from £18 to £25, we are presuming that this will cause a 5% reduction is requests and this is reflected in the saving. 

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 57



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 1 

 

 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

  X There are no positive or negative 
impacts identified against this 

objective. 

N/A 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

  X As above N/A 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

  X As above N/A 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

  X As above N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

P
age 58



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 1 

 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

 
  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

This proposal considers the long term sustainability of MTCBC. N/A 

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

Prioritising services across the Authority will allow the Council 
to focus on its preventative agenda. 

N/A 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

N/A N/A 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

N/A N/A 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

N/A N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

P
age 59



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 1 

 

 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 
Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive or 
negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X in 

the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be taken 
to better contribute to positive 

impacts and/or mitigate any negative 
impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  X There are no positive or negative 
impacts identified against this protected 

characteristic. 

N/A 

Disability 
 

  X As above N/A 

Gender Reassignment 
 

  X As above N/A 

Marriage and Civil Partnership 
 

  X As above N/A 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  X As above N/A 

Race 
 

  X As above N/A 

Religion or Belief 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sex (Gender) 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sexual Orientation 
 

  X As above N/A 

Welsh Language 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

  

P
age 60



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 1 

 

 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  X There are no positive or negative 
impacts against maintaining and 

enhancing biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 

N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
Outline Business Case 
 

 

P
age 61



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 1 

 

 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
There are no positive or negative impacts identified for this proposal. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 62



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 1 

 

 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposal to elected 

member workshops 

September 2019 JJ 4 weeks Complete 

Present proposals to 

Cabinet/Council 

September 2019 JJ 8 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council approval 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Judith Jones 
 

Job Title: Chief Officer Neighbourhood Services 
 

Approval date: 04/09/2019 

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 2 (2.5) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title Increase in Charges for Waste Transfer Notes  

Date (Insert Version Date) 03/09/2019 

Lead Officer(s) Paul Davies / Lisa Tomkins 

Project Manager Paul Davies  

Service Area Waste Management  

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

 
The EPA 1990 requires authorities to “arrange for the collection of commercial waste, if 
requested (s45 (1)(b)) and a reasonable charge may be made for its collection.(s.45(4))” 
i.e. should a request be made by a business to collect commercial waste, the statutory 
waste collection (and disposal) authority, must make the necessary arrangements and 
should recover all related cost.  
All businesses produce waste and most types of business waste are classed as 
controlled waste, they have a legal responsibility to ensure they produce, store, transport 
and dispose of controlled waste without harming the environment. A Waste Transfer Note 
is a document that confirms and details the transfer from one person (or business) to 
another. Every time you pass on, have collected, or received waste from another party, it 
must be covered and certified by a WTN by law. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council currently has approximately 450 business 
customers. 
 

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

 

One member of staff handles the issue and monitoring of returns of Waste Transfer Notes 

in the County Borough from those businesses using our collection services. 

There would be no change to staffing. 

 

 

Page 65



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 2 (2.5) 

 

 

Change Proposal 
Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council currently charges £20 for administration and provision of a 

Waste Transfer Note to businesses. 

The advantage to increasing the cost for this service to £40 would be increased revenue and also 

customers who use our free collection services only are more inclined to advise of a business 

closure on receipt of a bill (which they often don’t advise us of currently). Thus increasing income 

and reducing time sending crews unnecessarily to businesses who may no longer be trading or 

trading under new management. 

One possible disadvantage is that some businesses may cancel their contract; there is no way to 

gauge the effect of the change. When the £20 charge was introduced we didn’t experience any 

loss of customers. 

There are no HR, Procurement or Legal implications. 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
 0of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impact is the aiding of education of local businesses on how to dispose of 
waste correctly. 

 

Page 66



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 2 (2.5) 

 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

 

This could be introduced on April 1st 2020 alongside all other price increases with one months’ 

notice as is our procedure annually. 

 

 

  

Page 67



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 2 (2.5) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

Option 1 – Increase cost of Waste Transfer Notes 

Option 1 description 

Increase in charges for Waste Transfer notes from £20 to £40 

Benefits (advantages) of this option 

- Increased revenue 

- Reducing time sending crews unnecessarily to businesses who may no longer be 

trading 

Consequences (disadvantages) of this option 

- Potential for businesses to cancel contracts and a subsequent loss of income. 

 

Risks –  

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Businesses cancelling contracts Tolerate 3 2 6 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Political approval Treat – engage with elected 

members 

5 4 20 

 

Potential total saving 

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings £9,000 £9,000 £9,000 £9,000 

 

 

Rationale  

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

Increase cost of Waste Transfer Notes   

Page 68



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 2 (2.5) 

 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 16/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

Page 69

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 2 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Increase in charges for Waste Transfer Notes 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Paul Davies 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Paul Davies 

Service: 
 

Waste 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

4th September 2019 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
Increase in charges for Waste Transfer Notes 

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 70



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 2 

 

 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

  X There are no positive or negative 
impacts identified against this 

objective. 

N/A 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

  X As above N/A 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

  X As above N/A 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

  X As above N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

P
age 71



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 2 

 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

 
  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

This charge helps work toward making our collection service 

cost neutral and brings the authority closer in line with other 

authorities and private contractors. 

N/A 

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

This ensures every customer; including those using solely free 
collection services are more aware of their legal responsibilities 

and duty of care with regards to waste disposal and 
documentation. 

N/A 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

With MTCBC focus on using resources efficiently, this is all 
part of pricing services correctly 

N/A 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

As with introducing Direct Debit and paying in advance rather 
than arrears, charging for services supplied brings us in line 

with other MTCBC departments. 

N/A 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

Invoicing those businesses gives an opportunity to educate 
and supply information on other recycling services. 

N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

P
age 72



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 2 

 

 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 
Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive or 
negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X in 

the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be taken 
to better contribute to positive 

impacts and/or mitigate any negative 
impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  X There are no positive or negative 
impacts identified against this protected 

characteristic. 

N/A 

Disability 
 

  X As above N/A 

Gender Reassignment 
 

  X As above N/A 

Marriage and Civil Partnership 
 

  X As above N/A 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  X As above N/A 

Race 
 

  X As above N/A 

Religion or Belief 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sex (Gender) 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sexual Orientation 
 

  X As above N/A 

Welsh Language 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

  

P
age 73



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 2 

 

 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

X   It aids education of local businesses 
on how to dispose of waste correctly. 

N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
Outline Business Case 

 

P
age 74



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 2 

 

 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
 0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impact is the aiding of education of local businesses on how to dispose of 
waste correctly. 

 
 

 

Page 75



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 2 

 

 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposal to elected 

member workshops 

September 2019 JJ 4 weeks Complete 

Present proposals to 

Cabinet/Council 

September 2019 JJ 8 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council approval 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Judith Jones 
 

Job Title: Chief Officer Neighbourhood Services 
 

Approval date: 04/09/2019 
 

P
age 76



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 3 (2.6) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title Close HWRC’s on Boxing Day 

Date (Insert Version Date) 02/09/19 

Lead Officer(s) Paul Davies / Christian Jones 

Project Manager Paul Davies 

Service Area Waste Services 

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

HWRC’s are provided by MTCBC for the public to dispose of their domestic waste/recycling 

throughout the year. 

 

This is a statutory function that needs to be provided. 

 

There is no Statutory obligation however to open the sites on boxing day.    

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

 

4 x operatives on Grade 3 Treble time 

1 x supervisor on grade 5 at treble time 

2 x drivers on grade 4 at treble time.    

 

 

 

  

Page 77



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 3 (2.6) 

 

 

Change Proposal 

Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

Proposal is to close on boxing day. Saving would be £2000.  

There are no legal or statutory obligations. 

Boxing day is generally a quiet day at the HWRC’s and public footfall is really low.  

The long term aspect for this proposal is to assist with the financial sustainability of the Council. 

The involvement will be to include Corporate Management Team and Senior Leadership to 

challenge and accept options and proposals. 

By informing the public of the closure this will prevent any fly tipping outside the gates of the 

HWRC sites as the public could visit not knowing the site is closed and leave their waste at the 

gate. 

The departments across the Council will need to prioritise services and work together to meet the 

funding gap 

 

Advantages 

 Saving of £2000 – not paying treble time to operatives 

 Improved working moral 

 Improves Health and Safety on site as the site would not be open without a permit holder.  

Disadvantages 

 No access to the sites on Boxing Day for members of the public. 

 Potential of increase of fly tipping but this would be unlikely as the sites are predominantly 

really quiet on Boxing Day. 

 Decrease in Recycling tonnages but again the risk of this happening would be highly 

unlikely as the HWRC’s are predominantly quiet on Boxing Day and will re-open on the 

27th December as normal.     

 

  

Page 78



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 3 (2.6) 

 

 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

3 of 5 0 of 5 2 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 1 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are:  
 

 Saving of £2000 

 Site operatives, Supervisors and drivers get their day rest after Christmas. 

 Improved working moral 

 
 
The main negative impacts are: 
 

 No access to the sites on Boxing Day for members of the public. 

 Potential of increase of fly tipping but this would be unlikely as the sites are predominantly 

really quiet on Boxing Day. 

 Decrease in Recycling tonnages but again the risk of this happening would be highly 

unlikely as the HWRC, s are predominantly quiet on Boxing Day and will re-open on the 

27th December as normal.     

 
 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

Would Require 

 1 months’ Notice to send communications out to the public. 

 Staff can be notified in this time period of 1 month. 

Page 79



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 3 (2.6) 

 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

 

1. Option 1 –  

Option 1 Description 

Close HWRC Sites on Boxing Day 

Benefits of this option 

 Saving of £2000 

 Site operatives, Supervisors and drivers get their day rest after Christmas. 

 Improved working moral 

 Consequences of this option 

 No access to the sites on Boxing Day for members of the public. 

 Potential of increase of fly tipping but this would be unlikely as the sites are predominantly 

really quiet on Boxing Day. 

 Decrease in Recycling tonnages but again the risk of this happening would be highly 

unlikely as the HWRC, s are predominantly quiet on Boxing Day and will re-open on the 

27th December as normal.     

  

Risks –  

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Decrease in recycling tonnages Tolerate 1 2 2 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Political Acceptance TREAT – to engage political 

members in the proposal 

1 2 2 

 

Potential total saving 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings £2,000 £2,000 £2,000 £2,000 

 

Rationale (Accept, Reject, Shortlist) 

Page 80



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 3 (2.6) 

 

 

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

To close the HWRC sites on Boxing day. 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 16/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

 

Page 81

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 3 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Close HWRC’s on Boxing Day 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Paul Davies / Christian Jones 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Paul Davies 

Service: 
 

Waste Services 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

02/09/19 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
 

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 82



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 3 

 

 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 
 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

  x Closing the HWRC’s on boxing day 
will not impact on children’s learning 

or on their best start to life. 

The HWRC’s provide the general 
public with the opportunity to dispose 
of their waste/Recycling currently for 
363 days a year with the exception of 
Christmas Day and New year’s day. 
Closing on boxing day as well would 

have no impact on this. 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

  x Closing the HWRC’s on boxing day 
will not impact on Working Life. 

The HWRC’s provide the general 
public with the opportunity to dispose 
of their waste/Recycling currently for 
363 days a year with the exception of 
Christmas Day and New year’s day. 
Closing on boxing day as well would 

have no impact on this. 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

  x Closing the HWRC’s on boxing day 
will not impact on environmental 

wellbeing. 

The HWRC’ s provide the general 
public with the opportunity to dispose 
of their waste/Recycling currently for 
363 days a year with the exception of 
Christmas Day and New year’s day. 
Closing on boxing day as would not 
have an impact on environmental 

well-being. 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 

  x Closing the HWRC’s on boxing day 
will not impact on Living Well. 

The HWRC’s provide the general 
public with the opportunity to dispose 
of their waste/Recycling currently for 

P
age 83



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 3 

 

 

 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

363 days a year with the exception of 
Christmas Day and New year’s day. 
Closing on boxing day as well would 

have no impact on this. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 84



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 3 

 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

 
  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

Provides long term sustainability within waste management   

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

With no Manager on site this will prevent any breach of health 
and safety and permit regulations in the future.  

 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

This will integrate with most other Authorities who already 
close on boxing day 

 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

All collaborative partners such as MVH are currently closed on 
boxing day 

 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

Communications will be readily available to inform General 
public.  

 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 85



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 3 

 

 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 
Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

 
Protected  

Characteristics 
Does your proposal have a positive or 

negative impact on service users, 
employees and/or the wider 

community, including the nine 
protected characteristic groups and 

Welsh language? Please place an X in 
the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be taken 
to better contribute to positive 

impacts and/or mitigate any negative 
impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  x Has no impact on this N/A 

Disability 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Gender Reassignment 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Marriage and Civil Partnership 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Race 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Religion or Belief 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Sex (Gender) 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Sexual Orientation 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Welsh Language 
 

  x Has no impact on this N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

  

P
age 86



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 3 

 

 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  X NO IMPACT  

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
 
 

 

P
age 87



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 3 

 

 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

3 of 5 0 of 5 2 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are:  
 

 Saving of £2000 

 Site operatives, Supervisors and drivers get their day rest after Christmas the same as the 

rest of the authority 

 Improved working moral 

 Improves Health and Safety on site as the site would not be open without a permit holder 

being in work to manage the daily operations 

 
The main negative impacts are: 
 

 No access to the sites on Boxing Day for members of the public 

 Potential of increase of fly tipping but this would be unlikely as the sites are predominantly 

really quiet on Boxing Day 

 Decrease in Recycling tonnages but again the risk of this happening would be highly 

unlikely as the HWRCs are predominantly quiet on Boxing Day and will re-open on the 27th 

December as normal  

Page 88



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 3 

 

 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposal to elected 

member workshops 

September 2019 JJ 4 weeks Complete 

Present proposals to 

Cabinet/Council 

September 2019 JJ 8 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council approval 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Judith Jones 
 

Job Title: Chief Officer Neighbourhood Services 
 

Approval date: 04/09/2019 

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 4 (2.7) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title Stop accepting paint at HWRC’s 

Date (Insert Version Date) 02/09/19 

Lead Officer(s) Paul Davies/ Christian Jones 

Project Manager Paul Davies 

Service Area Waste Services 

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

HWRC’s are provided by MTCBC for the public to dispose of their domestic waste/recycling 

throughout the year. This is a statutory function that needs to be provided for by the local 

Authority. 

 

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

 

4 x HWRC operatives on Grade 3 Daily 

1x site supervisor on grade 5 at 37 hours per week 

2 x drivers on grade 4 37 hours per week 

1 x site manager 37 hours per week on grade 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 4 (2.7) 

 

 

Change Proposal 

Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

To stop accepting paint at the HWRC’s as it is costing approx. £39k to dispose of. 

The general public can dispose of empty paint pots/cans in their weekly recycling 

There will be no HR or procurement involvement as there are no staff or contracts involved.  

Advantages 

 Saving of £38,500 

Disadvantages 

 Potential increase of fly tipping 

 Possible reduction of recycling tonnages (this will be little to no impact on recovery rates) if 

the public don’t recycle the empty paint tins. 

 

 

 

 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

1 of 5 0 of 5 4 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 

Page 92



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 4 (2.7) 

 

 

The main positive impacts are: 
 

 Saving of £38,500 

 Monitor/record paint contamination at sites more accurately 

 
 
The main negative impacts are: 
 

 Potential increase of fly tipping 

 Reduction of recycling tonnages ( this will be little to no impact on recovery rates)  

 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

 

 April 2020. Notice to send communications out to the public advising that paint is no 

longer required and how to dispose of paint and recycle empty paint tins. 

 

  

Page 93



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 4 (2.7) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.    
 

Option 1 – Stop accepting paint at HWRC sites 

Option 1 Description 

Stop accepting disposal of paint at HWRC’s. 

Benefits of this option 

 Saving of £38,500 
  
Consequences of this option 

 Possible increase of fly tipping 

 Reduction of recycling tonnages ( this will be little to no impact on recovery rates)  

 Need for communication to the public to advise of alternative ways to responsibly dispose 

of paint. 

 

 Risks –  

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Increase in hazardous waste 

being fly tipped 

Need to monitor this to see if fly 

tipping figures have increased 

and if the increase is due to 

paint being fly tipped. 

3 2 6 

     

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Need good communication to 

ensure the public dispose of 

paint responsibly and recycle 

empty tins 

Tolerate 2 2 4 

     

 

Potential total saving 

Page 94



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 4 (2.7) 

 

 

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Costs (Uplifts etc.)     

Savings £38,500 £38,500 £38,500 £38,500 

Other     

 

Rationale (Accept, Reject, Shortlist) 

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

Stop accepting disposal of paint at HWRC’s. 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 16/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

Page 95

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 4 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

To stop accepting paint at HWRC’s 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Paul Davies / Christian Jones 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Paul Davies 

Service: 
 

Waste Services 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

02/09/19 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
To stop accepting paint at the HWRC sites 
 

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 96



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 4 

 

 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive or 
negative impact on the Council’s Well-
being Objectives? Please place an X in 

the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or 

mitigate any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get the 
best start to life and are equipped 
with the skills they need to be 
successful learners and confident 
individuals. 

  x Stopping accepting paint will not 
impact on children’s learning or on 
their best start to life. 

 

Working Life 
People feel supported to develop 
the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses with a 
developing, safe infrastructure 
making Merthyr Tydfil an attractive 
destination. 

  x Stopping accepting paint at 
HWRC’s will not impact on Working 

Life. 

 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment and 
countryside. 

  x Stopping paint disposal at the 
HWRC’s will not impact on the 

Environmental wellbeing objective. 

The HWRCs provide the general public with the 
opportunity to dispose of their waste/Recycling 

free of charge for all their materials. Putting 
charges in place for DIY waste such as paints is 

the most common and sustainable answer to 
which other Authorities are currently looking at 

or implementing to maintain the opening of 
HWRC’s during financial pressures. 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel safe 
and enjoy good physical and 
mental health. 

  x Stopping paint disposal/treatment 
on HWRC’s will not impact on living 

well 

 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 97



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 4 

 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

 

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

Provides long term sustainability within waste management   

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

Stopping paint disposal enables us to be more sustainable and 
manage budget costs going forward. Also allows us to have 

better control over contamination. By stopping accepting paint 
this could encourage public to keep the paint for any patching 

work etc, and also in conjunction with communications the 
recyclable paint pots will assist in the Council recycling target 

 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

Integrating with other departments is going to be essential if 
this is to work going forward. Key to have close links with 

Support services and One stop shop. 

 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

Collaboration working with other departments is going to be 
essential if this is to work going forward. Key to have close 
links with Support services, fly tipping team and One stop 

shop. 

 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

Communications to the General public will need to be 
programmed and filtered out over a period of time. FAQ,s will 

have to be written and put in place for support services to 
answer any queries.  

 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 98



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 4 

 

 

 

Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 
Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

 
Protected  

Characteristics 
Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  x Has no impact on this N/A 

Disability 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Gender Reassignment 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Race 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Religion or Belief 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Sex (Gender) 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Sexual Orientation 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Welsh Language 
 

  x Has no impact on this N/A 

P
age 99



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 4 

 

 

 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

 
Biodiversity 

 
Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  X NO IMPACT  

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
 
 

 

P
age 100



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 4 

 

 

 

3. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

5. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

6. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

1 of 5 0 of 5 4 of 5 

7. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

8. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are …  
 

 Saving of £39000 

 Monitor/record paint contamination at sites more accurately 

 
 
The main negative impacts are … 
 

 Potential increase of fly tipping 

 Reduction of recycling tonnages ( this will be little to no impact on recovery rates)  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 101



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 4 

 

 

 

4. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposals to 

elected member 

workshops 

September 2019 JJ 4 weeks Complete 

Present proposals to 

Cabinet/Council 

September 2019 JJ 8 weeks Complete 

 
5. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council approval 9th October 2019  

 

6. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Judith Jones 
 

Job Title: Chief Officer Neighbourhood Services  
 
Approval date: 04/09/2019 

P
age 102



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 5 (2.8) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title Internal Waste Charges  

Date (Insert Version Date) 09/09/2019 

Lead Officer(s) Paul Davies / Lisa Tomkins  

Project Manager Paul Davies  

Service Area Waste Management  

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

 
The EPA 1990 requires authorities to “arrange for the collection of commercial waste, if 
requested (s45 (1)(b)) and a reasonable charge may be made for its collection.(s.45(4))” 
i.e. should a request be made by a business to collect commercial waste, the statutory 
waste collection (and disposal) authority, must make the necessary arrangements and 
should recover all related cost.  
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council currently has approximately 450 business 
customers. Of these customers 86 contracts are for educational establishments within 
MTCBC who are internal customers and receive an approximate 50% discount on their 
residual waste collections. They also receive free recycling collections.  
 
 

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

 

One member of staff handles notifying businesses of price changes every April in the 

borough for those businesses using our collection services.  

There would be no change to staffing. 

 

Page 103



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 5 (2.8) 

 

 

 

Change Proposal 
Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council currently charges approximately 50% of the standard 

external customer price for residual waste collections to educational establishments. There are 86 

contracts and from these we currently receive approximately £107,899 income per annum from 

the residual collections.  

The advantage to increasing the cost for this service would be increased revenue.  

Were we to reduce the discount from approximately 50% to 25% this would result in an 

approximate increase to £148,798 per annum. An increase of approximately £40,899. This is 

assuming no customers cancel their contract.  

Were we to remove the discount in its entirety, this would see an increase to £197,823 per 

annum. An increase of approximately £89,924 per annum, again assuming no customers cancel 

their contract. 

One possible disadvantage is that some businesses may cancel their contract; there is no way to 

gauge the effect of this. WRAP recently estimated where residual prices increase in line with 

external charges, 43 of the 86 customers may find a cheaper deal elsewhere; where we still give 

a 25% discount, 23 may find a cheaper deal elsewhere. 

Though it must be remembered that for every tonne of residual waste we stop collecting we avoid 

any possible financial penalty if we do not reach our recycling target.  

It may well be that we lose very little residual waste and the educational establishments prioritise 

free recycling to cut their waste collection costs. 

It is also a possibility that any cancelled contracts may keep their free recycling service this would 

be the ideal situation. 

There is no HR, Procurement or Legal implications to the best of my knowledge. 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

Page 104



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 5 (2.8) 

 

 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are education of waste correctly being disposed of positive impact on 
biodiversity and increase in recycling rates.    
 
No negative impacts have been identified 
 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

This could be introduced on April 1st 2020 alongside all other price increases with one months’ 

notice as is our procedure annually. 

 

  

Page 105



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 5 (2.8) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

Option 1 –  

Option 1 description 

The proposal is to charge internal customers the same as external customers  

Benefits (advantages) of this option 

Increase in revenue  

Consequences (disadvantages) of this option 

Drop off in recycling from internal customers   

  

Risks –  

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Loss of recycling  Tolerate  2 2 4 

     

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Political  Treat / councillor workshop  3 3 9 

     

 

Potential total saving 

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Costs (Uplifts etc.) 50%    

Savings £53,160 £53,160 £53,160 £53,160 

Other N/A    

 

 

Rationale  

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

To charge internal customer the same rate as external customers.  

Page 106



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 5 (2.8) 

 

 

 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 16/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 107

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 5 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Internal Waste Charges  

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Lisa Tomkins 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Paul Davies  

Service: 
 

Waste Management  

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

09/09/2019 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
Internal waste charges 

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 108



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 5 

 

 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

  X There will no impact  

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

  X There will no impact  

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

  X There will no impact  

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

  X There will no impact  

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 109



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 5 

 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

 
  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

This charge helps work toward making our collection service 

cost neutral and brings the authority closer in line with other 

authorities and private contractors. 

 

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

  

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

With MTCBC focus on using resources efficiently, this is all 
part of pricing services correctly 

 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

As with introducing Direct Debit and paying in advance rather 
than arrears, charging for services supplied brings us in line 

with other MTCBC departments. 

 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

Removing the discount gives an opportunity to focus on other 
recycling services. 

 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 110



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 5 

 

 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive or 
negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X in 

the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be taken 
to better contribute to positive 

impacts and/or mitigate any negative 
impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  X There will no impact  

Disability 
 

  X There will no impact  

Gender Reassignment 
 

  X There will no impact  

Marriage and Civil Partnership 
 

  X There will no impact  

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  X There will no impact  

Race 
 

  X There will no impact  

Religion or Belief 
 

  X There will no impact  

Sex (Gender) 
 

  X There will no impact  

Sexual Orientation 
 

  X There will no impact  

Welsh Language 
 

  X There will no impact  

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

  

P
age 111



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 5 

 

 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

X   It aids education of local businesses 
on how to dispose of waste correctly. 

 

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
 
 

 

P
age 112



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 5 

 

 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

5. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

6. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

7. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

8. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are education of waste correctly being disposed of positive impact on 
biodiversity and increase in recycling rates.    
 
No negative impacts have been identified 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 113



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 5 

 

 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposal to elected 

member workshops 

September 2019 JJ 4 weeks Complete 

Present proposals to 

Cabinet/Council 

September 2019 JJ 8 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Judith Jones 
 

Job Title: Chief Officer Neighbourhood Services  
 

Approval date: 09/09/2019 
 

P
age 114



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 6 (2.9) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title Close HWRC 1 day a week and reduce hours by 3 hours a day. 

Date (Insert Version Date) 02/09/19 

Lead Officer(s) Paul Davies / Christian Jones 

Project Manager Paul Davies 

Service Area Waste Services 

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

HWRC’s are provided by MTCBC for the public to dispose of their domestic waste/recycling 

throughout the year. This is a statutory function that needs to be provided by the local Authority. 

 

The majority of Local Authorities are under huge financial pressures each year managing the 

HWRC budget, this is becoming increasingly more difficult. The majority of Authorities close 1 to 2 

days per week and also close earlier in the evenings to try to reduce costs.   

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

 

5 x HWRC operatives on Grade 3 37 hours per week 

1x site supervisor on grade 5 37 hours per week  

2 x drivers on grade 4 37 hours per week.  

1 x site manager 37 hours per week on grade 7. 

2.5 x Agency operatives on 37 hours per week to cover the summer rota which lasts for 7 months.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 115



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 6 (2.9) 

 

 

Change Proposal 

Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

The proposal is to reduce the HWRC’s opening times in the summer months and also close both 

sites 1 day per week on alternate quieter days (probably Tuesday/Thursday) these are the 

quietest days based on footfall monitoring, and provide an additional operative at Aberfan during 

summer weekends. The sites are currently open 9am-8pm in the summer, the exact revised times 

are to be agreed but are likely to be 10-6pm in order to provide people time after work to use the 

sites. 

            Advantages 

 Saving of £46 000 

 Reduction in overflowing bins. 

 

Disadvantages 

 Possible increase of fly tipping 

 Possible reduction of recycling tonnages/percentages but not certain as we would still 

anticipate the material coming through the HWRC’s on the days we open.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
2 of 4 0 of 4 2 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

2 of 5 0 of 5 3 of 5 

Page 116



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 6 (2.9) 

 

 

 Involvement 
 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are …  
 

 Saving of £46 000 

 Reduction in overflowing Skips. 

 Allows time slots for litter picking and team meetings at the start of shifts. 

 
 
The main negative impacts are … 
 

 Possible increase of fly tipping 

 Possible reduction of recycling tonnages/percentages but unlikely as we would still 

anticipate the material coming through the HWRC’s on the days we open.  

 

 
 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

Would Require 

 2 months’ notice to send communications out to the public. 

 New rotas for staff but would not affect full time employees working hours as all 

anticipated savings will come from agency workers. 

 

All the above could be set up and in be in place within 2 months 

 

 

  

Page 117



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 6 (2.9) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

 

1. Option 1 – Close HWRC on alternate days and reduce opening hours in summer 

months, and provide extra cover in Aberfan on weekends during the summer. 

Option 1 Description 

Close HWRC’s 1 day per week on alternate days and reduced hours in the summer months 

and provide extra cover for Aberfan on weekends in summer months. 

 Benefits of this option 

 Saving of £46 000 

 Reduction in overflowing bins as drivers will have these days for catch up. 

 Cleaner HWRC’s 

 Working moral as none of the Staff enjoy working until 8pm 

 Allows time slots for litter picking and team meetings at the start of shifts. 

 Consequences of this option 

 Possible increase of fly tipping 

 Possible reduction of recycling tonnages/percentages but unlikely as we would still 

anticipate the material coming through the HWRC’s on the days we open.  

 Public have less time to use the HWRC’s 

  

Risks –  

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Negative reaction from 

members of the public. 

Treat - Would need to monitor 

this and record all incidents in 

the site log. 

3 3 9 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Political Acceptance TREAT – Engage political 

members 

2 3 6 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 118



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 6 (2.9) 

 

 

Potential total saving 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings £46,000 £46,000 £47,000 £47,000 

 

Rationale (Accept, Reject, Shortlist) 

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

Closure of HWRC sites on alternate days and reduction in hours during summer months 

(with additional cover at Aberfan on summer weekends). 

 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 16/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk. 

Page 119

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 6 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Close HWRC on alternate days and reduce opening times by 3 hours a day. 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Paul Davies /Christian Jones 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Paul Davies 

Service: 
 

Waste Services 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

03/09/19 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 

Close HWRC on alternate days and reduce opening times by 3 hours a day. 
 

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 120



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 6 

 

 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 
 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

x   Close HWRC’s 1 day per week on 
alternate days, 3 hours earlier closing 
in summer months  and provide extra 
cover for Aberfan on weekends will 

impact on best start to life as it 
teaches children from a young age to 
be more sustainable in the way they 

manage their waste. 

The HWRC’s provide the public with 
the opportunity to dispose of their 

waste/recycling free of charge for all 
their materials. Closing HWRC’s 
earlier in the evenings and days 

during the week is becoming the norm 
amongst our closest neighbouring 

authorities and provides a sustainable 
answer to current operational issues 

and financial constraints. 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

  x Close HWRC’s 1 day per week on 
alternate days, 3 hours earlier closing 
in summer months and provide extra 
cover for Aberfan on weekends will 

not impact on Working life. 

The HWRC’s provide the public with 
the opportunity to dispose of their 

waste/recycling free of charge for all 
their materials. Closing HWRC’s 
earlier in the evenings and days 

during the week is becoming the norm 
amongst our closest neighbouring 

authorities and provides a sustainable 
answer to current operational issues 

and financial constraints. 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

  x Close HWRC’s 1 day per week on 
alternate days, 3 hours earlier closing 
in summer months  and provide extra 
cover for Aberfan on weekends will 
not impact on environmental well-

The HWRC’s provide the public with 
the opportunity to dispose of their 

waste/recycling free of charge for all 
their materials. Closing HWRC’s 
earlier in the evenings and days 

P
age 121



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 6 

 

 

 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

being.  during the week is becoming the norm 
amongst our closest neighbouring 

authorities and provides a sustainable 
answer to current operational issues 

and financial constraints. 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

x   Close HWRC’s 1 day per week on 
alternate days, 3 hours earlier closing 
in summer months  and provide extra 
cover for Aberfan on weekends will 
positively  impact on living well as it 

teaches all of us to be more 
sustainable in the way we manage 

our waste. 

The HWRC’s provide the general 
public with the opportunity to dispose 

of their waste/Recycling free of 
charge for all their materials. Closing 
HWRC’s earlier in the evenings and 

days during the week is becoming the 
norm amongst our closest 

neighbouring authorities and provides 
a sustainable answer to current 
operational issues and financial 

constraints. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 122



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 6 

 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 
  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

Provides long term sustainability within waste management 

As most Authorities are starting to close sites and reduce 

hours to offset management and running costs of their 

HWRC’s 

 

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

Closing HWRC’s 1 day per week and reducing hours is 
preventing us from a possible breach of our permit as the 
stand down days will give us opportunity to clear heavy 

backlog of waste and recycling.  

 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

Integrating with other departments is going to be essential if 
this is to work going forward. It is going to be key to have close 

working links with Support services and communications 
department. 

 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

Collaborative working with other departments is going to be 
essential if this is to work going forward. It is going to be key to 

have close links with Comms, fly tipping team and One stop 
shop. 

 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

Communications with the public will be programmed over a 
period of time. FAQ’s will be written and put in place for 

support services to answer any queries. Monitoring of footfall 
will determine which day will close. 

 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 123



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 6 

 

 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive or 
negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X in 

the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be taken 
to better contribute to positive 

impacts and/or mitigate any negative 
impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  x Has no impact on this N/A 

Disability 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Gender Reassignment 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Marriage and Civil Partnership 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Race 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Religion or Belief 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Sex (Gender) 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Sexual Orientation 
 

  X Has no impact on this N/A 

Welsh Language 
 

  x Has no impact on this N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

  

P
age 124



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 6 

 

 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  X NO IMPACT  

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
 
 

 

P
age 125



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 6 

 

 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
2 of 4 0 of 4 2 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

2 of 5 0 of 5 3 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are …  
 

 Saving of £46 000 

 Reduction in overflowing bins as drivers will have these days for catch up. 

 Cleaner HWRC’s 

 Working Moral as none of the Staff enjoy working until 8pm 

 Allows time slots for litter picking and team meetings at the start of shifts. 

 
The main negative impacts are … 
 

 Possible increase of fly tipping 

 Possible Reduction of recycling tonnages/percentages but uncertain as we would still 

anticipate the material coming through the HWRC’s on the days we open.  

 
 
 
 

 

Page 126



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 6 

 

 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposal to elected 

member workshops 

September 2019 JJ 4 weeks Complete 

Present proposals to 

Cabinet/Council 

September 2019 JJ 8 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council approval 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Judith Jones 
 

Job Title: Chief Officer Neighbourhood Services 
 

Approval date: 20/09/2019 

P
age 127



T
his page is intentionally left blank



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 (2.10) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title 
Stop hiring weed cutter on Taff Bargoed lake (Ref: NS015) 
 

Date (Insert Version Date) 10th September 2019 

Lead Officer(s) Robert Barnett 

Project Manager Robert Barnett 

Service Area Grounds Maintenance 

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

Every year, MTCBC hires an external contractor to clear Taff Bargoed lake of weeds. This allows 

the lake to be used for activities such as canoeing and angling. 

 

This is not a statutory service. 

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

This proposal does not affect any staff. 

Change Proposal 
Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

The proposal is to stop hiring weed cutter on Taff Bargoed Lake. 

 

Long Term – this proposal considers the long term sustainability of MTCBC 

Preventative – Prioritising services across the Authority will allow the Council to focus on its 

preventative agenda. 

Integration – Departments across the authority will need to prioritise services and work together in 

order to meet customer demand. 

Involvement – Working with users of the park to identify a way forward to continue activities on 

the lake 

Collaboration – This function could be potentially be funded by the income from the micro hydro 

Page 129



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 (2.10) 

 

 

The advantages and disadvantages of the proposal are set out below. 

Advantages 

The advantages of this proposal are to provide MTCBC with financial sustainability, and it 

provides the Friends of Park Taff Bargoed the opportunity to take responsibility for maintenance 

of the lake. 

Disadvantages 

- Decrease in the number of users 

- Weed growth could prevent angling and canoe activities 

- Lake eventually could become overgrown preventing use. 

- Speed up silting of the lake 

 

  

Page 130



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 (2.10) 

 

 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

1 of 5 0 of 5 4 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impact is increased volunteer activity. 
 
 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

Council approval 30th September 

Implement by April 2020. 

Key milestones include: 

- Joint overview scrutiny and audit committee 

- Council decision 

- Consultation. HR and Union engagement for redundancy consultation 45 days. 

-  

 

  

Page 131



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 (2.10) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

Option 1 

Option 1 description 

The proposal is to stop hiring a weed cutter on Taff Bargoed Lake. 

Benefits (advantages) of this option 

- MTCBC financial sustainability 

- Provides the Friends of PTB with the opportunity to take responsibility for the 

maintenance of the lake. 

 

Consequences (disadvantages) of this option 

- Decrease in the number of users 

- Weed growth will prevent angling and canoe activities 

- Lake eventually would become overgrown.  

- Speed up silting of the lake 

  

Risks –  

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Weeds excessive, activities still 

taking place such as canoeing – 

potential incident 

Treat – decision to be made on 

whether activities can still go 

ahead. Or users to set up own 

volunteer group to fund  

5 3 15 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Political acceptance Treat - Engage with political 

members 

5 4 20 

 

Potential total saving 

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings £8,000 £8,000 £8,000 £8,000 

 

 

 

Page 132



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 (2.10) 

 

 

Rationale  

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

Stop hiring a weed cutter on Taff Bargoed Lake. 

  

Page 133



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 (2.10) 

 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 16/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 134

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

The proposal is to stop hiring a weed cutter on Taff Bargoed Lake. 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Robert Barnett 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Robert Barnett 

Service: 
 

Grounds Maintenance 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

10th September 2019 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
The proposal is to stop hiring a weed cutter on Taff Bargoed Lake. 

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 135



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 

 

 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 
 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

  X This will not have a positive or 
negative impact on the Best Start to 

Life objective. 

N/A 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

  X This will not have a positive or 
negative impact on the Working Life 

objective. 

N/A 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

  X This will not have a positive or 
negative impact on the environmental 

well-being objective as the income 
from the micro hydro could pay for the 

weed cutter to continue. 

Potential to fund treatment from the 
micro hydro 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

  X This will not have a positive or 
negative impact on the living well 

objective. 

N/A 

P
age 136



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 

 

 

 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

P
age 137



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 

 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

 
  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

Continued weed clearance will prevent choking of lake and 

ensure continued water based activities 

N/A  

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

Prioritising services across the Authority will allow the Council 
to focus on its preventative agenda. 

 
 

N/A 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

Departments across the authority will need to prioritise 
services and work together in order to meet customer demand. 

N/A 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

This function could potentially be funded by the income from 
the micro hydro via the ‘Friends of Taff Bargoed’ 

N/A 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

Working with users of the park to identify a way forward to 
continue activities on the lake 

Stakeholders will need to become involved in volunteer 
activities such as weed clearance 

N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

P
age 138



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 

 

 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

 
Protected  

Characteristics 
Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  X This proposal does not have an 
impact on this Protected 

Characteristic. 

N/A 

Disability 
 

  X As above N/A 

Gender Reassignment 
 

  X As above N/A 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 
 

  X As above N/A 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  X As above N/A 

Race 
 

  X As above N/A 

Religion or Belief 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sex (Gender) 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sexual Orientation 
 

  X As above N/A 

P
age 139



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 

 

 

 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Welsh Language 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

 

  P
age 140



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 

 

 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  X This will not have a positive or a 
negative effect on maintaining and 

enhancing biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience. 

Potential to fund treatment from the 
micro hydro 

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
Outline Business Case 
 

 

P
age 141



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 

 

 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

5. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

6. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

1 of 5 0 of 5 4 of 5 

7. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

8. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impact is increased volunteer activity. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 142



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 12 

 

 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposal to elected 

member workshops 

September 2019 JJ 4 weeks  

Present proposals to 

Cabinet/Council 

September 2019 JJ 8 weeks  

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council approval 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Judith Jones 
 

Job Title: Chief Officer Neighbourhood Services 
 

Approval date: 04/09/2019 

P
age 143



T
his page is intentionally left blank



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 (2.11) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title Transfer building costs to football and rugby teams. (Ref: NS016) 

Date (Insert Version Date) 10th September 2019 

Lead Officer(s) Robert Barnett 

Project Manager Robert Barnett 

Service Area Grounds Maintenance 

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

In 2014 fees and charges were increased for sports field users in an effort to make the service 

more sustainable.  At that time it was decided that the changing room utility costs would remain 

funded by the Council. 

 

If the Council were to transfer these costs to the teams then the financial reduction in expenditure 

would be £41,000 approximately.  

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

There are no staff attached to the business case 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 145



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 (2.11) 

 

 

Change Proposal 

Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

The proposal is to transfer building costs to football and rugby teams. This relates to 9 sites. 

The advantages will be that the money saved will go towards the financial sustainability of the 

Council. 

The disadvantages:- The towns football and rugby teams will need to fund the cost of the 

buildings. This may decrease the number of teams which may make the league unsustainable 

and have a negative impact on participation rates, fitness, and wellbeing of individuals.   

If playing fields are no longer required for league games then the maintenance of these pitches 

may be reduced 

 

 

  

Page 146



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 (2.11) 

 

 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
No positive or negative impacts have been identified. 
 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

Council approval 30th September 

Implement by April 2020. 

Key milestones include: 

- Joint overview scrutiny and audit committee 

- Council decision 

- Consultation. HR and Union engagement for redundancy consultation 45 days. 

-  

 

  

Page 147



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 (2.11) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

Option 1 – Transfer cost of buildings to participating teams and clubs 

Option 1 description 

The proposal is to transfer building costs to football and rugby teams 

Benefits (advantages) of this option 

- MTCBC financial sustainability 

Consequences (disadvantages) of this option 

- Clubs might go outside the County Borough for their sport 

- Decrease in individuals participation rates affecting health and well being 

 

 Risks –  

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Loss of more teams in Merthyr 

leagues 

Tolerate 4 4 16 

Decrease in participation Tolerate 3 3 9 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Political acceptance Treat – engage with political 

members 

5 4 20 

Acceptance from external 

agencies - Merthyr League, 

FAW, Sports Wales 

Tolerate 3 4 12 

 

 

Potential total saving 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings £41,368 £41,368 £41,368 £41,368 

 

 

Rationale  

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Page 148



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 (2.11) 

 

 

Recommendation 

Transfer cost of buildings to participating teams and clubs, be approved. 

  

Page 149



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 (2.11) 

 

 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

   

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

   

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

   

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 150

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Transfer building costs to football and rugby teams, (including Caeracca 
which is currently used as a mess room) 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Robert Barnett 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Robert Barnett 

Service: 
 

Grounds Maintenance 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

10th September 2019 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
Transfer building costs to football and rugby teams. 

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 151



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 

 

 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 
 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

  X This will not have a positive or 
negative impact on the Best Start to 

Life objective. 

Explore asset transfer of facilities to 
the users enabling them to fund raise 

and access grants that the council 
can’t. 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

  X This will not have a positive or 
negative impact on the Working Life 

objective. 

Explore asset transfer of facilities to 
the users enabling them to fund raise 

and access grants that the council 
can’t. 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

  X This will not have a positive or 
negative impact on the Environmental 

Well-being objective. 

Explore asset transfer of facilities to 
the users enabling them to fund raise 

and access grants that the council 
can’t. 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

  X This will not have a positive or 
negative impact on the Living well 

objective. 

Explore asset transfer of facilities to 
the users enabling them to fund raise 

and access grants that the council 
can’t. 

P
age 152



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 

 

 

 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

P
age 153



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 

 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

The proposal seeks to address the long term sustainability of 

playing field buildings e.g. changing rooms, by transferring 

the costs to those teams that use them. 

 
 

Empower users and the community to take on costs.  
Investigate asset transfer to stakeholders. 

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

 
This proposal aims to address the issue of sustainably 

financing the building’s associated with playing football and 

rugby in order to prevent their loss.  

As above 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

 
 

N/A 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

 
Departments across the Authority, such as Estates and Parks 

will need to prioritise services and work together. 

N/A 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

The proposal gives the opportunity for communities to work 
together and be involved in ensuring the building facilities 
remain available for use by the public. 

Explore asset transfer of facilities to the users enabling them to 
fund raise and access grants that the council can’t. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 154



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 

 

 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

 
Protected  

Characteristics 
Does your proposal have a positive 

or negative impact on service 
users, employees and/or the wider 

community, including the nine 
protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  X This proposal does not have a direct 
impact on this Protected 

Characteristic. 

N/A 

Disability 
 

  X As above N/A 

Gender Reassignment 
 

  X As above N/A 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 
 

  X As above N/A 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  X As above N/A 

Race 
 

  X As above N/A 

Religion or Belief 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sex (Gender) 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sexual Orientation 
 

  X As above N/A 

P
age 155



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 

 

 

 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service 

users, employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Welsh Language 
 

  X As above N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

 

  P
age 156



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 

 

 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  X This proposal will have no impact on 
biodiversity. 

 

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
Outline Business Case 
 

 

P
age 157



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 

 

 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

5. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4  of 4 

6. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

7. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

8. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
No positive or negative impacts have been identified. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 158



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 13 

 

 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposal to elected 

member workshops 

September 2019 JJ 4 weeks  

Present proposals to 

Cabinet/Council 

September 2019 JJ 8 weeks  

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council approval 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Judith Jones 
 
Job Title: Chief Officer Neighbourhood Services 

 
Approval date: 20/09/2019 

P
age 159



T
his page is intentionally left blank



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 (2.12) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title Highways – Street Lighting  

Date (Insert Version Date) 2nd September 2019 

Lead Officer(s) Darren Chaffe/Chris Ridout 

Project Manager Sian Lyons-Nicholas 

Service Area Highways – Street Lighting 

Purpose of the Business Case  

 
Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

The Street Lighting section of Highways proposal for a 20% budget saving, as part of the 

Council’s efficiency plan. 

 

The Highways Department makes a direct contribution to the Council’s wellbeing objectives, by 

being committed to providing people who live, work and travel within Merthyr Tydfil to benefit from 

a well maintained highway network and infrastructure, which we do by carrying out minor and 

major street-lighting repairs. 

 

As a highway authority the Council has an absolute duty under Section 41(1) of the Highways Act 

1980, to maintains its highway and keep the fabric of the highway in such good repair as to render 

its physical condition safe for ordinary traffic to pass during all seasons of the year.  The Council 

has delegated its responsibility to the Highways Department to ensure that these duties are 

carried out, in line with the legislation.   

 

The Highways Department currently has the responsibility for street lighting maintenance, which 

maintains 7,500 Street Lights within the County Borough. The Council does not have an 

obligation to illuminate the highway but MUST maintain lighting systems to BS EN 13201 and 

BS5489 standards, where they are in use. Switching off the lights would require a risk 

assessment due to the potential adverse impact upon public safety, wellbeing and potential 

increase in crime and antisocial behaviour. 

 

This business case incorporates three individual elements of savings within the Street Lighting 

section. They are as follows: 

 Proposal 1 - Switching off a third of streetlights (£33k saving); 

 Proposal 2 - Non-replacement of columns damaged in road traffic collision’s 

(RTC's) (£20k saving); and 

 Proposal 3 - Extension of structural testing of 5,000 aluminium columns to every 12 

years (£2,800 saving). 

 

Page 161



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 (2.12) 

 

 

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

 

 

Job Title Number of Staff 

Currently 

Number of Staff should the 

proposed change be approved 

Street Lighting Engineer 0.5 (core funded) 0.5 (core funded) 

Street Lighting Electrician  0.5 (sub-contracted, SSE) 0.5 (sub-contracted, SSE) 
 

 

 

Change Proposals 
Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

This business case contains three individual proposals:  

- Switching off a third of streetlights;  

- Non-replacement of columns damaged in RTC's; and   

- Extension of structural testing of 5,000 aluminium columns to every 12 years. 

 

Long Term – The cashable savings from the proposals in this paper will act to enable the long 

term sustainability of MTCBC (addressing the number one corporate risk for MTCBC). 

Preventative – By reducing the carbon and energy footprint there will be improved biodiversity. In 

addition, lowering energy and carbon emissions would lessen environmental damaged. 

Integration – By implementing the proposed changes, the Street Lighting section will need to work 

more closely with Community Safety to monitor and where possible mitigate crime within the 

County Borough.   Links will also need to be made with Customer Services as they will be the 

gatekeepers for potential complaints. 

Involvement – The Street Lighting department will consult with stakeholders and the community to 

gain valuable knowledge of any crime/safety issues within the Borough.   

Collaboration – By implementing the proposed changes, the Street Lighting department will need 

to work more closely with partners such as the South Wales Police to monitor and mitigate crime 

within the Borough. 

The advantages and disadvantages of the proposal are set out below. 

Advantages 

 The advantages of this proposal are to provide MTCBC with financial sustainability and 

reduce costs for the Authority. 

 Less environmental damaged – lower energy and carbon emissions 

 Explore the opportunities to apply to become dark sky certified, and if successful, could 

Page 162



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 (2.12) 

 

 

increase tourism within Merthyr Tydfil.  

Disadvantages 

 Switching off lights would require risk assessment due to potential adverse impact upon 

public safety, wellbeing and the potential increase in crime and antisocial behaviour.  

 Where lighting units are permanently switched off, the Council will still have an obligation 

to maintain them by having them both structurally and electrically tested. Further work will 

be required to explore the potential use and procurement of software that will enable the 

Street Lighting section to alternate the street lights on a rotational basis. 

 If not in regular use, the equipment within the lighting units will degrade and may require 

complete replacement if they are to be brought back into use at a later date.  

 Where lighting units are permanently switched off, MTCBC will be required to remove the 

fuse from each of the unused street lights for public safety. 

 After 12 months of non-usage the energy supplier can insist that the supply be removed 

from the lighting column or feeder pillar at a cost of £350 per column / pillar. 

 Potential increase of reports/complaints of faulty lighting impacting on resources. 

 Potential negative impact on the reputation of the Council. 

. 

 

 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
2 of 4  0 of 4 2 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5  0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10  0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are:  
 

Page 163



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 (2.12) 

 

 

 to provide MTCBC with financial sustainability; 

 This would positively impact on the Environmental Wellbeing objective of the corporate 
wellbeing plan (Focus on the Future) as the carbon footprint will be reduced. Lowering 
energy and carbon emissions would have a positive impact on biodiversity and lessen 
environmental damage. 

 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

Proposal 1 - Switching off a third of streetlights (£33k saving) 

 Need to establish which critical areas or ‘conflict zones’ would require several consecutive 

streetlights to remain on, including pedestrian crossings, junctions, schools, town centre 

area with high pedestrian usage during late night and roundabouts, consultation will be 

required with the road safety officer to ensure safe routes to school are assessed – this 

would take approximately 5 days.  

 Further work will be required to explore the potential use and procurement of software that 

will enable the Street Lighting department to alternate the street lights on a rotational 

basis. 

 

Proposal 2 - Non-replacement of columns damaged in road traffic collision’s (RTC's) (£20k 

saving) 

 This proposed change element of the Street Lighting Business Case could be 

implemented immediately. 

Proposal 3 - Extension of structural testing of 5,000 aluminium columns to every 12 years (£2,800 

saving) 

 This proposed change element of the Street Lighting Business Case could be 

implemented immediately. 

 

 

  

Page 164



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 (2.12) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

Proposal 1  

Proposal 1 description 

This option refers to switching off a third of streetlights which will achieve the savings of £33k. 

There are currently 7500 street lights; therefore, this proposed change will be to switch off 

approximately a third of the street lights. 

 

It must be noted that it is not feasible to strictly switch off every other streetlight as there will be 

critical areas that will need several consecutive streetlights to remain on (conflict zones e.g. 

crossings, junctions, schools town centres and roundabouts). A review will be undertaken to 

establish those areas where the lights and signage must remain on. Further work will be required 

to explore the potential use and procurement of software that will enable the Street Lighting section 

to alternate the street lights on a rotational basis. This is necessary to prevent the degradation of 

the lighting equipment and to mitigate the risk of additional energy supplier costs derived from non-

usage. 

 

Benefits (advantages) of this proposal 

 The advantage of this proposal is to provide MTCBC with financial sustainability 

 This proposal would positively impact on the Environmental Wellbeing objective of the 

corporate ‘Focus on the Future’ wellbeing plan as the carbon footprint will be reduced. In 

addition, lowering energy and carbon emissions would have a positive impact on 

biodiversity and lessen environmental damaged. 

 Explore the opportunities to apply to become dark sky certified, and if successful, could 

increase tourism within Merthyr Tydfil. 

 Cost of a new software system will produce savings in the longer term. 

Consequences (disadvantages) of this proposal 

 Switching off street lights would require risk assessment due to potential adverse impact 

upon public safety, wellbeing and the increase in crime and antisocial behaviour. 

 Where lighting units are permanently switched off the Council will still have an obligation to 

maintain them by having them both structurally and electrically tested. Further work will be 

required to explore the potential use and procurement of software that will enable the Street 

Lighting section to alternate the street lights on a rotational basis. The cost of the software 

will be £41,800. The implementation of this would be unlikely by the 1st April 2020. 

 If not in regular use, the equipment within the lighting units will degrade and may require 

complete replacement if they are to be brought back into use at a later date.  

 After 12 months of non-usage the energy supplier can insist that the supply be removed 

from the lighting column or feeder pillar at a cost of £350 per column / pillar. 

 The potential increase of reports/complaints of faulty lighting  

 Inadequate lighting could result in potential corporate manslaughter charges or third party 

insurance claims made against the Council that would incur more cost and impact on the 

reputation of the Council, however the risk based approach should avoid this. 

  

Risks –  

 

Page 165



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 (2.12) 

 

 

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

After 12 months of non-usage 

the energy supplier can insist 

that the supply be removed 

from the lighting column or 

feeder pillar at a cost of £350 

per column / pillar. 

Potentially there are 2500 

columns which may be 

switched off. If WPD removes 

the supply this could cost the 

Council - £875,000  

Treat – To mitigate the risk of 

the energy supplier costs, we 

will explore the potential use of 

software, which will enable the 

Street Lighting department to 

alternate the lights on a 

rotational basis which would 

eradicate / reduce the risk.    

4 3 12 

If the Council want to switch the 

lighting units back on in the 

future there could be major 

issues with the degradation of 

lighting equipment which could 

potentially cost us to renew. 

Treat - To mitigate the risk of the 

degradation, we will explore the 

potential use of software, which 

will enable the Street Lighting 

department to alternate the 

lights on a rotational basis and 

remove this risk.  

4 3 12 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Councillors and Public 

resistance to the proposed 

changes 

Tolerate 2 2 4 

 

Potential total saving 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Option 1 Savings (net)* 17,200 23,300 26,930 43,923 

 

* After the deduction of £15,800 in year 1 for software and scoping works and £13,000 in 

years 2 & 3 for additional software.  

Electricity costs assume a 10% tariff increase year on year. 

 

Rationale  

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

Recommendation 

Switching off a third of streetlights.  

Page 166



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 (2.12) 

 

 

Proposal 2 – 

Proposal 2 Description 

This option refers to the non-replacement of lighting columns and non-essential signage 

damaged in road traffic collision’s (RTC's) due to uninsured drivers which will achieve the 

savings of £20k.  

 

The Council would be required to repair and replace any damaged street lighting columns that 

have been identified in the conflict zones, including pedestrian crossings, junctions, schools, town 

centre area with high pedestrian usage during late night and roundabouts. 

 

Benefits of this proposal 

 The advantages of this proposal are to provide MTCBC with financial sustainability 

 Less environmental damage – lower energy and carbon emissions 

 

Consequences of this proposal 

 A risk assessment would be required to assess the potential risk of non-replacement to 

both the public and road users. 

 

Risks –  

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

N/A     

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Councillors and Public 

resistance to the proposed 

changes 

Tolerate 2 2 4 

 

Potential total saving 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 

 

 

 

 

Page 167



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 (2.12) 

 

 

Rationale  

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

Non-replacement of columns damaged in road traffic collisions. 

 

Proposal 3  

Proposal 3 Description 

 

This option refers to the extension of structural testing of 5,000 aluminium columns to every 

12 years (from 6 years), which will achieve the savings of £2,800.  

 

The design life on these columns are 40+ years. Currently the Council tests approximately 1,000 

per annum and the proposed change will look to test 500 per annum. The remaining 2500 concrete 

and steel columns will be tested as normal. 

 

Benefits of this proposal 

 The advantage of this proposal is to provide MTCBC with financial sustainability. 
 

Consequences of this proposal 

  Reduced historical data collection of the condition of the asset. 

  

Risks –  

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Minimal risk as aluminium 

columns have a 40 year design 

life. 

Tolerate 2 2 4 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

     

 

Page 168



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 (2.12) 

 

 

Potential total saving 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 

 

Rationale (Accept, Reject, Shortlist) 

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

Extension of structural testing of 5,000 aluminium columns to every 12 years. 

 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 16/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

Page 169

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Highways – Street Lighting 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Darren Chaffe 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Darren Chaffe 

Service: 
 

Highways – Street Lighting 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

04/09/2019 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
This business case incorporates three individual elements of savings within the Street Lighting section. They are as follows: 

 Proposal 1 - Switching off a third of all streetlights  

 Proposal 2 - Non-replacement of columns damaged in road traffic collision’s (RTC's) and 

 Proposal 3 - Extension of structural testing of columns to every 12 years 

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 170



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 

 

 

 

  

 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 
 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

  x 

The changes within this proposal do 
not positively or negatively impact the 

Best Start to Life objective.   

This integrated impact assessment 
will be reviewed as part of the project 

initiation documentation. 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

x   

Potential opportunities to apply to 
become dark sky certified, which will 

increase tourism. 
 
 

This integrated impact assessment 
will be reviewed as part of the project 

initiation documentation. 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

x   

This would positively impact on the 
Environmental Wellbeing objective of 
the corporate wellbeing plan (Focus 

on the Future) as the carbon footprint 
will be reduced. Lowering energy and 

carbon emissions would have a 

This integrated impact assessment 
will be reviewed as part of the project 

initiation documentation. 

P
age 171



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 

 

 

 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

positive impact on biodiversity and 
lessen environmental damaged. 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

  x 

 A risk assessment would be 
undertaken to assess the impact. The 

Street Lighting department work 
closely with Community Safety (to 
monitor/mitigate crime within the 

County Borough) and  collaborate 
with external partners such as the 

South Wales Police to 
monitor/mitigate crime and antisocial 
behaviour within the County Borough 

. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Concept paper above 

 
 

P
age 172



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 

 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

The cashable savings from the proposals in this paper will act 

to enable the long term sustainability of MTCBC (addressing 

the number one corporate risk for MTCBC). 

This integrated impact assessment will be reviewed as part of 
the project initiation documentation. 

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

By reducing the carbon and energy footprint there will be 
improved biodiversity. In addition, lowering energy and carbon 

emissions would lessen environmental damaged. 

As above. 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

By implementing the proposed changes, the Street Lighting 
department will need to work more closely with internal 

departments, such as Community Safety to monitor/mitigate 
crime within the borough and Customer Services as they will 

be the gatekeepers for potential complaints. 

  As above. 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

By implementing the proposed changes, the Street Lighting 
department will need to work more closely with partners such 
as the South Wales Police to monitor/mitigate crime within the 

Borough. 

As above. 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

The Street Lighting department will involve and communicate 
with stakeholders and the community to gain valuable 

knowledge of any crime/safety issues within the Borough.   

As above. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Concept paper above 

P
age 173



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 

 

 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

 
Protected  

Characteristics 
Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  x This proposal will not have a positive 
or negative effect on the Protected 

Characteristic. 

This integrated impact assessment 
will be reviewed as part of the project 

initiation documentation. 

Disability 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Gender Reassignment 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 

  x As above. As above. 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Race 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Religion or Belief 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Sex (Gender) 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Sexual Orientation 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Welsh Language   x As above. As above. 

P
age 174



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 

 

 

 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Concept paper above 

 

  

P
age 175



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 

 

 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

x   Lowering energy and carbon 
emissions by reducing the amount of 
street lights used would help climate 

change mitigation and lessen 
environmental damaged, which has a 

positive impact on biodiversity and 
ecosystem resilience. 

This integrated impact assessment 
will be reviewed as part of the project 

initiation documentation. 

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
Concept paper above 
 

 

P
age 176



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 

 

 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
2 of 4 0 of 4 2 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are:  

 To provide MTCBC with financial sustainability; 

 This would positively impact on the Environmental Wellbeing objective of the corporate 
wellbeing plan (Focus on the Future) as the carbon footprint will be reduced. Lowering 
energy and carbon emissions would have a positive impact on biodiversity and lessen 
environmental damaged. 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 177



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 16 

 

 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposal to elected 

member workshops 

September 2019 JJ 4 weeks Complete 

Present proposals to 

Cabinet/Council 

September 2019 JJ 8 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Ellis Cooper 
 

Job Title: Deputy Chief Executive 
 

Approval date: 5th September 2019 

P
age 178



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 (2.13) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title Cyfarthfa Park Security 

Date (Insert Version Date) 13/9/19 

Lead Officer(s) Robert Barnett 

Project Manager Robert Barnett 

Service Area Grounds maintenance 

 

Purpose of the Business Case 

This business case considers the service provision of the security at Cyfarthfa Park and provides 3 

operational models to consider. 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

Cyfarthfa Park currently has 24/7 security in place which covers duties such as keeping the park safe, 

locking the gates, reporting to Police, parking control, patrolling the park using an electronic tracking system 

and acting as first responders to any incidents of anti-social behaviour within the park. 

There has always been a security presence in the park, previously in the form of in-house park police and 

since 2014 it has been provided by an external company. 

The park opens at 6am and closes at various times throughout the year (earliest being 4.45pm and latest 

being 9.45pm). It is the responsibility of the security guard to lock/unlock the gates and toilets.  

There has been one major incident in the last 12 months involving a break in and theft of computer 

equipment from the Bothy building.   

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

The security function is currently provided by a private security firm (tender due for renewal) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 179



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 (2.13) 

 

 

Change Proposal 
Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

The proposal consists of the following two options: 

1-  8 hours less security provision per day (16 hours cover per day-Monday to Friday. 24 hours at 

weekends) 

2-  12 hours less security provision per day (12 hours cover per day- Monday to Friday. 24 hours at 

weekends) 

Option 1 - 8 hours less would mean having security during off-peak hours and a reliance on staff already 

there in the day to report any security issues. There would be a reduction of service from 24 hours to 16 

hours Monday to Friday, and no change in service during weekend hours.  

Advantages – assist in financial sustainability of MTCBC, with security being present at the most vulnerable 

times i.e. through the night. 

Disadvantages: – 

Reduced security presence would mean higher risk to the park and museum from anti-social behaviour, 

vandalism and potential theft at times of no cover.  This will be mitigated during daylight hours by the 

presence of park users and Council staff.   

No security presence during the week days would mean duties such as dealing with parking problems 

especially during peak periods being left to the trust or Council personnel.  CCTV would not be monitored 

during the day and the splash pad and playground would have no security presence during times of high 

demand. 

Option 2 - 12 hours less would mean having security during off-peak hours and a reliance on staff already 

there in the day to report any security issues. There would be a reduction of service from 24 hours to 12 

hours Monday to Friday, and no change in service during weekend hours.  

Advantage – assist in financial sustainability of MTCBC, with security being present at the most vulnerable 

times i.e. the night. 

Disadvantages: – 

Reduced security presence would mean higher risk to the park and museum from anti-social behaviour, 

vandalism and potential theft at times of no cover.  This will be mitigated during daylight hours by the 

presence of park users and council staff.   

No security presence during the week days would mean duties such as dealing with parking problems 

being left to the trust or council personnel.  CCTV would not be monitored during the day and the splash 

pad and playground would have no security presence during times of high demand. 

 

 

 

 

Page 180



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 (2.13) 

 

 

 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
1 of 4  0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 1 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
The proposal helps towards the Council meeting its medium term financial plan whilst ensuring 
protection of the museum and park during its most vulnerable times.   
 
 

 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

 

Start date: Security contract due to be renewed by January 2020 with handover from the old 

system on April 1st 2020 

Council approval 30th September 

Implement by April 2020. 

Key milestones include: 

- Joint overview scrutiny and audit committee 

- Council decision 

- Consultation. HR and Union engagement for redundancy consultation 45 days. 

 

  

Page 181



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 (2.13) 

 

 

  

 

Potential total saving 

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Option 1 £23,721    

Option 2 £36,584 £38,408 £40,322 £42,333 

 

 

Rationale  

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

Cyfarthfa Park security Option 2 (provision be reduced by 12 hours per day). 

Page 182



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 (2.13) 

 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 16/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 183

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Cyfarthfa Park Security 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Robert Barnett 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Robert Barnett 

Service: 
 

Ground Maintenance 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

11/19/19 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 

This business case considers the service provision of the security at Cyfarthfa Park and provides 2 operational models to consider. 

 

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(Includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 184



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 

 

 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 
 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

  X  N/A 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

  X  High numbers of park users during 
the day will help to ensure anti-social 

behaviour is kept to a minimum.  
Parks staff will be present during the 

day time.  

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

  X  As above 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

  X  As above 

P
age 185



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 

 

 

 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Business case,  

P
age 186



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 

 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

The proposal ensures protection of the museum and park 
during its most vulnerable times.   

Continued maintenance of the park will ensure people continue 
to visit. 

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

Ensuring public presence and security at the more vulnerable 

times will deter anti-social behaviour and vandalism. 

Raise awareness with parks staff to be vigilant during the 
daytime as a result of reduced security provision. 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

 
Departments across the authority will need to prioritise 

services and work together in order to meet customer demand 

Raise awareness with parks staff to be vigilant during the 
daytime as a result of reduced security provision. 

Collaboration –  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

Collaboration with the Leisure trust.  

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

Reduction in security will mean the public will need to be more 

aware and involved in reporting instances of anti-social 

behaviour 

Involve volunteers and ‘friends of’ Cyfarthfa 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 187



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 

 

 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

 
Protected  

Characteristics 
Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  x   

Disability 
 

  x   

Gender Reassignment 
 

  x   

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 
 

  x   

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  x   

Race 
 

  x   

Religion or Belief 
 

  x   

Sex (Gender) 
 

  x   

Sexual Orientation 
 

  x   

Welsh Language   x   

P
age 188



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 

 

 

 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

 

  

P
age 189



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 

 

 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  X   

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
 

 

P
age 190



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 

 

 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
1 of 4  0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 1 of 1  0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The proposal helps towards the Council meeting its medium term financial plan whilst ensuring 
protection of the museum and park during its most vulnerable times.   
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 191



OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE NEIGH BC 17 

 

 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposal to elected 

member workshops 

September 2019 JJ 4 weeks Complete 

Present proposals to 

Cabinet/Council 

September 2019 JJ 8 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council approval 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Judith Jones 
 

Job Title: Chief Officer Neighbourhood Services  
 

Approval date: 04/09/2019 
 

P
age 192



Community Regeneration Budget Reduction Proposals 2020/21

Ref. Business 
Case No. Proposal

Saving
2020/21

£

Saving
2021/22

£

Saving
2022/23

£

Saving
2023/24

£

FTE 
Loss Effect/Risk Mitigation

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CR003 n/a Post 16 rationalisation (Transport) 23,283 23,802 24,331 24,870 0 Based on current usage of 8, could 
increase

none

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CR010 n/a Other line costs (Regen) 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 Loss of non staff budgets N/A

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CR011 n/a Orbit Centre review 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 0 Review of expenditure and income N/A

2.14 The removal of the allocation of Revenue Support
Grant monies from subsidised transport and
rationalisation of currently subsidised routes be
recommended to Council for approval.

CR001 Comms
BC 1

Transport Subsidised routes - Remove 
support provided via RSG. (Transport)

88,131 88,131 88,131 88,131 0 Reduction in availablity of transport for 
residents. Threat to future grant (£144) 
as WG previously threatened had to be 
match funded by LA

Explore opportunities from City deal, 
alternative Transport providers - taxis etc.

2.15 Consultation for the removal of the school bus 
service between Pentwyn, Quakers Yard and 
Edwardsville School, following the assessment of a 
safe walking route to school, be recommended to 
Council for approval and a report brought back to 
Council with further recommendations.

CR002 Comms
BC 2

Review transport provision on newly available 
route - Edwardsville (Transport)

39,274 40,060 40,860 41,678 0 Remove Transport to Edwardsville 
School from top of Quakers Yard. Works 
carried out to gutty to make route 
available.

Walking route has been assessed and 
deemed available.
Checks with South Wales Police to be 
conducted on PP risks.

2.16 The reduction in support costs to the Merthyr Tydfil 
Town Centre Business Improvement District be 
recommended to Council for approval.

CR009 Comms
BC 8

Bid reduction (regen) 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 Loss of income for BID Seek external funding oportunities 

Total 215,688 216,993 218,322 219,679 0

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

P
age 193



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 Comms BC1 (2.14) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title Transport – Subsidised Routes 

Date (Insert Version Date) 02.09.19  

Lead Officer(s) Alyn Owen 

Project Manager Paul Lewis 

Service Area Protection and Safety Services 

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

PASS have been tasked to look at providing savings toward Corporate Sustainability. 

 

Section 108 of the Transport Act 2000 requires county and county borough councils to develop 

policies for the promotion and encouragement of safe, integrated, efficient and economic 

transport to, from and within their area. 

 

The Authority receives an annual grant from Welsh Government to support bus routes and 

Community Transport within the Authority. In addition the Authority allocates £88k from the RSG 

toward subsidised transport. This currently supports transport from/to Bedlinog and lower valley, 

Ponsticill and a circular route facilitating access to Prince Charles Hospital. We also contribute 

toward cross border services. 

 

The proposal is to remove the allocation of the RSG monies (£88k) and rationalise currently 

subsidised routes.  

 

The purpose of the subsidy to Transport Operators is to support routes which are not cost 

effective at a commercial level and enable connection of remote communities to the main 

transport infrastructure promoting access to employment and health care. This could have an 

impact on access to these services. 

 

 

The Welsh Government has previously proposed that the grant must be match funded by the 

Local Authority but this has not as yet been implemented. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 195



 Comms BC1 (2.14) 

 

 

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

 

All transport provision is provided by commercial operators. 

 

 

Change Proposal 
Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

The proposal is to rationalise the routes that are currently subsidised. Two currently subsidised 

routes in the 19/20 budget have already been subject to change following Operators stopping 

their service namely the Ponsticill Service and the Prince Charles Hospital circular. Ponsticill is 

subject to a 6 month pilot whereupon a review will be conducted. In relation to the Prince Charles 

Circular a commercial operator has changed their timetable meaning increased services to Prince 

Charles Hospital. As a result of this the subsidy for this service has not yet been re-allocated. 

If these current proposal were agreed this would result in a saving of £69k. In order to achieve 

additional savings of £19k the remaining subsidised routes would have to be re-evaluated and a 

revised provision which would be subject to competitive tendering. 

Looking at integrated Transport provision between rail and bus could mitigate removal of any 

service to lower valley.  

A proposal would be provision of daytime services is maintained to cover access to Merthyr Tydfil 

Town Centre as the main transport hub for employment and medical access.  

Evening services would be mostly affected which could have a negative impact to access to 

evening economy. There could also be a negative effect on commercial businesses through loss 

of grant support income. 

A benefit of the proposed changes would be contributing to the Authorities Corporate 

Sustainability. 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
1 of 4  0 of 4 1 of 4 

Page 196



 Comms BC1 (2.14) 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

3 of 5 0 of 5 2 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1  1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are Contribute to Corporate Sustainability. Promotion of active travel 
 
The main negative impacts are access to evening economy. 
 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

Removal/alteration of a service would require a minimum 28 days’ notice. 

In order to remove/cancel a service public consultation would be required. 

 

 

 

  

Page 197



 Comms BC1 (2.14) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

Option 1 –  

Option 1 description 

Rationalise currently subsidised routes to make an efficiency saving of £88k 

Benefits (advantages) of this option 

1. Supports the Corporate Sustainability Agenda through securing of Financial Savings. 

2. Promote Active Travel and other methods of transport. 

Consequences (disadvantages) of this option 

1. Potential reduction of services which access the evening economy. 

2. Reduction in grant subsidy to commercial operators. 

Risks – 

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Failing to achieve savings 

following negotiation/retender  

Tolerate 2 3 6 

Judicial Review of Decision Tolerate 3 2 6 

WG insist on match funding 

could lead to removal of grant 

Treat – discussions with WG at 

senior corporate level should 

funding be threatened. 

3 3 9 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Political resistance  3 4 12 

Public resistance  2 4 8 

 

Potential total saving 

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings £88,131 £88,131 £88,131 £88,131 

 

 

Rationale  

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Page 198



 Comms BC1 (2.14) 

 

 

Recommendation 

The proposal is accepted as we would still be able to subsidise transport for key activities. 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 16/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 199

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Corporate Sustainability 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Paul Lewis 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Alyn Owen 

Service: 
 

Protection and Safety Services 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

02.09.19 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: Remove RSG support of £88k toward subsidised local bus services 
 

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 200



 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 
 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

  X 
 

 
Not relevant 

 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

  
 

x Signpost to alternative Transport 
provision or promote active travel 

 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

x   1. Could lead to a reduction in 
vehicles on road and active 

travel benefits 
 

 
 

Promote Active Travel 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

  x Reduction in available evening 
transport. 

Signpost to alternative Transport 
provision or promote active travel. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 201



 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

 
  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

Contributes toward corporate sustainability Promotion of active travel routes. 

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

n/a  

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

Active Travel Agenda Promotion of other modes of transport such as Taxis/Rail 
services. 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

n/a  

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

n/a  

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 202



 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

 
Protected  

Characteristics 
Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  x   

Disability 
 

  x   

Gender Reassignment 
 

  x   

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 
 

  x   

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  x   

Race 
 

  x   

Religion or Belief 
 

  x   

Sex (Gender) 
 

  x   

Sexual Orientation 
 

  x   

Welsh Language 
 

  x   

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 203



 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  x   

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
 
 

 

P
age 204



 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

5. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
1 of 4  0 of 4         3 of 4 

6. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

3 of 5 0 of 5 3 of 5 

7. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

8. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1  1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are Contribute to Corporate Sustainability. Promotion of active travel 
 
The main negative impacts are access to evening economy. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 205



 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposal to elected 

member workshops 

September 2019 AO 4 weeks Complete 

Present proposals to 

Cabinet/Council 

September 2019 AO 8 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Alyn Owen 
 

Job Title: Chief Officer Community Regeneration 
 

Approval date: 20.09.19 
 

P
age 206



 Comms BC2 (2.15) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title 
Transport – Consultation on potential available walking route 
between  Pentwyn, Quakers Yard to Edwardsville Primary School 

Date (Insert Version Date) 02.09.19  

Lead Officer(s) Alyn Owen 

Project Manager Paul Lewis 

Service Area Protection and Safety Services 

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

PASS have been tasked to look at providing savings toward Corporate Sustainability. 

 

A school bus service is being provided for approximately 33 students between Pentwyn, Quakers 

Yard and Edwardsville Primary School. The bus service has been provided as there was no 

‘available’ walking route to the school from Pentwyn. 

 

The Authority has a statutory duty to provide transport to learners where there is an unavailable 

walking route to school. 

 

As part of the Active Travel initiative work has been undertaken on the ‘Gutty’ and an assessment 

of the route by road safety officers has deemed it now suitable to walk. 

 

The proposal is subject to a consultation with parents/guardians and pupils and consideration be 

given as to whether the route is now ‘available’ and withdraw the current transport provision. 

 

Should Transport be removed this would achieve financial saving of £39k. 

 

 

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

 

All transport provision is provided by commercial operators. 

 

 

Page 207



 Comms BC2 (2.15) 

 

 

 

Change Proposal 

Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

The proposal is to explore whether the route between Pentwyn, Quakers Yard and Edwardsville 

Primary School via the ‘gutty’ is an available walking route.  

Should the route be deemed available then the Authority would not legally be obliged to provide 

Transport and would therefore save the current transport cost of £39k. 

An advantage of the change would be a contribution to efficiency savings. 

A potential disadvantage would be negative public feedback in removing the service. 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
1 of 4  3 of 4 1 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

3 of 5 0 of 5 2 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1  1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are Contribute to Corporate Sustainability. Promotion of active travel 
 
The main negative impact would be public feedback on proposal 
 

 

Page 208



 Comms BC2 (2.15) 

 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

Removal of a service would require a minimum 28 days’ notice. Any changes would be done 

giving parents sufficient notice of charge in order to make alternative provision. 

In order to ascertain availability a targeted public consultation is being undertaken 

There is delegated Authority to the Chief Officer in conjunction with the relevant portfolio member 

to consider if a route is an available walking route. 

 

 

  

Page 209



 Comms BC2 (2.15) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

Option 1 –  

Option 1 description 

Consultation exercise to establish if there is an available walking route between Pentwyn, 

Quakers Yard and Edwardsville Primary School. 

Benefits (advantages) of this option 

1. Supports the Corporate Sustainability Agenda through securing of Financial Savings. 

2. Promote Active Travel and other methods of transport. 

Consequences (disadvantages) of this option 

1. Potential increase in vehicles in and around school premise 

2. Reduction of income to commercial operators. 

Risks –  

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Failing to achieve savings 

following consultation  

Tolerate 2 3 6 

Judicial Review of Decision if 

removed 

Tolerate 3 3 9 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Political resistance Tolerate 3 4 12 

Public resistance Tolerate 2 4 8 

 

Potential total saving 

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings £39,274 £40,060 £40,860 £41,678 

 

 

Rationale  

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

Page 210



 Comms BC2 (2.15) 

 

 

This proposal is consistent with school travel across the Authority. 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 16/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 211

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Corporate Sustainability 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Paul Lewis 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Alyn Owen 

Service: 
 

Protection and Safety Services 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

02.09.19 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: Consultation on potential available walking route between  Pentwyn, Quakers Yard to 
Edwardsville Primary School 
 

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 212



 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 
 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

x   
 

Promotes Active Travel Promotes Active Travel 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

  
 

x  
 
           Not relevant 

 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

x x  1. Could lead to a reduction in 
vehicles on road and active 

travel benefits 
2. Could lead to a larger number 

of vehicles at school.  

 
 

Promote Active Travel 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

x   Promotes Active Travel Promote active travel. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 213



 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

 
  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

Contributes to Corporate Sustainability  

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

By assessing and consulting we will ascertain and prevent any 
issues. 

 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

Links with Active Travel Plans  

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

n/a  

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

Will involve road safety officers working with parents and 
children on safe travel methods 

 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 214



 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

 
Protected  

Characteristics 
Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

 x  Potential withdrawal of a current 
service 

Promote Active Travel Routes 

Disability 
 

  x   

Gender Reassignment 
 

  x   

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 
 

  x   

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  x   

Race 
 

  x   

Religion or Belief 
 

  x   

Sex (Gender) 
 

  x   

Sexual Orientation 
 

  x   

Welsh Language 
 

  x   

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 215



 

 

 
4. Biodiversity 

 
Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  x   

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
 
 

 

P
age 216



 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

5. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
3 of 4  1 of 4 1 of 4 

6. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

4 of 5 0  of 5 1 of 5 

7. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 1 of 10 9 of 10 

8. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1  1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are Contribute to Corporate Sustainability. Promotion of active travel 
 
The main negative impacts are public feedback if service withdrawn. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 217



 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposal to elected 

member workshops 

September 2019 AO 4 weeks Complete 

Present proposals to 

Council/Cabinet 

September 2019 AO 8 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Alyn Owen 
 

Job Title: Chief Officer Community Regeneration 
 

Approval date: 20.09.19 

P
age 218



 Comms BC8 (2.16) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title 
Reduction in support costs to the Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre 
Business Improvement District (BID) 

Date (Insert Version Date) 30.08.19 

Lead Officer(s) Chris Long   

Project Manager Zoe Thomas  

Service Area Community Regeneration  

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

A BID is a business-led and business funded body formed to improve a defined commercial area. 

Businesses get together, decide what improvements they want to make to their town centre, how 

they will manage these and what it will cost them. 

 

The BID has been operating in Merthyr Tydfil since 2013 and details of the original ballot are 

outlined below: 

 

Initial ballot (2012): 

•  % of ratepayers in favour - 62% 

•  % of eligible ratepayers voting – 33% 

•  Approx 250 hereditaments in the BID 

The original programme period was five years and a renewal ballot was held in 2017, the details 

are outlined below: 

Renewal ballot (2017): 

•  % of ratepayers in favour - 73% 

•  % of eligible ratepayers voting – 48% 

•  Approx 265 hereditaments in the BID 

The BID levy: 

•  % of rateable value (RV) 

•  Inflation linked 

•  Generates approximately £130,000 per annum from the levy 

 

The BID’s Board of Directors is made up of business owners and managers, landlords, 

representatives of the third and public sectors. Currently there are 11 directors from nationals, 

independents, daytime and evening economies, landlords, etc. 

 

The BID has a full-time co-ordinator to liaise with businesses and to develop and manage 

projects. 

Page 219



 Comms BC8 (2.16) 

 

 

 

A Service Level Agreement is in place between MTCBC and the BID for the Council to host the 

BID – Co-ordinator post to the value of £30k per annum.  This has been in place since the BID 

was established in 2012 / 2013.  The Council also gifts the provision of office facilities at 

Wheatsheaf Lane and IT support (both at a nil value as the Council’s contribution towards the 

delivery of the programme).  

 
The project links to the Working Life Corporate Objective ‘People feel supported to develop the 

skills required to meet the needs of businesses with a developing, safe infrastructure making 

Merthyr Tydfil an attractive destination’ although there is no KPI linked directly to the delivery of 

the BID.  

 

The decision has been made to develop this Business Case as the SLA between both MTCBC 

and BID is historic and an opportunity to review has arisen following the post-holder vacating the 

role.   

 

Staffing Arrangements 

Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

 

There is only one post associated with the BID which is the Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre BID Co-

ordinator position.  This is evaluated at a Grade 7 with a £30k contribution from the Council.  The 

remaining costs are covered through the BID who are invoiced by MTCBC for the additional costs.  

 

Discussions have commenced with the BID Board and are currently ongoing and they fully 

understand the need for the propose change.  

 

 

Change Proposal 

Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

The proposed change is to reduce the allocation towards the BID – Co-ordinator position   This 

will result in a £20,000 saving for the Council.  The BID would cover the reduction in costs from 

the income that is generated through the levy. 

In relation to the five ways of working there should be no negative impact on delivery: 

- The longer-term impact of the change will not be affected as the delivery programme will 

remain as approved with the Big Heart of Merthyr Tydfil Business Plan.  

- The post will be advertised shortly and the funding gap will be covered by the BID 

therefore this will prevent issues from occurring of the service provision from becoming 

worse.  

- There is already an integrated approach to delivery with the Council hosting the post and 

the BID Co-ordinator delivering the Business Plan and reporting into the BID Board on a 

regular basis.  The opportunity to revise the SLA will undoubtedly strengthen the 

Page 220



 Comms BC8 (2.16) 

 

 

integrated approach already adopted.  

- The collaboration between the BID Board and the Council will not be impacted by the 

reduction in funding. Both organisations will still fully support each other to achieve the 

best result for the Town Centre and the businesses supported by the BID.  

- The BID Board has been fully involved in discussions regarding the reduction in the 

allocation and fully understand the need and requirement for this to be considered.  

The benefits of this change will support the corporate sustainability agenda through financial 

savings of £20,000.  The opportunity that has been presented to review the job description and 

reduce the Council’s contribution will be positive as it will ensure both organisations will work 

more collaboratively and ensure the Town Centre Support Officer and BID Co-ordinator improve 

their working relationship.  

The disadvantage of the change is that the BID Board will need to allocate additional costs 

towards the post and may need to review and re-profile their figures to accommodate this change.  

It will potentially impact on Business Plan delivery as there may be services that will need to be 

reduced in order to cover the staff costs.  

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
 0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

 
Summary: 
 
The main positive impact is that the delivery of the BID Business Plan will continue to support 
the sustainable development principles through targeting economic growth, collaborative 
working and continued development of the Town Centre.   
 
Any negative impact will relate primarily to the requirement for the BID Board to cover the costs 
required for the BID – Co-ordinator post.   Services may potentially be reduced following the 
BID finance review / re-profile therefore which may result in a negative impact. 
 

Page 221



 Comms BC8 (2.16) 

 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

The timescale for the implementation can be achieved following agreement with the BID Board 

and a revision to the SLA that is currently in place.  This will be achieved from April 2020 as the 

Council has committed to the allocation for this current financial year.   

 

  

Page 222



 Comms BC8 (2.16) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

 

1. Option 1 – Reduction in support costs to the Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre Business 

Improvement District (BID).  

Option Description 

There is only one option associated with the reduction in support to the Merthyr Tydfil BID 

which is to reduce the overall budget and contribution to £10,000  

Benefits of this option 

The benefits of this change will support the corporate sustainability agenda through 

financial savings.   

Opportunity to review the role of the BID Co-ordinator for inclusion within the SLA in line 

with making the financial amendments.  

Consequences of this option 

That the BID Board will be required to find the costs for the BID Co-ordinator post from 

within their budgets.  This will be through the current income generated through the levy 

and will not require an additional costs from the businesses.   

A further disadvantage of the change is that as BID Board will need to allocate additional 

costs towards the post and may need to review and re-profile their figures to accommodate 

this change.  It will potentially impact on Business Plan delivery as there may be services 

that will need to be reduced in order to cover the staff costs. 

 Risks –  

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

That the Business Plan delivery will 

be impacted by the decision to 

reduce the budget resulting in 

potential impact of service delivery.  

Treat – will review the role of the 

BID Co-ordinator and the Town 

Centre Support Officer to ensure 

the delivery can be fully achieved to 

the best ability.  

3 3 9 

That the BID Board do not have 

the funds to contribute towards the 

reduction.  

Tolerate – there are sufficient funds 

from the existing levy to cover this 

therefore the BID will be required to 

accommodate the change.  This will 

potentially result in a review or re-

profile of current costs.   

3 3 9 

That as the Council has committed 

to five years of funding through an 

SLA, legally this will be problematic 

to change.  

Treat – discuss with the Legal 

Department the options available to 

the Council in relation to amending 

the SLA and reducing the cost.  

4 2 8 

 

Page 223



 Comms BC8 (2.16) 

 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

That the BID Board do not accept 

the Council’s decision to reduce 

the budget   

Treat – discussions have already 

been held and will continue to 

ensure full understanding and 

acceptance of all Board members.  

3 2 6 

 

 

Potential total saving 

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings £20,000 £20,000 £20,000 £20,000 

 

Rationale (Accept, Reject, Shortlist) 

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

That the reduction in support to the BID is reduced to £10,000  

  

Page 224



 Comms BC8 (2.16) 

 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 16/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 225

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Merthyr Tydfil Business Improvement District  

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Zoe Thomas  

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Zoe Thomas  

Service: 
 

Community Regeneration  

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

02/09/19 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
 
The proposed change is to reduce the allocation towards the BID – Co-ordinator position to £10,000  This will result in a £20,000 saving for the Council.  

The BID would cover the reduction in costs from the income that is generated through the existing levy.  

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 226



 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 
 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

  X  The project does not directly target 
children and young people therefore 

will not impact on this objective.  

The programme aims to support 
improvements within the Town 

Centre.  The BID does not directly 
target children and young people 

although they will positively benefit 
from the events held and supported 

by the BID.  

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

 X  A key objective of the BID is an 
Engaging Merthyr Tydfil which helps 
support businesses and understand 
their needs as well as attract more 

people into the Town.  Services may 
potentially be reduced following the 

BID finance review / re-profile 
therefore there is a negative impact.  

The Council will work closely with the 
BID to  understand what has been 

reduced (if anything) and will look at 
ways of fundraising / providing 

support through the Town Centre 
Support Officer to prevent / reduce 

the negative impact as best as 
possible.  

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

 X  One of the key objectives of the BID is 
Transforming Merthyr Tydfil which 
aims to promote the Town Centre 

environment.   Services may 
potentially be reduced following the 

BID finance review / re-profile 
therefore there is a negative impact. 

The Council will work closely with the 
BID to  understand what has been 

reduced (if anything) and will look at 
ways of fundraising / providing 

support through the Town Centre 
Support Officer to prevent / reduce 

the negative impact as best as 
possible. 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 

 X  One of the key objectives of the BID is 
a Welcoming Merthyr Tydfil and 

Promoting Merthyr Tydfil which aims 
to create a place where people feel 

safe and independent.   Services may 

The Council will work closely with the 
BID to  understand what has been 

reduced (if anything) and will look at 
ways of fundraising / providing 

support through the Town Centre 

P
age 227



 

 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

and mental health. potentially be reduced following the 
BID finance review / re-profile 

therefore there is a negative impact. 

Support Officer to prevent / reduce 
the negative impact as best as 

possible. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 
The Big Heart of Merthyr Tydfil Business Plan.  

P
age 228



 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

 
  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

The longer-term impact has been considered and the delivery 

of the Business Plan will not be required to change as a result 

of the reduction in cost.  The overall outcomes will still be 

achieved even if services potentially need to reduce.  

The new role that has recently been created, the Town Centre 
Support Officer, will help support the BID in their work within 
the Town Centre which will improve long-term planning and 
delivery.  Also, there will be support available to the BID for 

fundraising opportunities if required.  

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

The review of the post and the funding reduction will be 
reviewed simultaneously to prevent further problems as any 

potential gaps in service delivery will be identified and 
mitigated where possible.    

The discussions held with the Board have mitigated any 
potential negative impacts as the BID Board understand the 
requirements of the Council and being open and honest has 

prevented any problems in relationship management.  

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

The delivery of the BID Business Plan  in Merthyr is a key 
component of the Town Centre Masterplan and supporting the 
delivery of the BID in future through the Strategic Regeneration 

Team)  is a key requirement of the Council.  

There is already an integrated approach to service delivery 
with the Council hosting the post and supporting events etc.  
The opportunity to revise the SLA will further strengthen the 

integrated approach already established.  

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

The collaboration between the Council and BID Board will not 
be impacted by the reduction and there will be continued 

commitment by each organisation to support each other to 
achieve the most benefit for the Town Centre and businesses.  

There is an opportunity through the newly created Town Centre 
Support Officer role to work in improved collaboration with the 
BID.  This is the first time there has been a solely dedicated 

officer to operational activities on the ground.  

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

The delivery of the BID includes a variety of businesses and 
people and communication will remain strong in terms of 

promoting the BID and the contribution from the Council in 
terms of support.  

The BID Board has been fully involved in discussions about the 
potential reduction and this has helped mitigate any future 

risks.  

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 229



 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

 
Protected  

Characteristics 
Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  X  The project focuses on the reduction 
in support costs and does not impact 

on age.  

 

Disability 
 

  X The project focuses on the reduction 
in support costs and does not impact 

on disability.  

 

Gender Reassignment 
 

  X The project focuses on the reduction 
in support costs and does not impact 

on gender reassignment.  

 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 
 

  X The project focuses on the reduction 
in support costs and does not impact 

on marriage and civil partnership.  

 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  X The project focuses on the reduction 
in support costs and does not impact 

on pregnancy and maternity. 

 

Race 
 

  X The project focuses on the reduction 
in support costs and does not impact 

on race.  

 

Religion or Belief 
 

  X The project focuses on the reduction 
in support costs and does not impact 

on religion or belief.  

 

Sex (Gender) 
 

  X The project focuses on the reduction 
in support costs and does not impact 

 

P
age 230



 

 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

on sex.  

Sexual Orientation 
 

  X The project focuses on the reduction 
in support costs and does not impact 

on sexual orientation.  

 

Welsh Language 
 

  X The project focuses on the reduction 
in support costs and does not impact 

on welsh language.  

 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

 

  

P
age 231



 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  x The delivery of the BID does not 
impact on biodiversity and ecosystem 

resilience given the nature of the 
location supported.  

Any positive impacts will be 
considered as part of delivery 

particularly in relation to new projects 
within the BID area.  

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
 
 

 

P
age 232



 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

5. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
 0 of 4 3 of 4 1 of 4 

6. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

7. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

8. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impact is that the delivery of the BID Business Plan will continue to support 
the sustainable development principles through targeting economic growth, collaborative working 
and continued development of the Town Centre.   
 
The negative impacts relate primarily to the requirement for the BID Board to cover the costs 
required for the BID – Co-ordinator post.   Services may potentially be reduced following the BID 
finance review / re-profile therefore which may result in a negative impact. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 233



 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Take proposal to elected 

member workshops 

September 2019 AO 4 weeks Complete 

Present proposals to 

Cabinet/Council 

September 2019 AO 8 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Cabinet/Council 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by:  Alyn Owen  
 
Job Title: Chief Officer Community Regeneration  

 
Approval date:  20th September 2019 

P
age 234



Central Services Budget Reduction Proposals 2020/21

Ref. Business Case 
No. Proposal

Saving
2020/21

£

Saving
2021/22

£

Saving
2022/23

£

Saving
2023/24

£

FTE 
Loss Effect/Risk Mitigation

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS001 n/a Police & Crime Commissioner's Grant 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 0 SLA income no risk N/a

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS004 n/a ICT Network Switches 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 New switches N/a

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS005 n/a IT 47,000 0 0 0 0 Application of HWB monies Application support team 
reconfigured. Change way 
procurement and ordering is done

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS011 n/a Payslips 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 0 Convert to e-payslips N/a

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS012 n/a Phishing Software 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 Contract Saving N/a

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS013 n/a Annual Canvass 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 Implement email delivery of annual canvass N/a

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS016 n/a Insurance Fund Contribution 61,778 63,016 64,276 65,561 0 Contribution to Insurance Section 1.5 FTE's 
administration of the Insurance function resulting in 
reduction in insurance liabilities

Review of Insurance Fund and 
provision has confirmed 
affordability of this proposal.

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS017 n/a Regional Internal Audit Shared Service 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 Re-alignment of Medium Term Financial Plan to 
reflect negotiated contract agreement

N/a

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS018 n/a Purchase Cards 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 0 Re-alignment of Medium Term Financial Plan to 
reflect projected purchase card income based on 
current trenda and projections 

N/a

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS021 n/a Business Change Unit 11,581 5,726 9,934 9,000 1 Release a vacant post within Business Change, 
Risk, Equalities and Welsh Language: Negative 
impact on the delivery of the Change and Well-being 
Programme and statutory functions

Only work on corporate priorities - 
team flexing to meet Council 
need

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS024 n/a Benefits - Income 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 Reallocation of monies None

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS027 n/a Parking NNDR 3,103 3,103 3,103 3,103 0 Closure Swan street resulting in NNDR savings Ensure capacity in surrounding 
car parks

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

P
age 235



2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS032 n/a Revenues Postage 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 Budget reduction based on usage None

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

CS033 n/a Comms Income 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 Income generation from selling services N/a

2.17 The discontinuation of the Help for Pensioners 
Scheme, offering council tax payment assistance to 
pensioners, be recommended to Council for 
approval.

CS003 Cent
BC 2

Help for Pensioners 36,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 0 No risk - Last Council in Wales awarding this grant N/a

2.18.1 The increase in car parking tariffs (from 70p to £1
for 1hour; from £1.50 to £2 on the 3 hour tariff; from
£3.50 to £4 on the all-day tariff; all of these relate to
Monday to Friday i.e. no increases to Saturday or
Sunday parking tariffs), be recommended to
Council for approval.

2.18.2 The annual increase of £10 to Annual Permits (zero
increases to resident or academic permits), be
recommended to Council for approval.

2.18.3 The undertaking of the necessary steps to make 
the order be recommended to Council for approval.

2.19 The introduction of a parking tariff for MTCBC staff 
that want to park at MTCBC buildings (namely: Unit 
5 Pentrebach; Unit 20 Depot; Integrated Childrens 
Unit), be recommended to Council for approval.

CS034 Cent
BC 12

Car Parking at Council Buildings 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 0 Introduction of car parking permits to Unit 5 based 
on 50% takeup of 85 out of 170 spaces. Proposal 
also includes Unit 20 Depot and Integrated Childrens 
Unit

Traffic management in 
surrounding streets

Total 444,306 392,689 398,157 398,508 1

64,844 64,844 0 Increase of Car parking charges - refer to business 
case

N/aCS014 Cent
BC 5

Car Parking Income 64,844 64,844

P
age 236



 

 

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  
 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
 
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Help for Pensioners Scheme (Ref 0002 / Cent BC1) (2.17) 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Mike Parry 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Mike Parry 

Service: 
 

Revenues 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

18th September 2019 

 
Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
To consider the discontinuation of the Help for Pensioners Scheme which offers financial assistance with Council Tax  payments to pensioners who meet the criteria set by the Council. 

 Welsh Government made funding available to Councils for each of the four years from 2009/10 to 2012/13 for the purposes of determining their own local scheme to provide 

assistance to pensioners with the payment of their Council Tax. 

 In 2013/14, Welsh Government decided to introduce a single pan Wales scheme to provide this support. 

 In 2014/15, Welsh Government changed its approach once again and although Councils were provided with a similar level of funding as in 2013/14, this was included in the 

Revenue Support Grant, leaving it up to individual Councils to determine their own scheme ( or indeed to use the funding for any other purpose). 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 237



 On the 20
th

 of March 2019, Council decided to continue with the scheme for financial year 2019/20. 

 A survey of all Welsh Councils has identified that no other Council has operated a scheme since 2017/18.  

 In financial year 2019/20, 750 pensioners met the qualifying criteria; i.e to be of pensionable age and to be in receipt of partial but not full Council Tax Reduction (CTR). 

 No application was required as the data concerning qualification was extracted directly from the Councils CTR records and qualifying pensioners advised accordingly. As such the 

award was means tested in so far as the originating CTR application was used as the basis for the award. 

 The minimum weekly award is 0.11p and the maximum weekly award is 0. 96p. (673 pensioners currently receive the maximum award).     

Risk Description Impact Likelihood Risk Score Mitigation 

Reduce reputation of the Council 3 2 6 Clear communication to those affected by the change  

Pensioners will continue to receive their full entitlement to CTR and 

Housing Benefits. 

Information will be included in the Councils Contact magazine and 

published in the accompanying doscuments issued with Council Tax annual 

demands in March 2020. 

Those affected will be unable to pay Council Tax 2 1 2 Clear communication to those affected by the change  

Pensioners will continue to receive their full entitlement to CTR and 

Housing Benefits. 

Information will be included in the Councils Contact magazine and 

published in the accompanying doscuments issued with Council Tax annual 

demands in March 2020. 

May have a minimal impact on preventing the accrual of debt  for the 

specific group of pensioners who meet the qualifying  criteria – As 

such this position will be monitored 

Additional work back office in the short term 1 5 5 Prioritise workload to meet deadlines 

 

 

Recomends that: 

P
age 238



The removal of the ‘Help for Pensioners Scheme’ at MTCBC, subject to the relevant consultations, be approved. 

 
1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 

 
Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 
 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

  x Scheme is only applicable to 
pensioners 

N/A 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

  x Scheme is only applicable to 
pensioners 

N/A 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

  x The scheme has no direct impact on 
environmental issues 

N/A 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

  x May be a minimal impact if the scheme 
were discontinued as the value to each 
pensioner is limited to between 11p per 
week to 96p per week (approximately 
750 pensioners would qualify for the 
allowance).  

 

Monitor position 
 

Communications to those affected by 
the change 

 
May have a minimal impact on 

preventing the accrual of debt  for the 
specific group of pensioners who 

meet the qualifying  criteria – As such 

P
age 239



Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

this position will be monitored 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
As the scheme relates only to pensioners and is of nominal value to each individual pensioner, it has minimal impact on the Councils Well Being 
Objectives  

 
2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 

 
Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

Discontinuing the scheme would demonstrate effective and 

efficient long term financial management and would be 

consistent with the approach taken by all other Welsh 

Councils. 

N/A 

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

N/A May have a minimal impact on preventing the accrual of debt  
for the specific group of pensioners who meet the qualifying  

criteria – As such this position will be monitored 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

This proposal helps with addressing the Council’s position 
relating to financial sustainability. 

N/A 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

N/A N/A 

P
age 240



 
3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

 
Protected  

Characteristics 
Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  x If the scheme were discontinued the 
negative impact would be low as the 
annual allowance is only up to a 
maximum of 96p per week 
(approximately 750 pensioners 
potentially affected). If the scheme 
continued, the positive impact would be 
low for the same reasons.  
 

May have a minimal impact on 
preventing the accrual of debt  for the 
specific group of pensioners who 
meet the qualifying  criteria – As such 
this position will be monitored. 

Disability 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Gender Reassignment 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 

  x As above. As above. 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Race   x As above. As above. 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

N/A  N/A  

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
As the scheme relates only to pensioners and is of nominal value to each individual pensioner, it has minimal impact on the Councils Well Being 
Objectives 

P
age 241



Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

 

Religion or Belief 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Sex (Gender) 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Sexual Orientation 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Welsh Language 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
As the scheme relates only to pensioners and is of nominal value to each individual pensioner, it has minimal impact on the Councils Well Being 
Objectives 

 
4. Biodiversity 

 
Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  x The scheme has no direct impact on 
environmental issues 

N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
As the scheme relates only to pensioners and is of nominal value to each individual pensioner, it has minimal impact on the Councils Well Being 
Objectives 
 

 

P
age 242



5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts does 
your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

2 of 5 0 of 5 3 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The positive impact is low and purely of a financial nature. It does not impact all pensioners, only 

those who meet the criteria set by Council. As the maximum allowance was only up to 96p per 

week and only a small proportion of pensioners would qualify, the overall positive and negative 

impact are low. 

No negative impacts have been identified against the Well-being Objectives, the Sustainable 
Development Principles and Biodiversity. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 243



6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to better 
contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Elected Member 

workshops 

September 2019 AM/RD 6 weeks Complete 

Joint Scrutiny 

Committees 

September 2019 AM/RD 6 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision making 
process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the sustainable 
development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Report for consideration by Council 9th October 2019  

    

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: ANDREW MOGFORD 
 

Job Title: HEAD OF CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

Approval date: 2nd OCTOBER 2019 

P
age 244



 Cent BC5 (2.18.1  2.18.2  2.18.3) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title Car Parking Income (Ref: CS014) 

Date (Insert Version Date) 03/09/2019 

Lead Officer(s) Andrew Mogford 

Project Manager Gregg Edwards 

Service Area Parking Section 

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

Why is this proposal being considered? – The Parking Services section has continued to 

change the ways in which it operates to maintain service levels and enable reduced staffing 

numbers, e.g. through an SLA agreement and combined duties.  The proposals in this business 

case are the next steps following on from the changes to the service area that were approved as 

part of the efficiency programme.  The changes outlined in this paper act to future proof services 

and address the financial sustainability of the Council.  This business case links with the proposal 

to make MTCBC cashless and required estate footprint for our car parks.   

 

Project delivery – This proposal, if approved, will form part of the MTCBC Change and Well-

being Programme.  It will be delivered with the current in-house allocated resource and as such 

incur no additional cost.   

 

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

There are no staffing impacts associated with this business case. 

 

Change Proposal 
Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

Page 245



 Cent BC5 (2.18.1  2.18.2  2.18.3) 

 

 

Parking Services Savings Objective – Continue to deliver Parking Services but change to meet 

the principles of the Council approved operating model design (OMD) by April 2020; in doing so 

operate a cashless system, future proof the estate (both these elements form part of other 

business cases but relate to the way in which the Parking Services progresses) and increase 

charges as they have remained the same for approximately 5 years.  These changes will enable 

this section to contribute the required savings to meet its part in making MTCBC financially 

sustainable.   

 

The proposed increases to car parking charges fits with the Council approved Income 

Management and Cost Recovery Policy.  The project is compatible and fits in with the corporate 

efficiencies and sustainability agenda as it maintains an acceptable level of service whilst giving 

scope for alternative service solutions. 

 

Increases in parking tariffs apply across MTCBC car parks for weekdays for 1hour, 3hours and all 

day tickets.  This does not include any changes to weekend tariffs.  Trend data shows that the ‘up 

to 3 hours on a weekday’ is the most popular choice of ticket.  Increased fees to permits referred 

to in this business case concern ‘annual permits’ and not ‘academic permits’ or ‘resident permits’.  

Increases in income are reinvested into the services, e.g. car parking upkeep.  All figures in the 

options below are exclusive of VAT. 

There will be a cost for new signage, press releases, etc.  This is estimated to be a minimal cost 

but has not been finalised to date.  If the proposal is approved, this could be funded through an 

invest-to-save principle. 

 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

  

Page 246



 Cent BC5 (2.18.1  2.18.2  2.18.3) 

 

 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts relate to the 5 ways of working.   
 
There are no negative impacts. 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

Timescales for delivery – The proposals within this business case will be delivered as part of 

the MTCBC Change and Well-being Programme.  The changes to realise the cashable savings 

will be implemented by no later than the 1st of April 2020.   

 

Key Milestones 

 

Car Parking - Income 

 SLT / CMT workshop – September 2019 

 Cabinet workshop – September 2019 

 Councillor briefing sessions – September 2019 

 Joint Audit and Scrutiny Committee – 30th September 2019 

 Cabinet and Council decision (including parking order) – 9th October 2019 

 Develop press information – 10th October 2019 

 Develop new signage – 10th October 2019 

 Statutory notice period – February 2020 

 Go live – 1st April 2020 

 

 

  

Page 247



 Cent BC5 (2.18.1  2.18.2  2.18.3) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

Option 1 – Increase car parking tariffs (20p on Monday to Friday tariffs and approximately £1 per 

month on annual permit tariffs) 

Option 1 description 

Increasing parking charges as follows: 20p increase on the 1 hour (from 70p to 90p), 3 hour (from 

£1.50 to £1.70) and all day (£3.50 to £3.70) parking tariffs plus a £10 increase on all annual 

permits. 

Benefits (advantages) of this option 

 Cashable savings (income) to support the financial sustainability of MTCBC 

 Future proof the service 

 Integrate with other strategies, e.g. Income and Cost Recovery Strategy 

 No compulsory redundancies 

 Limit impact on weekend town centre trade 

 No impact on academic and resident permit users 

Consequences (disadvantages) of this option 

 Negative reputation from public regarding increased charges and reduction of parking 

spaces 

 Alternative provision could be met with resistance from the public, especially in the quick 

change timelines 

 

 

Risks 

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Unable to deliver change in the 

required timescales 

Treat – Prioritise changes and 

resource appropriately 

4 1 4 

Drop off levels increase Transfer – Any overspend to be 

picked up corporately 

4 5 20 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Decision makers – Unwilling to 

approve the option 

Treat – Regular briefings and 

clear engagement 

4 2 8 

Public – negative impact of 

reputation 

Treat – Clear communication of 

changes 

3 3 9 

 

 

Page 248



 Cent BC5 (2.18.1  2.18.2  2.18.3) 

 

 

 

 

 

Potential total saving 

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Net Savings £16,715 £16,715 £16,715 £16,715 

 

This is based on a 5% drop off rate.  This was decided as car parking usage has reduced 

by 3% (2016/17 to 2017/18) and a further 2% (2017/18 to 2018/19).  Considering this it has 

been estimated that last year’s reduction will at least double based on the increase in 

tariffs, the drop off could equal that over the last two years.   

 

Rationale  

Accept ☐ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☒ 

 

Recommendation 

This option realises the required savings if based on a 0% drop off rate, this is highly 

unlikely as usage figures are falling irrespective of increases to parking tariffs.  There are 

small increases in fees but leaves an unusual amount to pay (i.e. 90p), it is likely that 

customers will have £1 and our parking machines do not give change.  As the risks are 

higher than other feasible options, this option has been rejected.   

 

Option 2 – Increase car parking tariffs (30p on Monday to Friday tariffs and approximately £1 per 

month on annual permit tariffs) 

Option 2 Description 

Increasing parking charges as follows: 30p increase on the 1 hour (from 70p to £1.00), 3 hour 

(from £1.50 to £1.80) and all day (£3.50 to £3.80) parking tariffs plus a £10 increase on all annual 

permits. 

Benefits of this option 

 Cashable savings (income) to support the financial sustainability of MTCBC 

 Future proof the service 

 Integrate with other strategies, e.g. Income and Cost Recovery Strategy 

 No compulsory redundancies 

 Limit impact on weekend town centre trade 

 No impact on academic and resident permit users 

Consequences of this option 

 Negative reputation from public regarding increased charges and reduction of parking 

spaces 

Page 249



 Cent BC5 (2.18.1  2.18.2  2.18.3) 

 

 

 Alternative provision could be met with resistance from the public, especially in the quick 

change timelines 

 

Risks 

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Unable to deliver change in the 

required timescales 

Treat – Prioritise changes and 

resource appropriately 

4 1 4 

Drop off levels increase Transfer – Any overspend to be 

picked up corporately 

3 5 15 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Decision makers – Unwilling to 

approve the option 

Treat – Regular briefings and 

clear engagement 

4 4 16 

Public – negative impact of 

reputation 

Treat – Clear communication of 

changes 

3 4 12 

 

Potential total saving 

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings £35,643 £35,643 £35,643 £35,643 

 

This is based on a 5% drop off rate.  This was decided as car parking usage has reduced 

by 3% (2016/17 to 2017/18) and a further 2% (2017/18 to 2018/19).  Considering this it has 

been estimated that last year’s reduction will at least double based on the increase in 

tariffs, the drop off could equal that over the last two years.   

 

Rationale (Accept, Reject, Shortlist) 

Accept ☐ Shortlist ☒ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

This option doesn’t realise the required savings target when allowing for 5% service drop 

off.  As such this option has been shortlisted as a viable option.   

 

Page 250



 Cent BC5 (2.18.1  2.18.2  2.18.3) 

 

 

 

Option 3 – Increase car parking tariffs (from 70p to £1 on the hourly tariff; from £1.50 to £2 on the 

3 hour tariff; from £3.50 to £4 on the all-day tariff; all Monday to Friday and approximately £1 per 

month on annual permit tariffs) 

Option 3 Description 

Increasing parking charges as follows: 70p to £1 on the hourly tariff; from £1.50 to £2 on the 3 hour 

tariff; from £3.50 to £4 on the all-day tariff; all of these relate to Monday to Friday.  The Saturday 

tariff will remain at £1 and free parking on Sunday will also remain.  An approximate £1 per month 

increase will be added to annual permit tariffs.  Academic and residential tariffs will remain as is.   

Benefits of this option 

 Cashable savings (income) to support the financial sustainability of MTCBC 

 Future proof the service 

 Integrate with other strategies, e.g. Income and Cost Recovery Strategy 

 No compulsory redundancies 

 Limit impact on weekend town centre trade 

 No impact on academic and resident permit users 

Consequences of this option 

 Negative reputation from public regarding increased charges and reduction of parking 

spaces 

 Alternative provision could be met with resistance from the public, especially in the quick 

change timelines 

Risks 

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Unable to deliver change in the 

required timescales 

Treat – Prioritise changes and 

resource appropriately 

4 1 4 

Drop off levels increase Transfer – Any overspend to be 

picked up corporately 

3 5 15 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Decision makers – Unwilling to 

approve the option 

Treat – Regular briefings and 

clear engagement 

4 5 20 

Public – negative impact of 

reputation 

Treat – Clear communication of 

changes 

3 5 15 

 

 

Page 251



 Cent BC5 (2.18.1  2.18.2  2.18.3) 

 

 

 

 

Potential total saving 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings £64,844 £64,844 £64,844 £64,844 

 

This is based on a 5% drop off rate.  This was decided as car parking usage has reduced 

by 3% (2016/17 to 2017/18) and a further 2% (2017/18 to 2018/19).  Considering this it has 

been estimated that last year’s reduction will at least double based on the increase in 

tariffs, the drop off could equal that over the last two years.   

 

Rationale (Accept, Reject, Shortlist) 

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

This option realises the required savings target and allows for service drop off.  However 

this option includes the greatest increase in tariffs and therefore could have increased drop 

off.  This option is the most likely to remove the issue of providing change to customers and 

thus reducing complaints.  As such this option meets the financial income target and had 

been accepted as a viable option.   

 

Recommends that: 

 The increase in car parking tariffs (from 70p to £1 for 1hour; from £1.50 to £2 on the 3 hour 

tariff; from £3.50 to £4 on the all-day tariff; all of these relate to Monday to Friday i.e. no 

increases to Saturday or Sunday parking tariffs), subject to the relevant consultation, be 

approved; 

The annual increase of £10 to Annual Permits (zero increases to resident or academic 

permits), subject to relevant consultation, be approved; 

The necessary steps be undertaken to make the order be approved. 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Page 252



 Cent BC5 (2.18.1  2.18.2  2.18.3) 

 

 

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 19/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

Page 253

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Car Parking Income (CS015) 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Gregg Edwards 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Andrew Mogford 

Service: 
 

Parking Services 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

3rd September 2019 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
 
The Parking Services section has continued to change the ways in which it operates to maintain service levels and enable reduced staffing numbers, e.g. 
through an SLA agreement and combined duties.  The proposals in this business case are the next steps following on from the changes to the service area 
that were approved as part of the efficiency programme.  The changes outlined in this paper act to future proof services and address the financial 
sustainability of the Council. 
 
Parking Services Savings Objective – Continue to deliver Parking Services but change to meet the principles of the Council approved operating model 
design (OMD) by April 2020; in doing so operate a cashless system, future proof the estate (both these elements form part of other business cases but 

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 254



 

 

relate to the way in which the Parking Services progresses) and increase charges as they have remained the same for approximately 5 years.  These 
changes will enable this section to contribute the required savings to meet its part in making MTCBC financially sustainable.   

 
The proposed increases to car parking charges fits with the Council approved Income Management and Cost Recovery Policy.  The project is compatible 
and fits in with the corporate efficiencies and sustainability agenda as it maintains an acceptable level of service whilst giving scope for alternative service 
solutions. 

 
Increases in parking tariffs apply across MTCBC car parks for weekdays for 1hour, 3hour and all day tickets.  This does not include any changes to 
weekend tariffs.  Trend data shows that the ‘up to 3 hours on a weekday’ is the most popular choice of ticket.  Increased fees to permits referred to in this 
business case concern ‘annual permits’ and not ‘academic permits’ or ‘resident permits’.   

 
1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 

 
Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 
 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

   

x 

Although these proposals have no 
direct impact on any of the objectives, 

it does impact indirectly by 
contributing to the Corporate 

efficiencies and sustainability agenda. 

This integrated impact assessment 
will be reviewed as part of the project 
initiation documentation.  Advertise 

options to pay for parking in the town 
centre. 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

  x In addition to the above, it could be 
argued that increases could impact on 

those working in the town centre.  
However, changes to the public 

transport available to the town centre 
and the opportunity to purchase 

season tickets (annual permits) a 
cheaper option, this has been 

mitigated. 

As above. 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 

  x In addition to the above, these 
proposals can act to encourage less 

As above. 

P
age 255



 

 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

traffic usage in the town centre. 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

  x As above. As above. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case P

age 256



 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

 
  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

By improving the efficiency and effectiveness of the service 

we are ensuring that the service will be sustainable and meet 

the needs of current and future generations. 

This integrated impact assessment will be reviewed as part of 
the project initiation documentation. 

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

By streamlining the service and extending the principle of 
generic working and using technology, we are 

mitigating/preventing the impact of potential staff losses on 
service provision. 

As above. 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

The proposals in this concept paper align with the Council’s 
operating model design (OMD) and income strategy. 

As above. 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

As the cashless model is being adopted across Council 
services, the parking service will collaborate with other Council 

service areas. 

As above. 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

Should consultation and engagement become necessary, this 
will be carried out in line with statutory requirements. 

As above. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

P
age 257



 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

 
Protected  

Characteristics 
Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  x Increases to fees and charges will be 
consistent across all the protected 

characteristics.  Charges have 
remained the same for approximately 
5 years; increases are circa 6% within 

this proposal, with inflation being 
roughly 2%. 

This integrated impact assessment 
will be reviewed as part of the project 

initiation documentation. 

Disability 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Gender Reassignment 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Race 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Religion or Belief 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Sex (Gender) 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Sexual Orientation   x As above. As above. 

P
age 258



 

 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Welsh Language 
 

  x As above. As above. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline Business Case 

 

  

P
age 259



 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  x Increases in fees and charges could 
lead to increases in the use of public 
transport instead of using own cars. 

This integrated impact assessment 
will be reviewed as part of the project 

initiation documentation. 

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
Outline Business Case 

 

P
age 260



 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts relate to the 5 ways of working.   
 
There are no negative impacts. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 261



 

 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Elected Member 

workshops 

September 2019 AM/EC 6 weeks Complete 

Joint Scrutiny 

Committees 

September 2019 AM/EC 6 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Council 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: ELLIS COOPER 
 

Job Title: CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

Approval date: 19th SEPTEMBER 2019 

P
age 262



 Cent BC12 (2.19) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title Car Parking at Council Buildings (Ref: CS034) 

Date (Insert Version Date) 02/09/2019 

Lead Officer(s) Andrew Mogford 

Project Manager Gregg Edwards 

Service Area Parking Section 

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

Since purchasing Unit 5 Pentrebach, MTCBC has not introduced a car parking fee within the 

curtilage of the building.  As such MTCBC staff members that work at Unit 5 do not pay a parking 

fee but those who work at the Civic Centre do (unless the member of staff chooses to park for 

free in the nearby area).  Due to the current financial challenges faced by MTCBC and for equality 

across the workforce, a charge (the same as at the Civic Centre) is to be introduced.   

 

Based on the same principle, this business case considers charging for parking at other buildings 

where Council employees operate and an operational mechanism can be delivered.  For instance 

it would not be feasible to keep spaces available at the Orbit business centre due to demand of 

parking in the area and businesses paying for usage (that includes parking) of the building.   

 

The buildings in scope for this business case include: 

Unit 5 Pentrebach 

Unit 20 Depot 

Integrated Childrens Unit 

 

There will be a cost for new signage, markings and traffic safety measures (e.g. yellow lines).  

This is estimated to be a minimal cost but has not been identified to date.  If the proposal is 

approved, this could be funded through an invest-to-save principle.   

 

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

This proposal does not affect staff in respect of reduction in numbers.  However, there will be a 

potential negative financial impact on staff working from buildings where a charge will be 

implemented, e.g. at Unit 5 Pentrebach. 

 

 

Page 263



 Cent BC12 (2.19) 

 

 

Change Proposal 
Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

The advantages and disadvantages of this proposal are set out below: 

Advantages 

 Equality across the workforce 

 Additional income to MTCBC to assist with securing financial sustainability 

Disadvantages 

 Less benefits for staff working at council buildings (i.e. free parking) 

 Poor reputation of introducing the charge 

 Poor reputation from nearby business (if parking spills over to shopping area car parks) 

 Increased need to better parking safety measures and enforcement 

 

Consideration in respect of the sustainable development principles – 5 ways of working 

Long term – This proposal helps the financial sustainability of MTCBC by creating an income 

source.  It also helps support the principles regarding reducing the carbon footprint of MTCBC 

(encouraging the use of public transport). 

Prevention – This proposal creates a balance / equity across the workforce and prevents staff 

becoming disgruntled due to their office location.  This is likely to improve outcomes in the long 

term thus supporting a preventative agenda. 

Integration – This proposal integrates the Parking and Income strategies of MTCBC.  It also 

supports the carbon neutral agenda by encouraging the use of public transport. 

Collaboration – To make this proposal work it is important that the relevant departments of 

MTCBC work together, e.g. Parking, Road Safety.  In addition it is important that MTCBC work 

with businesses in the area to ensure staff park appropriately.   

Involvement – The Parking Section will involve MTCBC staff throughout the decision process to 

enable them to understand the proposal and how to park safely.  MTCBC will involve businesses 

in the local area to ensure staff park appropriately. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 264



 Cent BC12 (2.19) 

 

 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are regarding biodiversity.  By introducing a parking fee, staff at 
Council buildings may be encouraged to use public transport (or other alternative means of 
getting to work). 
 
All other assessments show a not applicable status. 
 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

Key milestones 

 SLT / CMT workshop – September 2019 

 Cabinet workshop – September 2019 

 Councillor briefing sessions – September 2019 

 Joint Audit and Scrutiny Committee – 30th September 2019 

 Cabinet and Council decision (including parking order) – 9th October 2019 

 Inform Staff of alternative parking and/or travel to work – 10th October 2019 to 1st 

November 2019 

 Develop safe parking / road safety initiatives – 10th October 2019 to 1st January 2020 

 Implement safe parking / road safety initiatives – 1st January 2020 to 1st April 2020 

 Change enforcement rotas to monitor new area – 1st January 2020 to 1st April 2020 

 

 

Page 265



 Cent BC12 (2.19) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

Option 1 – Introduce parking fee at Council buildings to reflect fees at the Civic Centre 

Option 1 description 

To introduce a parking fee (that reflects costs at the Civic Centre) for staff that work at Council 

buildings.  This will cover the parking spaces within the curtilage of the buildings.  The parking 

permit can also be used at any other MTCBC car parks. 

Benefits (advantages) of this option 

 Introduces a new income stream for MTCBC to help strengthen the financial sustainability 

position 

 Creates an equal position for staff working at Unit 5 compared to the Civic Centre 

 Help support the Council’s drive to reduce the carbon footprint, the proposal will encourage 

use of public transport 

Consequences (disadvantages) of this option 

 The option assumes zero drop off in parking usage at Unit 5 

 Negative reputation from staff based at Unit 5 

 Negative reputation from businesses in the area if staff park in shop car parks 

 Increased potential for dangerous parking 

Risks 

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Road safety – increased 

potential for dangerous parking 

Treat – Awareness through 

clear communication; implement 

new parking initiatives (e.g. 

double yellow lines in dangerous 

areas); increased enforcement 

5 3 15 

Poor take up from Council staff Transfer – Monitor and pass to 

whole Council budget to cover 

4 2 8 

Reduction in the workforce at 

Council buildings leading to 

poor take up 

Transfer – Monitor and pass to 

whole Council budget to cover 

2 5 10 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Nearby shopping centre Treat – Awareness through 

clear communication; implement 

new parking initiatives (e.g. 

double yellow lines in dangerous 

areas); increased enforcement 

3 4 12 

Page 266



 Cent BC12 (2.19) 

 

 

Staff Members Treat – Awareness through 

clear communication; implement 

new parking initiatives (e.g. 

double yellow lines in dangerous 

areas); increased enforcement 

3 4 12 

Elected Members Treat – Awareness through 

clear communication; Councillor 

Workshops; Joint Audit, 

Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 

4 3 12 

 

Potential total saving 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Savings £30,000 £30,000 £30,000 £30,000 

 

It should be noted that this figure does not include any investments.  Any additional admin 

requirements will be absorbed within existing resources.  This will be prioritised with other 

admin tasks.   

 

Income figures are based on 50% take up at Unit 5 Pentrebach (the location with the 

largest numbers of spaces), this equates to 85 spaces from a total of 170 spaces.  The 

savings from other Council buildings are likely to be relatively low and difficult to estimate 

due to the type of usage.  As such the recommended savings are £30,000 per year. 

 

Rationale  

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

Even though this option comes with risks, the risks are outweighed by the need to address 

the financial sustainability of MTCBC.  Mitigation actions to be implemented if the option is 

approved. 

 

Recommends that: 

A parking tariff of an annual season ticket be introduced for MTCBC staff that want to park 

at MTCBC buildings (namely: Unit 5 Pentrebach; Unit 20 Depot; Integrated Childrens Unit), 

subject to the relevant consultations, be approved.  

Page 267



 Cent BC12 (2.19) 

 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 19/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 268

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Parking at Unit 5 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Andrew Mogford 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Andrew Mogford 

Service: 
 

Parking Section 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

02/09/2019 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
 
Since purchasing Unit 5 Pentrebach, MTCBC has not introduced a car parking fee within the curtilage of the building.  As such MTCBC staff members that 

work at Unit 5 do not pay a parking fee but those who work at the Civic Centre do (unless the member of staff chooses to park for free in the nearby area).  

Due to the current financial challenges faced by MTCBC and for equality across the workforce, a charge (the same as at the Civic Centre) is to be 

introduced.   

 

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 269



 

 

 

Based on the same principle, this business case considers charging for parking at other buildings where Council employees operate and an operational 

mechanism can be delivered.  For instance it would not be feasible to keep spaces available at the Orbit business centre due to demand of parking in the 

area and businesses paying for usage (that includes parking) of the building.   

 

 

  

P
age 270



 

 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 
 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

   
X 

This proposal changes the parking 
fees for MTCBC staff at one MTCBC 
building.  As such it has no impact on 

the Best Start to Life Well-being 
Objective. 

This integrated impact assessment 
will be reviewed as part of the project 

initiation documentation. 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

   
X 

This proposal changes the parking 
fees for MTCBC staff at one MTCBC 
building.  As such it has no impact on 
the Working Life Well-being Objective. 

As above. 

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

   
X 

This proposal changes the parking 
fees for MTCBC staff at one MTCBC 
building.  As such it has no impact on 

the Environmental Well-being 
Objective. 

As above. 

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

   
X 

This proposal changes the parking 
fees for MTCBC staff at one MTCBC 
building.  As such it has no impact on 
the Living Well Well-being Objective. 

As above. 

P
age 271



 

 

 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline business case 

P
age 272



 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

Long term – This proposal helps the financial sustainability of 

MTCBC by creating an income source.  It also helps support 

the principles regarding reducing the carbon footprint of 

MTCBC (encouraging the use of public transport). 

This integrated impact assessment will be reviewed as part of 
the project initiation documentation. 

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

Prevention – This proposal creates a balance / equity across 

the workforce and prevents staff becoming disgruntled due to 

their office location.  This is likely to improve outcomes in the 

long term thus supporting a preventative agenda. 

As above. 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

Integration – This proposal integrates the Parking and Income 

strategies of MTCBC.  It also supports the carbon neutral 

agenda by encouraging the use of public transport. 

As above. 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

Collaboration – To make this proposal work it is important that 

the relevant departments of MTCBC work together, e.g. 

Parking, Road Safety.  In addition it is important that MTCBC 

work with businesses in the area to ensure staff park 

appropriately.   

As above. 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

Involvement – The Parking Section will involve MTCBC staff 
throughout the decision process to enable them to understand 
the proposal and how to park safely.  MTCBC will involve 
businesses in the local area to ensure staff park appropriately. 

As above. 

P
age 273



 

 

 

 
  

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline business case 

P
age 274



 

 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups 
and Welsh language as identified below? 

 
Protected  

Characteristics 
Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

  X The changes within this proposal do 
not affect the service provision 

regarding the age protected 
characteristic.    The proposal 

concerns staff parking at one MTCBC 
building.  Alternative transport and 

parking is available. 

This integrated impact assessment 
will be reviewed as part of the project 

initiation documentation. 

Disability 
 

  X The changes within this proposal do 
not affect the service provision 

regarding the disability protected 
characteristic.    The proposal 

concerns staff parking at one MTCBC 
building.  Alternative transport and 

parking is available. 

As above. 

Gender Reassignment 
 

  X The changes within this proposal do 
not affect the service provision 

regarding the gender reassignment 
protected characteristic.    The 

proposal concerns staff parking at one 
MTCBC building.  Alternative 

transport and parking is available. 

As above. 

Marriage and Civil   X The changes within this proposal do As above. 

P
age 275



 

 

 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Partnership 
 

not affect the service provision 
regarding the marriage and civil 

partnership protected characteristic.    
The proposal concerns staff parking 
at one MTCBC building.  Alternative 
transport and parking is available. 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  X The changes within this proposal do 
not affect the service provision 
regarding the pregnancy and 

maternity protected characteristic.    
The proposal concerns staff parking 
at one MTCBC building.  Alternative 
transport and parking is available. 

As above. 

Race 
 

  X The changes within this proposal do 
not affect the service provision 
regarding the race protected 
characteristic.    The proposal 

concerns staff parking at one MTCBC 
building.  Alternative transport and 

parking is available. 

As above. 

Religion or Belief 
 

  X The changes within this proposal do 
not affect the service provision 
regarding the religion or belief 
protected characteristic.    The 

proposal concerns staff parking at one 
MTCBC building.  Alternative 

transport and parking is available. 

As above. 

P
age 276



 

 

 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X 

in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Sex (Gender) 
 

  X The changes within this proposal do 
not affect the service provision 

regarding the sex (gender) protected 
characteristic.    The proposal 

concerns staff parking at one MTCBC 
building.  Alternative transport and 

parking is available. 

As above. 

Sexual Orientation 
 

  X The changes within this proposal do 
not affect the service provision 
regarding the sexual orientation 
protected characteristic.    The 

proposal concerns staff parking at one 
MTCBC building.  Alternative 

transport and parking is available. 

As above. 

Welsh Language 
 

  X The changes within this proposal do 
not affect the service provision 
regarding the Welsh Language 
protected characteristic.    The 

proposal concerns staff parking at one 
MTCBC building.  Alternative 

transport and parking is available. 

As above. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
Outline business case 

 

  

P
age 277



 

 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

 
X 

  This proposal encourages staff 
members to use public transport as 

parking fees will increase. 

This integrated impact assessment 
will be reviewed as part of the project 

initiation documentation. 

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
Outline business case 
 

 

P
age 278



 

 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are regarding biodiversity.  By introducing a parking fee, staff at 
Council buildings may be encouraged to use public transport (or other alternative means of 
getting to work). 
 
All other assessments show a not applicable status. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 279



  

 

 

 

6. Actions 
 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal 
to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to 
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Elected Member 

workshops 

September 2019 AM/RD 6 weeks Complete 

Joint Scrutiny 

Committees 

September 2019 AM/RD 6 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  

 
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Council 9th October 2019  

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: ELLIS COOPER 
 
Job Title: CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Approval date: 6th SEPTEMBER 2019 

P
age 280



Social Services Budget Reduction Proposals 2020/21

Ref. Business Case 
No. Proposal

Saving
2020/21

£

Saving
2021/22

£

Saving
2022/23

£

Saving
2023/24

£

FTE 
Loss Effect/Risk Mitigation

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

SS001 n/a Out of Hours/EDT 8,980 7,640 6,250 5,000 0 Realignment of budget assumptions in 
contract cost - regional

Regional working -looking at this year 
spend and reduced accordingly.

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

SS002 n/a Carers 9,650 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 5 services currently commissioned 
through adult carers-realignment of 
budget assumption.

No reduction to voluntary sector

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

SS003 n/a Integrated Family Support Team (IFST) - 
bringing in house 

44,000 44,000 44,000 44,000 0 In-house resource making saving £280k budget bringing service back in 
house and agreed efficiency should be 
made against whole budget. 

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

SS004 n/a Telecare 5,000 1,150 5,000 5,000 0 Realignment of budget assumptions in 
service costs

Reduction in whole budget

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

SS006 n/a Children Looked After (CLA) Residential 318,000 318,000 318,000 318,000 0 Reduce budget line This is looking at reduction of budget line 
in residenitial placements - part of the LAC 
workstream.

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

SS007 n/a Fostering - In House 79,000 71,850 0 0 0 Reduce budget line There has been an increase in IFA 
budgets which means less budget required 
for inhouse.

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

SS008 n/a Leaving Care Support Services 72,250 72,250 72,250 72,250 0 Reduce budget line Change of contract from Barnardoes to 
Llamau and change in cohort of srevice 
users.

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

SS009 n/a Income regards services paid for 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 0 Work still being carried out to determine 
additional income but £30k considered a 
realistic figure. 

We don’t have many self funders and fees 
were increased last year and this amount 
counted in the MTFP. 

Total 566,880 554,890 485,500 484,250 0

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

P
age 281



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Education Budget Reduction Proposals 2020/21

Ref. Business 
Case No. Proposal

Saving
2020/21

£

Saving
2021/22

£

Saving
2022/23

£

Saving
2023/24

£

FTE 
Loss Effect/Risk Mitigation

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED001 n/a Remove training monies 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 0 Lack of professional development 
opportunities for staff

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED002 n/a Remove monies for vacant properties 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 0 This could be absorbed into statutory 
compliance budget - the risk is this 
budget becomes overspent

Disucssions with Property Services to 
clearly identify budget spend for this area - 
lines of accountability

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED003 n/a Remove monies for Health & Safety works 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 0 This could be absorbed into statutory 
compliance budget - the risk is this 
budget becomes overspent

see above

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED004 n/a Reduce budget line for general office supplies 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 0 Lack of monies for IT/stationery! Corporate agenda?

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED007 n/a Reduce facility time 11,013 12,054 12,968 13,430 0 NASUWT reduce from 5 days to 4, NEU 
reduce from 3 days to 2.5

Need discussion with HR to ensure that 
amount give for facility time is reasonable 
and equitable across all trades unions 
(teaching and non-teaching)

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED010 n/a Utilise income to maximise savings 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 0 This includes raising income target for 
ICC and ensuring other income across 
SLAs is maximised

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED011 n/a Remove education MASH contribution from the 
joint role with RCT

14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 0 Already agreed work can be undertaken within the Early 
Help Hub

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED013 n/a Reduce Early Year budget 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 0 Reduces services ability to respond to 
CSA, reduces training offered to 
childcare providers potentially impacting 
on CiW registration & quality of delivery

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED014 n/a Reduce childare and premises budget from ACL 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 Reduces childcare and Premises 
budgets that support the delivery of 
programmes across the community 

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED015 n/a Remove ALN training budget 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 0 Schools do not remain compliant with 
ALN requirements

Could charge schools to attend - some of 
this is statutory training

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED017 n/a Reduced cost of CSC
Expected savings based on trend of cost 
reductions

12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 0

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED018 n/a Reduce Special Tuition budget line 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 0 Inability to provide ST increase liklihood 
of perm Ex/ OoC placements/impact on 
social services due to many of these 
pupils being CLA/Edge of Care

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

P
age 283



2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED019 n/a Reduce Special Recoupment budget line 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 0 A needs led budget -  see above - if a 
child needs a OoC placement due to 
high end needs or we are directed by 
tribunal this budget line is subject to 
overspending

The efficiency is achievable and a £100k 
contingency can also be held but there 
would be potential growth pressure of 
£100k against enhanced provision. 
Alternatively instead of the efficiency a 
£100k virement could be transferred to 
enhanced provision to offset growth 
pressure and a contingency of £100k held 
in this budget to manage in year demand 
for placements, this would not effect the 
bottom line learning budget

2.1 The realignment of budgets, revisions to budget
assumptions and implementation of operational
budget matters, as detailed in 2.1 in each of the
Directorate schedules appended to this report, be
recommended to Council for noting.

ED008 n/a Retirement/Severance - Reduce budget by 
removing uncommitted costs

7,981 7,981 7,981 7,981 0 Cost Avoidance
Reduce future costs around early 
retirement in schools.

2.20 The reduction to the Strategic Education Projects 
budget be recommended to Council for approval.

ED006 n/a Reduce Strategic priority monies budget line 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 Unable to meet crisis situations in 
schools

None

2.21 The reduction within the Behavioural Support Team
resulting from the cessation of a fixed term post in
August 2020 be recommended to Council for
approval.

ED009 n/a Reduction in Behavioural Support Team resulting 
from cessation of fixed term post in August 2020.

9,102 15,915 16,234 16,558 0 This  service aims to mitgate pupils 
requiring ST/entering PRUetc

Consider an SLA with Schools

2.22.1 The utilisation of new grant monies to finance the 
Youth and Community Officer post be 
recommended to Council for noting.

2.22.2 The removal of the vacant Senior Youth Worker 
post within the north cluster be recommended to 
Council for approval.

2.22.3 The reduction in the Participation budget, not 
impacting upon front line service delivery, be 
recommended to Council for approval.

2.23 The renegotiation of the Service Level Agreement 
with Greenfield School and Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
University Health Board in respect of the school 
nurse be recommended to Council for approval.

ED016 n/a Renegotiate SLA charges with Greenfield in 
respect of School Nurse

20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 Requires agreement with school that 
they pick up share of cost - new SLA for 
critical healthcare needs whilst in school -  
- agreed as growth last year

Discussions with school to agree match 
funded arrangement from 20/21 onwards

2.24 The change of nature of the Youth Orchestra from a 
Council service to one with charitable status be 
recommended to Council for approval.

ED005 Educ
BC 1

Recover costs for Youth Orchestra
1. circa £7k may be reduced from more efficient 
use of tutors and Four Counties savings 
2. remaining £7k from parents paying a nominal 
charge OR 
working with Friends of MYO to see if there is a 
way this could be run through charitable status

4,563 4,388 4,210 4,028 0
Youth Orchestra may no longer be free 
to access some children/young people 
may miss out.

A nominal charge per session should not 
be cost prohibitive - consider similar 
models in other LAs. If charitable status 
option feasible then may be no 
requirement for nominal charges. 

Total 338,159 345,838 346,893 347,497 0

49,500 49,500 0 The proposal is to remove one youth
and community officer post from the
structure through utilising new grant
resources and remove the existing
vacant Senior Youth Worker post within
the North Cluster . In addition to this
reduce budgets within participation
without impacting on front line delivery of
the service. 

ED012 n/a  Youth Service Provision 49,500 49,500

P
age 284



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE                                                                       EDUC BC 1 (2.24) 

 

 

Business Case – Service Changes 
 

Project Title Youth Orchestra (Ref: Educ001) 

Date (Insert Version Date) 05/09/2019 

Lead Officer(s) Sue Walker 

Project Manager Anthony Lewis 

Service Area Learning 

Purpose of the Business Case 

Project Background 
Provide a brief description of the service including statutory obligations.  In this section please refer to the 

Our Shared Vision, Corporate/Directorate strategies (SOAPs) and what has encouraged the development of 

this business case?    

 

The Authority currently offers a Youth Orchestra service for the pupils of Merthyr Tydfil County 

Borough.  The service allows pupils of Merthyr Tydfil to fully realise their potential in orchestral 

music. It is delivered as part of the four counties youth orchestra agreement between Merthyr 

Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taff, Bridgend and Caerphilly. 

The Authority funds the youth orchestra provision by ways of meeting the costs of the hire of 

premises and the tutorial costs of the staff in attendance.  Youth orchestra rehearsals take place 

on a weekly basis throughout the academic year, term time only, with senior tutors and tutors in 

attendance.  

Currently the costs of this service is £15,850 per annum and is funded from the MTCBC core 

budget. Below are costs for the next financial years. 

 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

Tutor costs £13,650 £13,923 £14,201 £14,485 

4 Counties 

Contribution 

£2,200 £2,200 £2,200 £2,200 

Total £15,850 £16,123 £16,401 £16,685 

 

 

With the implementation of the changes proposed below, pupils will continue to access the Youth 

Orchestra service, so their musical education can continue. The options proposed contribute to 

the ‘Best Start in Life’ well-being objective. 

 

 

Page 285



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE                                                                       EDUC BC 1 (2.24) 

 

 

Staffing Arrangements 
Include number of staff, job titles etc. 

 

During the financial year 2018/19, the Youth Orchestra was delivered by 16 members of staff – 

salary costs were £14,642 (including £958 course fees). They delivered 573 hours over that time, 

pay is dependent on hours worked and time-sheets are completed termly to inform salary. 

 

All staff are employed by MTCBC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Change Proposal 

Provide details and justification for the proposal.  In this section please refer to the Wellbeing five ways of 

working and consider the benefits (advantages) and consequences (disadvantages) of the change. You also 

need to consider here the HR, Procurement and Legal implications. 

 

In the current climate, unfortunately the service is unsustainable as it is currently run. We do not 

want to lose the service, however we need to deliver it in a more cost effective way. Therefore 

three options are proposed. 

Option 1 

Reduce the budget by half, by being more efficient with current resources. This includes reducing 

the number of staff required for Orchestra by re-structuring the sessions. This should bring the 

budget in at approximately half of the previous years expenditure 

Option 2 

Change the service so it has a charitable status, giving it a firm base from which to ensure the 

service continues and remains available to all.  

Option 3 

The introduction of charges to pupils in order to cover costs. Charges would be based on each 

session or for a term to cover the required income levels. 

 

 

  

Page 286



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE                                                                       EDUC BC 1 (2.24) 

 

 

Integrated Impact Assessment (Summary) 

Information for this summary is to be taken from the Integrated Impact Assessment in Appendix 1 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
1 of 4 0 of 4 3 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 1 of 10 9 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are that the proposal will meet the Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives and the Sustainable Development Principles. The proposal will have a positive effect 
on the ‘Best Start to Life’ Well-being Objective. 
 
The only negative impact is on the Age characteristic as the proposal affects a service that is 
provided to pupils of secondary school age. 
 
 

 

What are the timescales for implementation, including milestones per option in this 

business case? 

 

Implementation of the new change will begin April 2020 apart from option one which started in 

September 2019 

 

 

  

Page 287



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE                                                                       EDUC BC 1 (2.24) 

 

 

Options: Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.   

 

Option 1 – Current service remains 

Option 1 description 

This proposal involves the current service continuing, however the budget is reduced by 

half by the service being run more efficiently. This can be achieved by re-structuring the 

way the orchestra is delivered, holding the orchestra on one evening with less staff. Staff 

are paid as casual workers so there are no HR implications. The proposal was discussed 

with staff prior to the end of the academic year 2018/19 and they identified which sessions, 

if any they would consider taking forward under the new arrangements. The proposal was 

put forward for two reasons – one to make delivery of the service more effective and 

productive for young people, the second to make the service more cost effective. The 

proposal also aims to increase the number of young people who are able to access the 

service by offering a different menu of options for different levels of competency. Despite 

offering more options, the proposal can still realise savings as delivery is for one-hour 

sessions rather than a two hour session which included a long break for the young people. 

Benefits (advantages) of this option 

 There will be no immediate changes to the service currently provided to pupils. 

Consequences (disadvantages) of this option 

 There will still be a cost to run the service, which is increasing year on year. 

 The quality of the service offered could decrease. 

Risks – Guidance at Appendix 2 

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

The service not continuing to be 

sustainable in the future 

Tolerate 3 3 9 

Savings not being met Treat – implement option 2 or 3 3 4 12 

The quality of service offered 

could decrease 

Treat – staff are performance 

managed through Head of 

Service 

3 2 6 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

 No barriers identified at this 

point 

   

 

 

Page 288



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE                                                                       EDUC BC 1 (2.24) 

 

 

Potential total saving 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Net Savings £4,563 £4,388 £4,210 £4,028 

 

Rationale  

Accept ☐ Shortlist ☒ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation 

Shortlist this option, behind option 2 

 

Option 2 – Service has charitable status 

Option 2 Description 

Change the service so it has a charitable status, giving it a firm base from which to ensure 

the service continues and remains available to all.  

An external organisation such as ‘Friends of Merthyr Tydfil’ would take on the service and 

finance it going forward. If this option was to be accepted, discussions would need to start 

with Friends of Merthyr Tydfil Youth Orchestra (FMTYO) to seek sponsorship or charitable 

status. The two options to consider are: 

1. Seek sponsorship from individuals or businesses based on the costs in options one. 

The Friends are already an established group. The local authority head of service is 

already a member of the group and will retain her position on that group to ensure 

the orchestra continues to run smoothly. 

2. Seek full charitable status to access more grant funding. This may take longer but is 

an option that could be explored through support of music charities already in 

existence. Early discussions are starting with the FMTYO and are positive. 

Benefits of this option 

 There will be no immediate changes to the service currently provided. 

 No impact on the service available to pupils. 

 Realises the saving, making the service and the Authority more sustainable in the 

future. 

 It may become a better service if it is run with a charitable status, with potential 

access to more funds. 

Consequences of this option 

 Potential negative publicity to the Council. 

 No appetite from current ‘Friends of MTYO’ to take on charitable status. 

 Risk of losing appetite in future. 

 There could be a disruption to the service. 

 The service may not run as well being a charitable status, with less access to funds. 

Page 289



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE                                                                       EDUC BC 1 (2.24) 

 

 

 Risks – Guidance at Appendix 2 

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

The quality of service offered 

could decrease 

Treat – ensure that there is an 

experienced local authority 

officer involved. This person 

who can undertake relevant 

performance management. If 

this was implement it would 

reduce the risk score to I=3; 

L=2; RS=6 

3 4 12 

The service not continuing to be 

sustainable in the future 

Tolerate 3 3 9 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Not able to secure charitable 

status 

Treat – working with voluntary 

bodies within Merthyr Tydfil to 

secure approx. £7.5 k per 

annum 

3 4 12 

 

Potential total saving 

The full service cost of approximately £15,850 per annum (although expectation would be 
to secure funding at level outlined in option1) 

Rationale (Accept, Reject, Shortlist) 

Accept ☒ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☐ 

 

Recommendation -  

Accept option 2 

 

Option 3 – The introduction of charges to pupils in order to cover costs 

Option 3 Description 

This option is for the schools pupils to cover the cost of running the service with the 

introduction of charges to pupils. Charges would be based on each session or for a term to 

Page 290



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE                                                                       EDUC BC 1 (2.24) 

 

 

cover the required income levels. If the Orchestra were to run for 30 weeks of the academic 

year – 3 terms of 10 weeks each, based on 50 young people attending each week, to raise 

the funds outlined in option one, the cost would be at minimum £5 per week. A more 

realistic figure would be £7.50 to allow for variance in attendance. If this option were to be 

chosen further options over cost and the recovery of cost e.g weekly, termly, would need to 

be drawn up. 

Benefits of this option 

 There will be no immediate changes to the service currently provided. 

 No impact on the service available to pupils. 

 Realises the saving, making the service and the Authority more sustainable in the 

future. 

Consequences of this option 

 Potential negative publicity to the Council. 

 Charging pupils for Youth Orchestra provision may limit the equality of access that 

is currently offered. 

 Parents may choose not to purchase the tuition which would result in either the 

service ceasing or the saving not being met. 

 The council will have to scope in a consultation period before a charge can be 

imposed. 

 Timescales may not be met if consultation is required. 

 Risks – Guidance at Appendix 2  

Potential Risks 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

The quality of service offered 

decreasing 

Treat – staff are performance 

managed through Head of 

Service 

3 2 6 

Not enough income made from 

fees to cover costs 

Terminate – terminate service 4 5 20 

 

Potential Barriers 

Transfer, Tolerate, Treat, 

Terminate 

(where required mitigating 

actions) 

I L RS 

Parents/Pupils Terminate – Terminate service 4 5 20 

 

Potential total saving 

The full service cost of approximately £15,850 per annum 

 

Page 291



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE                                                                       EDUC BC 1 (2.24) 

 

 

Rationale (Accept, Reject, Shortlist) 

Accept ☐ Shortlist ☐ Reject ☒ 

 

Recommendation 

Reject Option 3, and accept option 2 

 

Business Case Approval 

 

Board Reason for choice Accepted 

(Yes/No) 

Date 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT) 

 Yes 23/09/2019 

Budget Board    

Change & Well-being 

Steering group & 

Board 

This forms part of the Governance 

Work-Stream that is governed by 

this Board. 

Yes 19/09/2019 

Procurement Board    

Service Management 

Team (SMT) 

   

Other  

(Please state):  

Audit and Joint Scrutiny Committees N/A 30/09/2019 

 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework 

guidance notes or email your query to:  

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.  

 

Page 292

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk


02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE EDUC BC 1 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background 
information.  

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for: 
  
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business). 
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision. 
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change. 

 

Title of Project / Report: 
 

Youth Orchestra 

Officer completing Impact Assessment: 
 

Anthony Lewis 

Lead Officer / Project Manager: 
 

Sue Walker/Anthony Lewis 

Service: 
 

Learning 

Impact Assessment completion date: 
 

05/09/2019 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 
 

To change the way the Youth Orchestra service is provided 
 

 

  

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity) 

 

P
age 293



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE EDUC BC 1 

 

 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below? 

Well-being Objectives Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on the Council’s 
Well-being Objectives? Please place 

an X in the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Best Start to Life  
Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

 
 

X 

  With all three proposals, the Youth 
Orchestra service will continue to be 

provided to pupils in the County 
Borough. 

The service will aim to continue 
providing an adequate level of service 

and provide pupils with access to a 
music education. 

Good and regular communication will 
need to be established between the 

LA and schools to ensure the service 
continues to be at an adequate level. 

Working Life 
People feel supported to 
develop the skills required to 
meet the needs of businesses 
with a developing, safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

   
 

X 

  

Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance 
and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

   
X 

  

Living Well  
People are empowered to live 
independently within their 
communities, where they feel 
safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

   
 

X 

  

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
 

P
age 294



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE EDUC BC 1 

 

 

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working) 
 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?  

 

 
  

Five Ways of 

Working  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the 

five ways of working? 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better 
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any 

negative impacts? 

Long Term -
Thinking and 
planning for the 
long term. 
 

The service can continue to be provided to pupils in the 

County Borough. The proposals enable the service to be 

more sustainable for the future. 

Depending on the outcome of the proposal there needs to be 
long-term plans to secure finding and provision for the future 
delivery of the service 

Prevention -  
Preventing 
problems before 
they happen. 
 

Prevents the service being removed completely in the 
foreseeable future. 

The service can be monitored going forward to ensure new 
arrangements are working well and to identify and resolve 

problems quickly if they arise 

Integration -  
Integrating with 
other strategies. 
 

The proposal links with wider arching Welsh Government 
ensuring young people have access to cultural activities and 

are able to develop a wide range of skills. 

Within the wider departmental and corporate strategies 
regarding aspiration and culture ensure the development and 

opportunity of music across the borough is maintained. 

Collaboration -  
Collaborating with 
others. 
 

One proposal involves working with external organisations 
such as ‘Friends of Merthyr Tydfil’ and look at making the 

service a charitable status. This will make its future more firm 
and sustainable. 

Communication will be a key, to ensure all involved are fully 
aware of the changes being made. 

Involvement -  
Involving people 
and communities. 
 

We will work with schools throughout any changes to support 
pupils who use the service.  

Communication will be a key, to ensure all involved are fully 
aware of the changes being made. 

Sources of evidence to support the above:  
 

P
age 295



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE EDUC BC 1 

 

 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) 
Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language as identified below? 

Protected  
Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive or 
negative impact on service users, 

employees and/or the wider 
community, including the nine 

protected characteristic groups and 
Welsh language? Please place an X in 

the relevant box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be taken 
to better contribute to positive 

impacts and/or mitigate any negative 
impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Age 
 

 X  The proposals impact a service that is 
provided to pupils of secondary school 
age. 

- Reduced charges could apply to pupils 
from the same family. 
- Free provision could be delivered to 
eligible Free School Meal pupils. 

Disability 
 

  X   

Gender Reassignment 
 

  X   

Marriage and Civil Partnership 
 

  X   

Pregnancy and Maternity 
 

  X   

Race 
 

  X   

Religion or Belief 
 

  X   

Sex (Gender) 
 

  X   

Sexual Orientation 
 

  X   

Welsh Language 
 

  X   

Sources of evidence to support the above:  

  

P
age 296



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE EDUC BC 1 

 

 

4. Biodiversity 
 

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity? 
 

Biodiversity Does your proposal have a positive 
or negative impact on Biodiversity? 

Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Why have you come to this 
decision? Please provide an 

explanation 

What actions have been/will be 
taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts? 

Positive Negative N/A 

Maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and ecosystem 
resilience 
 

  X   

Sources of evidence to support the above: 
 
 

 

P
age 297



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE EDUC BC 1 

 

 

5. Summary 
 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts 
does your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet 
report. 
 
Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

5. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
1 of 4 0 of 4 3 of 4 

6. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

7. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 1 of 10 9 of 10 

8. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are that the proposal will meet the Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives and the Sustainable Development Principles. The proposal will have a positive effect 
on the ‘Best Start to Life’ Well-being Objective. 
 
The only negative impact is on the Age characteristic as the proposal affects a service that is 
provided to pupils of secondary school age. 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 298



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE EDUC BC 1 

 

 

6. Actions 
Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your 
proposal to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to 
undertake to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

What are you going to 

do? 

Estimated completion 

date 

Who will be 

responsible? 

Timelines/Milestones 

e.g. 6 months/over a 

year, etc. 

Progress 

Elected Member 

workshops 

September 2019 AM/EC 6 weeks Complete 

Joint Scrutiny 

Committees 

September 2019 AM/EC 6 weeks Complete 

 
7. Version Control  
The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the 
sustainable development principles where possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

001 Council 9th October 2019  

    

 

8. Sign off section  
 

Approved by: Sue Walker 
 

Job Title: Chief Officer (Learning) 
 

Approval date: 05/09/2019

P
age 299



02a. OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE  

 

 

 

Page 300



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
CABINET - INFORMATION REPORT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To:   Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Youth Support Services in Merthyr Tydfil 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide an overview of the findings of a mapping exercise undertaken to refresh     

information held on the wider youth support services available to young people aged 
11-25 in Merthyr Tydfil.  This information has previously provided a key component 
of Estyn inspections of the Local Authorities Education Services. 

 
 

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 The local authority has a statutory duty to ‘provide and secure the provision of or 
participate in the provision of youth support services’ (section 123 of the Learning 
and Skills Act 2000).  This was underpinned by the ten entitlements outlined in 
‘Extending Entitlement 2002’ and the adoption of the United Nations convention on 
the rights of the Child. 
 

2.2 The infrastructure around the co-ordination of Youth Support Services has changed 
significantly since the decision that Children and Young People’s Partnerships are no 
longer required within each Local authority.  However, the statutory functions remain. 
It was noted by Estyn in 2018 (Youth Support Services in Wales) that the impact of a 
broad range of policies by Welsh Government has meant that, across Wales, the 
direction of travel for many Youth Support Services has moved away from universal, 
open access provision to more targeted provision.  This is a significant move away 
from the ethos of ‘Extending Entitlement (2002)’.  Whilst reinforcing that “all young 
people in Wales are entitled to have access to youth support services.  These 
services provide activities and opportunities for young people; they challenge and 
support them, introduce them to new experiences in a safe environment, and help 
them to make relationships, build friendships and learn new skills”.    

Date Written * 30th August 2019  

Report Author Chris Hole/Samantha Morgan 

Service Area Community Wellbeing, Youth Service 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 23rd October 2019 

Page 301

Agenda Item 8



2.3 Within the same Review, Estyn defined Youth Support Services as publicly funded 
educational services that are delivered using youth work methodology, which is 
based on a clear set of principles and values and a voluntary relationship with young 
people.  This methodology for working with young people builds upon the 
establishment of good working relationships with young people in which their needs 
are put first so that they can achieve their potential (Youth Support Services, July 
2018). 
 

2.4 One of the main recommendations to come out of the Estyn report was that local 
authorities should ‘provide safe spaces for young people in local areas so that they 
have access to services and activities which support their development as 
individuals and as members of their local communities.’ The full recommendations 
are contained in Appendix A. 
 

3.0 BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The local authority’s Youth Support Services (YSS) Plan 2017-20 aims to address 
this statutory duty.  The plan is monitored by the Youth Support Services Steering 
Group, which was established in 2016/17. 
 

3.2 The YSS Plan has identified several priorities in relation to young people: 
 Raising Attainment - improving skills and qualification levels achieved within 

community based learning. 
 NEET’s and Youth Unemployment – reducing the risk of becoming or remaining 

NEET. 
 Healthy Living - improving access to healthy lifestyle opportunities. 
 Active Citizenship and Participation - increasing the involvement in communities. 
 Safeguarding and Quality - young people experience quality, services in safe 

settings. 
 

3.3 The priorities were set following consultation with young people in Autumn 2016 and, 
following a number of other consultations that had been undertaken to shape the 
local authority Wellbeing Plan and Families First commissioning Strategy were 
reviewed by the Youth Support Services Steering Group in October 2017. 
 

3.4 In order to gain an understanding of the level of provision available to young people 
across the County Borough in relation to these priorities the Youth Support Services 
Steering Group agreed to undertake a mapping exercise via a survey.  The scope of 
this survey was slightly wider than the Estyn definition outlined above and focussed 
on local authority non-statutory provision, commissioned services, third sector and 
other partners who all deliver against the identified local priorities within the Strategy. 
 

4.0 MAIN FINDINGS 
 

4.1 There were 28 responses from 48 providers, which was a 58.3% response rate.  
This was slightly higher than the response rate of 57.5% in a previous survey 
undertaken in 2014.  The full report is available as a Background Paper. 

Page 302



 
4.2 The table below shows the distribution of providers, projects and activities across the 

priority areas and age groupings and shows that the 28 respondents provide 126 
projects or activities.  This means that many providers cover more than one priority 
area. 
 
Respondents (28 in total) 

No Priority Area No. of 
Providers 

No. of 
Projects 

or 
Activities 

Targeted Age Range 
 

    11-13 14-16 17-19 20-25 

1 Raising Attainment, 
Accreditations, 
Qualifications 

17 31 10 22 22 15 

2 NEETS & Youth 
Unemployment 

11 28 8 17* 22 17 

3 Healthy Living 
 

22 42 29 36 31 17 

4 Active Citizenship and 
Participation 

15 25 13 15 18 16 

 
4.3 For example, Gellideg Foundation Group deliver an ‘Extending Youth Horizons’ 

project that meets all the age ranges 11-25 and covers all the four priority areas.  
What this means is this one particular project will be recorded under each of the 
headings within the table. 
 

5.0 AREAS OF STRENGTH 
 

5.1 Open Access Youth Provision (Priority 5 – Safeguarding and Quality) 
 
 Through the use of core and grant funding, the local authority has maintained a 

good offer of universal, open access provision for young people through local 
authority managed or commissioned services.   

 This approach has enabled the standardisation of quality through contract 
monitoring and closer collaborative working on the local priorities for young people 
and the embedding of the youth service curriculum.  

 Whilst the survey has identified 9 open access provisions, it has been established 
through local knowledge, that others are available, e.g. in Bedlinog and the 
Stephens and George Charitable Trust in Dowlais 

 Open access provisions enable young people to access support that they may not 
be eligible for through more targeted, outcomes focused provision that aims to 
address a particular ‘need’. Open access provision enables a longer term, 
preventative approach which enables services to be based upon the self-
determined needs of young people (Estyn, 2018, p10). 

Page 303



 
5.2 Informal and non-formal Learning and Accreditation Opportunities (Priority 1 – 

Raising Attainment) 
 
 There is a good range of opportunities for young people to access community 

based informal and non-formal learning and accreditation opportunities through 
open access youth provision, employment related projects and also through other 
services such as the Youth Offending Service, for example. 

 Accreditation opportunities include the Duke of Edinburgh Award, Community 
Sport Leaders Award, Agored Cymru qualifications and employment related 
qualifications such as First Aid and Manual Handling certificates and CSCS Card. 

 The impact of these learning opportunities can be demonstrated, for example, by 
the Youth Service (including commissioned partners) in Merthyr Tydfil which 
consistently performs above the Wales average for the percentage of young 
people achieving an accredited outcome. 

 These learning and accreditation opportunities enhance young people’s personal 
and social skills and employment prospects and compliment their formal 
education in school or college. 
 

5.3 NEET’s and Youth Employment Provision (Priority 2 – NEET’s and Youth 
Unemployment) 
 
 There is an appropriate level of resources allocated to pre and post 16 

NEET/youth unemployment to meet local need.  

 Projects have had a positive impact on the local NEET figure, which for 2018 was 
1.1% (6 young people) and is consistently below the Wales average.  This 
success is also reflected in the older age group where Merthyr Tydfil has seen 
significant improvement in youth unemployment over the last few years.  For 
example, the 16-24 year old claimant count for Job Seekers Allowance in 2015 
was 280 young people and this had fallen to 80 in 2018. 
 

5.4 Young People’s Participation (Priority 4 – Active Citizenship and Participation) 
 
 Participation and young people’s voice is another area of strength and this has 

been driven by sector leading developments such as young person representation 
on Scrutiny Committee’s, to the much improved inclusivity of young person 
involvement in local Youth Mayor elections.   

 For example, approximately 2,800 young people participated in the 2018 election 
of the next youth mayor compared to 2500 in 2017 and 37 in 2016. This was a 
result of listening to young people and developing a new approach in partnership 
with the borough wide youth forum and other local authority departments, which 
has enabled more young people to take part in this democratic process. 

Page 304



 

6.0 AREAS FOR DEVELOPMENT 
 

6.1 Healthy Living (Priority 3 – Healthy Living) 
 
 Whilst this type of project or activity features heavily amongst local providers it is 

more difficult to assess the impact of health and wellbeing projects on young 
people. 

 Local surveys with young people repeatedly highlight mental health and wellbeing 
as a continued concern for them.  For example, in the 2018 School Health 
Research Network Report for Merthyr Tydfil secondary schools, 16% of young 
people reported being dissatisfied with their life.  In the local Families First review 
in 2016, 45% of respondents felt that good mental health and emotional wellbeing 
was a priority and access to CAMHS was highlighted as a gap. 

 In response, Families First funding was reshaped in 2018-19 to offer a more 
streamlined counselling service that has recently completed its first year of 
operation and there is currently no waiting list.  There has been a refocusing of 
the Youth Support team to deliver the ‘Resilience’ programme in schools and to 
offer targeted interventions to address specific issues. Which have been received 
well and are in high demand. 

 Additional funding from Welsh Government through the Youth Support grant  aims 
to address mental health and wellbeing and homelessness will add capacity to 
existing early intervention provision.   

 The Youth Service recently consulted with service users to establish their 
concerns around health and wellbeing and, in partnership with Public Health 
Wales, are reviewing and developing all health and wellbeing related resources 
used by the Youth Service. 
 

6.2 Sustainability of Provision 
 
Partners raised concerns in relation to sustainability of projects due to the continued 
pressure on the local authority budget and the longer term availability of other 
funding streams: 
a. Many of the providers surveyed rely on grant funding from various sources, 

including the Legacy Fund, which currently supports 3 open access provisions 

b. European Social Funding, which supports NEET and Post 16 employment 
projects 

c. Providers deliver on behalf of the LA and in many cases budget reductions would 
impact negatively across a range of services to the community especially when 
costs of facilities are increasing 

 
6.3 Information Sources for Young People (Priority 5 – Safeguarding and Quality) 

 
6.3.1 The use of Dewis Cymru by local providers is low but there are plans in place to 

improve this.  For example, VAMT is currently working with third sector partners to 
improve use of Info engine and the Early Help Hub developments aims to improve 
use of Dewis Cymru.  
 

Page 305



6.3.2 Where services are being commissioned by the local authority registering on these 
sites has been included in the contract requirements, however it is worth noting that 
the both systems are integrated, so by registering on one site, the information is 
automatically available in the other, thus avoiding dual inputting. 
 

7.0 CONCLUSION 
 

7.1 Analysis of the survey indicates that local organisations, including the local authority, 
are delivering projects and providing activities that meet the key priorities within the 
YSS Plan and those identified by young people themselves. However, it must be 
noted that this was a snapshot survey, so the data is not static and can change at 
any time.  
 

7.2 The local authority continues to demonstrate its commitment to young people 
through the provision of open access youth settings.  This places the authority in a 
suitable position  to comply with Recommendation 2 of the Estyn Report: Youth 
Support Services in Wales, The Value of Youth Work – local authorities should 
‘provide safe spaces for young people in local areas so that they have access to 
services and activities which support their development as individuals and as 
members of their local communities’. 
 

7.3 Within the new national Youth Work Strategy a Sufficiency Assessment is going to 
be required  by Welsh Government (similar to the childcare and play assessments) 
to challenge the developing post code lottery of services.  This review establishes a 
clearer picture of the current services and will pave the way for any future sufficiency 
assessments.  
 

7.4 It should also be noted that the youth work curriculum in Merthyr Tydfil ensures that 
a broad range of provision is offered that covers most of the ten entitlements as 
outlined in Extending Entitlement (2002), namely: 
 

 education, training and work experience tailored to their needs; 

 a wide and varied range of opportunities to participate in volunteering and active 
citizenship; 

 personal support and advice – where and when needed and in appropriate 
formats – with clear ground rules on confidentiality; 

 recreational and social opportunities in a safe and accessible environment; 

 sporting, artistic, musical and outdoor experiences to develop talents, broaden 
horizons and promote rounded perspectives including both national and 
international contexts; and 

 the right to be consulted, to participate in decision making, and to be heard on all 
matters which concern them or have an impact on their lives. 
 

7.5 These activities also contribute to the local authority Wellbeing Plan priorities (Best 
Start to Life; Working Life) within Focus on the Future and the Cwm Taf Wellbeing 
Plan priorities for ‘Thriving Communities’ and ‘Healthy People’.  

Page 306



 

8.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 

8.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 

9.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
3 of 4 0 of 4 1 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

2 of 5 3 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
2 of 10 0 of 10 8 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
The main positive impacts are that there is a good range of services available to young 
people in Merthyr Tydfil that covers the priorities identified in the Youth Support Services 
Plan 2017-20 and the Youth Service contributes to the provision of most of the ten 
entitlements outlined in the Welsh Government’s ‘Extending Entitlement, 2002’.  These 
services contribute to the preventative agenda of the Wellbeing Objectives. 
The main negative impacts are the future sustainability of provision, in particular grant 
and core funding for universal, open access youth provision and the effects that this 
would have on the access to services for young people that will affect their personal and 
social development and health and wellbeing. 

 
 
 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER (LEARNING) 

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON 
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING  

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

YSS and NEETS Data Collection 
Analysis Report and Case Studies 

July 2019 Learning Department 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

Page 307



Appendix A 
ESTYN Youth Support Services in Wales Report, July 2018 
 
Recommendations 
 
Local authorities should: 
 
R1 Consult meaningfully with young people, so that they can influence the planning for 

and evaluation for the services available to them at a local level. 
 
R2 Provide safe spaces for young people in local areas so that they have access to 

services, and activities, which support their development as individuals, and as 
members of their local community. 

 
R3 Make sure that strategic plans have clear priorities informed by local intelligence for 

services that support young people. 
 
R4 Make sure that local authority departments and other bodies work in partnership to 

provide services for young people which address their needs. 
 
Providers should: 
 
R5 Make sure that their services enable young people to identify for themselves their 

interests, goals and needs. 
 
R6 Work in partnership at a local and regional level to improve access to the range of 

services for young people. 
 
R7 Make sure that professional youth work standards and principles are used by 

workers in all youth support services projects. 
 
The Welsh Government should: 
 
R8 Provide the policy basis through youth work, as a way of working with young people, 

becomes embedded in all services. 
 
R9 Clarify the use of the terminology ‘youth work’, ‘youth support services’ in Wales in 

order to provide a universal understood language for policy development and 
delivery. 

 
R10 Establish ways of holding local authorities and their partners to account for the 

quality, range and types of youth support services they provide in their area. 
 
R11 Include the qualification, training and ongoing development of youth workers in the 

National Youth Work Strategy for Wales. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 308



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
CABINET - INFORMATION REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:   Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

Future Funding for Gypsy Roma and Traveller 
Learners and Pupils for who English is an 
Additional Language (EAL) 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Councillors with information in respect of the 

funding for the services that support our Minority Ethnic, Gypsy, Roma and Traveller 
learners in light of the letter received from Welsh Government (WG) on March 29th 
2019.  

  
1.2 It should be noted that although we expect funding to continue this has not been 

confirmed by WG. 
 

 

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 For more than a decade the Welsh Government (WG) has provided targeted grant 
funding for local authorities to support our Minority Ethnic, Gypsy, Roma and 
Traveller learners.  As a result of this funding the services that support these pupils 
have been able to foster good relationships with these communities, upskill staff in 
supporting their particular needs, enable inclusivity and improved wellbeing.  Further 
funding has also been provided by European projects for these groups, and for two 
years, by the local authority for pupils for whom English is an Additional Language 
(EAL). 
 
 

Date Written 28th August 2019 

Report Author Sarah Bowen 

Service Area Learning 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 23rd October 2019 

Page 309

Agenda Item 9



 
2.2 Pupils living in Merthyr Tydfil come from a variety of backgrounds.  The three most 

common countries from where pupils attending our schools originate are Poland, 
Portugal and the Philippines.  Around 25 different languages are spoken by Merthyr 
Tydfil’s pupils including: Polish, Portuguese, Tagalong, Cantonese, Mandarin 
Chinese, Punjabi, Turkish, Czech, Malayalam, Hindi, Creole, Ghanaian, Bengali, 
Ukrainian, Urdu, Romanian, German, French, Yoruba, Tamil, Telugu, Slovak, Italian, 
Hungarian, Arabic, French and Vietnamese.  
 

2.3 Parents/carers choose to move to Merthyr for a number of reasons.  Many are 
joining families or established communities others may find themselves an isolated 
community within Merthyr.  They may be intending to stay long-term, while others 
are living in Merthyr on a short-term basis.  
 

2.4 Diverse backgrounds affect pupils’ individual learning within schools.  Some families 
will have fostered a strong educational background in their pupils, while others will 
have moved around a lot and have had their education disrupted.  Compulsory 
education laws are different in some countries and many pupils might not start 
school until the age of seven.  Cultural differences will also affect behaviour of pupils 
within the classroom as well as their interactions with peer groups.  Many parents 
might be unfamiliar with the UK education system; particularly if they are from a 
more isolated community without support. 
 

2.5 Since 2005/06, pupil numbers for Minority Ethnic groups have increased year on 
year – see Table 1.  As of the census in 2011, pupils for whom English is an 
Additional Language accounted for 5.43% of the pupil population.   When the LA 
agreed to provide additional funding for this group, this now stands at 8%. – see 
Table 2.  Of those that want to be known as Gypsy Travellers by us, the number for 
Gypsy Traveller learners has remained constant at an average of 50 pupils.  There 
are currently 46 Gypsy Travellers with whom we are working.   Although a smaller 
group, these pupils come from a rich cultural background that needs to be 
celebrated, but is invariably in opposition to the structured schools system.  This 
brings challenges that require careful handling by experienced and trusted staff.   
 
Table1 

 
 

2005/06 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18  2018/19 

Minority 
ethnic 
pupils  

112 369 481 473 530 559 580 685  721 

Including 
EAL pupils 
A-D 

82 303 369 343 432 348* 457 639  675 

Table 2 

2018/19 
School 

School Total 
Enrolment 

Total EAL Pupils 
Numbers 

% EAL Pupils of Total 
School Enrolment 

Total Pupils 8310 675 8% 

Total Secondary Pupils 2926 205 7% 

Total Primary Pupils 5384 467 9% 

Total RC Pupils 1095 353 34% 

Page 310



3.0 SERVICE DELIVERY AND CONSEQUENCES OF LOSS OF SERVICE 
 

3.1 It should be noted that while the grants provided by WG have decreased over the 
years, the outcome of these groups have improved.  This is due to the expertise and 
commitment of the teams.  The support provided by the teams who work with our 
Minority Ethnic, Gypsy, Roma and Traveller learners is made up of the following key 
activities: 

 provide in class support;  

 set targets, monitor and record pupil progress against the WG 5 stage model;  

 monitor and assess language needs; 

 provide pastoral and welfare support; 

 challenge instances of prejudice, stereotyping, bullying and harassment, in line 
with school policies and procedures 

 provide bilingual support for parents e.g. at parent evenings; 

 support and monitor the attendance, behaviour and attainment; and 

 promote and celebrate diversity. 
 

3.2 Should funding for these services not be forthcoming then this would result in the 
following:  

 loss of specialist teaching and bilingual support posts to support the language 
development of Merthyr’s 721 bilingual learners and Gypsy Traveller learners; 

 loss of central support services providing valuable support to schools 
(training/CPD, resources, advice and guidance, initial assessments, follow-up 
assessments); It is worth noting that one of training modules provided by the EAL 
was showcased at an all Wales event and has subsequently received interest to 
attend this from other LAS;   

 no centralised provision “safety valve” to ensure that the needs of ethnic minority 
and Roma/Gypsy Traveller pupils are met within the Welsh education system; 

 negative impact on the academic progress and wellbeing of many, of some of our 
most vulnerable learners; 

 negative impact on school ratings as pupils with limited English and poor 
attendance records are unable to access the curriculum and fail to acquire 
sufficient levels of language to achieve in standardised tests; 

 risk to the educational chances of a new generation of learners and the loss of the 
gains which have been made in recent years to promote the equitable attainment 
of all our learners;  

 risk to attendance rates for Gypsy Traveller pupils and early deregistration rate 
from formal education and potential safeguarding issues – see Table 3; and 

 Breach of UNCRC Article 3 (everyone who works with children should always do 
what is best for each child), Article 4 (the government should ensure that these 
rights are made available to children), Article 13 (right to have information), and 
Article 29 (right to become the best that you can be). 

Page 311



 
Table 3 

Targets and Performance 
 

Gypsy Traveller Attendance in Primary & Secondary Schools 
 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual  

85.1% 82.6% 74.62% 100% 98% 94% 87% as of 
June tbc 

88.02% 
 

50 pupils 
exceeded 
the 
minimum 
200 
sessions 
out of 51 
pupils  

46 pupils 
exceeded 
the 
minimum 
200 
sessions 
out of 54 
pupils 

32 pupils 
exceeded 
the 
minimum 
200 
sessions 
out of 56 
pupils  

48 pupils 
exceeded 
the 
minimum 
200 
sessions 
out of 48 
pupils 
(100%) 
 

50 pupils 
exceeded 
the 
minimum 
200 
sessions 
out of 51 
pupils 
(98%) 
 

46 pupils 
exceeded 
the 
minimum 
200 
sessions 
out of 49 
pupils 

46 pupils 
exceeded 
the 
minimum 
200 
sessions 
out of 50 
pupils 
(92%) 
 

49 pupils 
exceeded 
the 
minimum 
200 
sessions 
out of 55 
pupils 
(89%) 
 

 
3.3 As of their letter dated May 2018 WG confirmed that Merthyr Tydfil would receive a 

total allocation of £49,230 in 2018-19.  The letter goes on to say, “the position for 
2019-20 will need to be reviewed as part of a draft budget; however it is WG’s 
intention to earmark a further £8.7million to all 22 local authorities to support a 
sustainable model in 2020-21. This funding will be conditional on evidence of 
working progress towards more sustainable models of delivery.” 
  

3.4 This showed a significant short fall in the money needed to maintain the current level 
of staff employed to support these groups.  
 

3.5 However, on 29th March 2019 the local authority received a letter from WG stating 
that they had re-considered the funding allocation for all LAs.  The grant across 
Wales was increased from £8.7m to £10m and the allocation for Merthyr Tydfil 
increased to £101,406.  While this was received positively, it came after all of the 
Learning Support Assistants (LSAs) working across the teams had been redeployed.  
All staff employed by the local authority were redeployed to work directly in schools 
to support GT and EAL pupils.  However, this had reduced the local authority team to 
one Advisory Teacher. 
 

3.6 In order to continue to provide a service that could meet the ever increasing 
demands of our Minority Ethnic, Gypsy, Roma and Traveller learners, an Immersion 
class was established at Ty Dysgu Dowlais during the summer term 2019.  The aim 
of this class is to accelerate language acquisition for those pupils with low levels of 
English, both EAL and GT, where no alternative support is in place.  In addition to 
this, courses from the EAL/GT training programme are now being delivered online, 
so that school staff can access these more flexibly.  Since the announcement of the 
increase in funding, two LSAs have been taken on to support the team at the start of 
the autumn term, one of whom is a bilingual Polish speaker.  Money has also been 
given to individual schools with the greatest need to support their EAL and GT 
learners. 

Page 312



 
3.7 Baseline levels have been set for pupils attending the Immersion class, and regular 

assessments are carried out both by schools and by the EAL Team.  100% of pupils 
(13) of ages from Reception to Secondary showed an improvement in the acquisition 
of the English language by the end of the summer term.  This is as a result of pupils 
feeling safe to experiment with the English language in a smaller environment with 
pupils of a similar ability.  Schools have valued the support provided by the 
Immersion class and have been prepared to transport pupils to the class.  
 

3.8 With the employment of two additional team members and the plans to extend the 
Immersion class to two afternoons per week it is hoped that outcomes will improve 
further. 
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
4.1 The spending plan for the GT and EAL grants for 2019/20 is attached as Appendix 1.  

 
4.2 Please find below a summary of the allocation from WG for the last three financial 

years. 
 

MERTHYR CBC 
 

£ 

Education of Gypsy Children and Traveller Children 36,817-2015/16 

Education of Gypsy Children and Traveller Children 34,976- 2016/17 

Education of Gypsy Children and Traveller Children 34,759- 2017/18 

 

EDUCATION IMPROVEMENT GRANT 
Indicative Amount 

£ 

Minority Ethnic Achievement Grant ( Merthyr ) 101,658- 2015/16 

Minority Ethnic Achievement Grant ( Merthyr ) 96,575- 2016/17 

Minority Ethnic Achievement Grant ( Merthyr ) 95,976- 2017/18 

Minority Ethnic Achievement Grant ( Merthyr ) 49, 230- 2018/19  

Minority Ethnic Achievement Grant ( Merthyr ) 101, 46- 2019/20 

 

Page 313



 

5.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
 3 of 4  0 of 4  1 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

 5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
9 of 10 0 of 10 1 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
The main positive impacts against: 
The Well-being Objectives are that the proposal would provide targeted support for children 
and young people from EAL and GT backgrounds across the County Borough developing their 
literacy skills, wellbeing, resilience and life skills in order to make a positive contribution to the 
economy.  
The Sustainable Development Principles are that the proposal would safeguard the long term 
educational needs of children and young people to provide them with the skills and attributes to 
have control over their lives. The project seeks the engagement of other agencies in order to 
maximize the capabilities of the pupils with whom they work.   
The Protected Characteristics and Welsh language are that the proposal will provide support 
for all those with protected characteristics and will promote the use of the Welsh language where 
appropriate. 
Biodiversity are that the proposal would encourage awareness raising and understanding about 
becoming ethical and responsible citizens.  
There are no negative impacts as a result of this proposal.  

 
 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER, LEARNING 

LISA MYTTON 
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect of each 
proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

Page 314



Local Authority Education Grant 2019-20  

Support Plan – Support for Ethnic Minority and Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Learners/ Name of LA: MTCBC 
 
Services Funding 

allocated 
Planned Activity Expected Outcomes Progress during 2019-20 towards outcomes Future Plans 

Ethnic Minority 
Support/Gypsy, 
Roma Traveller 
Support 
 

Allocation 
£101,000.46 

To employ 2 LSAs to provide in class 
support. 
 

Improve learner 
outcomes, including 
attendance, 
engagement and 
behaviour  
 

LSAs in post as of September 2
nd 

2019.  
 

Future funding 
permitting to 
retain current 
staff.  
 

  Advisory Teacher to provide 
baseline assessment of English 
language. 

 Initial assessments undertaken; ongoing for new 
arrivals during the course of the year.  
Monitored on a termly basis in order to target 
resources. 

 

   
To monitor pupil progress using the 
WG 5 stage model and target 
support where needed most. 
 

   

  To establish an immersion class for 
pupils of low levels of English 
acquisition 

 Class established as of May 2019. During the 
summer term in 2019 13 pupils from Reception to 
Secondary accessed the class; 100% of pupils 
made progress in respect of English acquisition. 
Most schools and/or parents transport their 
pupils to the class, but in some cases transport is 
paid for.  

To extend the 
sessions 
available in 
the Immersion 
class in order 
to allow more 
pupils to 
access this 
support. 

  To provide online training for school 
staff 

 Online training available for staff to access.  

  To provide schools with resources to 
address bullying issues.  

   

  To provide pastoral support to 
pupils where needed. 

   

 

Appendix 1 

P
age 315



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
CABINET - INFORMATION REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:   Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Period Dignity 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 This report provides Members with information on how the grant from Welsh 

Government for “Period Dignity” has been used and the plans for the future spend of 
this grant. 

 
 

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 There has been recognition by Welsh Government that it is unacceptable that some 
young females cannot afford to buy essential feminine hygiene products when they 
need them, and as such, Welsh Government allocated funding to address this 
inequality.  
 

2.2 In the financial year 2018/19 Welsh Government allocated a capital grant of £12,860 
to Merthyr Tydfil for the installation of equipment and purchase of free sanitary 
products for female pupils in school.  Welsh Government also confirmed the 
allocation of a revenue grant to the value of £4,370 for maintaining sanitary ware 
stock in schools.  To date these allocations have been fully spent for the above.   
 

3.0 EVALUATION OF CURRENT PRACTICE 
 

3.1 It became apparent via the survey that was completed by pupils and staff, that not all 
schools routinely offered free sanitary products.  It was also evident that pupils did 
not always want to ask for sanitary products when required.   

Date Written 26th August 2019 

Report Author Sarah Bowen 

Service Area Learning 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 23rd October 2019 

Page 317

Agenda Item 10



As a result of using the grant all schools have been provided with vending machines 
stocked with sanitary products, which are free to female pupils.  Through the grant a 
three year maintenance contract has been provided and supplies have been re-
stocked.  This also means that pupils can access these products in the privacy of the 
toilets without having to notify a staff member.  Merthyr Tydfil has also received 
charitable donations to the value of £550 from High Street Church. 
 

3.2 In April this year, Welsh Government announced £2.3 million funding to be allocated 
to Local Authorities in Wales for the coming year to provide period products in 
schools.  The funding criteria stipulated that 10% of this funding should be used to 
purchase reusable products.  For Merthyr Tydfil this was an allocation of £48, 223 
revenue grant.  
 

3.3 There are clear benefits to providing an option of reusable period products.  
Primarily, it provides girls with choice about how to manage their periods.  There is 
also an environmental benefit.  Disposable sanitary products can contain up to 90% 
plastic and can make a notable contribution to our plastic litter problem.  Providing 
the option of using reusable products can help to address the impact that disposable 
products are having on our environment and support the action we are taking to 
reduce the volume of single use plastics that we use.  Encouraging a move away 
from disposable options towards reusable and plastic free options is a relatively 
small measure which could have an important environmental impact.  Furthermore, 
the availability of reusable products can have a positive impact on tackling period 
poverty as their use saves money in the longer term.  
 

3.4 All schools in Merthyr Tydfil have Eco Committees, or other established platforms 
that could help them to draw together options that would best suit them within that 
particular school and in line with their pupil’s specific needs and the environment 
these products will be used in.  Supporting pupils to be involved in decision making 
around which reusable products to purchase will provide a platform for questions to 
be asked and information to be shared.  More importantly, it will provide students 
with the confidence to try new products.  
 

3.5 There is a broad range of information on line with regards to the eco-friendly sanitary 
products that are available and many come with guidance, while some also have 
support helplines.  Welsh Government is working with Eco Schools and Keep Wales 
Tidy to provide resources for schools which will promote open discussion with young 
people and will help break down the social stigma and taboos around the subject.  
They will also support pupils to make informed choices about how to manage their 
periods.  These should be available during the Autumn term in 2019 and will be 
shared with schools.  When finalised, the resources will be posted on Hwb, the 
Digital Learning for Wales website, to which all schools have access.  
 

3.6 The Welsh Government is setting up a cross-Government group which will look at 
how the funding has been allocated and spent and where any improvements need to 
be made as well as options for sustainable provision of products.  

Page 318



 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 

 
4.1 Further expenditure for the cost of sanitary products, including more environmentally 

friendly products, will be met by the funding allocation from Welsh Government for 
the financial year 2019/20.  See Appendix 1. 
 

5.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
 4 of 4  0 of 4  0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

 5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
9 of 10 0 of 10 1 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts against: 

 The Well-being Objectives are that the proposal would provide young female 
pupils with free sanitary products. This would allow for improved wellbeing, dignity and 
outcomes.  

 The Sustainable Development Principles are that the proposal would 
safeguard the long term health and educational needs of young females. The 
proposal seeks the engagement of young females and outside providers.  

 The Protected Characteristics and Welsh language are that the proposal will 
provide support for all young females  with protected characteristics and will 
promote the use of the Welsh language where appropriate. 

 Biodiversity are that the proposal would encourage awareness raising and 
understanding about becoming ethicaland responsible citizens.  

There are no negative impacts as a result of this proposal.  
 

 
 
 
 

Page 319



 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER, LEARNING 

LISA MYTTON 
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING 

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

 
 

Page 320



 

 
 

Appendix 1 

Page 321



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 323

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 12,14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 341

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 345

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 16 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 349

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 16 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 351

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 16 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 357

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 16 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 359

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 16 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Delegations Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013
	4 Valley Life Dementia Wellbeing Centre - Update
	5 Extension of 20 mph Zone in Aberfan – Proposed Permanent Traffic Regulation Order
	Appendix 1
	Sheets and Views
	0001



	6 Petition High Street Trelewis
	7 Corporate Sustainability Programme - Budget Reduction Proposals
	Schedule - Neighbourhood
	Sheet1

	2.3.1  2.3.2  2.3.3  2.3.4
	2.4
	2.5
	2.6
	2.7
	2.8
	2.9
	2.10
	2.11
	2.12
	2.13
	Schedule - Regeneration
	Sheet1

	2.14
	2.15
	2.16
	Schedule - Central
	Sheet1

	2.17
	2.18.1  2.18.2  2.18.3
	2.19
	Schedule - Social Services
	Sheet1

	Schedule - Education
	Sheet1

	2.24

	8 Youth Support Services in Merthyr Tydfil
	9 Future Funding for Gypsy Roma and Traveller Learners and Pupils for whom English is an Additional Language (EAL)
	10 Period Dignity
	11 Debt Write Off Report
	12 Valleys Regional Park Discovery Gateways Capital Grant 2019 – 2021 – Cyfarthfa
	13 Aberfan Canoe Club, Letting at Taff Bargoed Park, Merthyr Tydfil
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4


